



การทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบเกี่ยวกับผลของสารแคนนาบิไดออล (Cannabidiol) ต่อความจำประเภทต่างๆ

ศิวพร ปราณีนิจ

วิทยานิพนธ์นี้เป็นส่วนหนึ่งของการศึกษาตามหลักสูตรวิทยาศาสตรมหาบัณฑิต สาขาวิชาวิทยาการชะลอวัยและฟื้นฟูสุขภาพ วิทยาลัยการแพทย์บูรณาการ มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์ ปีการศึกษา 2565



A SYSTEMATIC REVIEW ON THE EFFECTS OF CANNABIDIOL ON DIFFERENT TYPES OF MEMORIES

SIWAPORN PRANEENIJ

A Thesis Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science Department of Anti-aging and Regenerative Medicine, College of Integrative Medicine, Dhurakij Pundit University Academic Year 2022





ใบรับรองวิทยานิพนธ์

วิทยาลัยการแพทย์บูรณาการ มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์ ปริญญาวิทยาศาสตรมหาบัณฑิต

ภาษาไทย

เสนอโดย

สาขาวิชา

กลุ่มวิชา

การทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบเกี่ยวกับผลของสารแกนนาบิไดออล (Cannabidiol) ต่อความจำประเภทต่างๆ ศิวพร ปราณีนิจ วิทยาการชะลอวัยและฟื้นฟูสุขภาพ เวชศาสตร์ชะลอวัยและพื้นฟูสุขภาพ อาจารย์ที่ปรึกษาวิทยานิพนธ์ ผู้ช่วยศาสตราจารย์ ดร. เอกราช บำรุงพืชน์

ได้พิจารณาเห็นชอบ โดยคณะกรรมการสอบวิทยานิพนธ์แล้ว

_____ ประธานกรรมการ STEPE

(รองศาสตราจารย์ คร. เภสัชกรหญิงมยุรี ตันดิสิระ)

VYกรรมการและอาจารย์ที่ปรึกษาวิทยานิพนธ์ (ผู้ช่วยศาสตราจารย์ คร. เอกราช บำรุงพืชน์)

.....กรรมการ

(ผู้ช่วยศาสตราจารย์ คร.นายแพทย์พัฒนา เค็งอำนวย)

วิทยาลัยการแพทย์บูรณาการ รับรองแล้ว

(ผู้ช่วยศาสตราจารย์ คร.นายแพทย์พัฒนา เคิ่งอำนวย) วันที่ 21 เดือน พฤษภาคม พ.ศ. 2566



ν ^ν ο ο τ	
หัวขอวิทยานิพนธ์	การทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบเกี่ยวกับผลของสารแคนนาบิไดออล
	(Cannabidiol) ต่อความจำประเภทต่างๆ
ชื่อผู้เขียน	ศิวพร ปราณีนิจ
อาจารย์ที่ปรึกษา	ผู้ช่วยศาสตราจารย์ ดร.เอกราช บำรุงพืชน์
หลักสูตร	วิทยาการชะลอวัย และฟื้นฟูสุขภาพ
ปีการศึกษา	2565

บทคัดย่อ

ความเป็นมา: การเปลี่ยนแปลงล่าสุดในการลดทอนความเป็นอาชญากรรมและการทำให้กัญชาถูก กฎหมายในประเทศไทยส่งผลกระทบการเข้าถึงและได้มาของกัญชาต่อประชากรสำหรับการใช้ทั้งทาง การแพทย์และสันทนาการ กัญชามีสารไฟโตแคนนาบินอยด์ เทอร์ปีน และสารประกอบอื่นๆ จำนวนมากที่มี ฤทธิ์ทางชีววิทยา กายภาพ และจิตวิทยาที่หลากหลาย หลักฐานใหม่สนับสนุนคุณสมบัติทางยาที่เป็นไปได้ของ "กัญชาทางการแพทย์" ในการรักษาโรคทางพยาธิวิทยา ระบบประสาท และทางจิตเวช แต่ก็สามารถส่งผลเสีย ต่อความปลอดภัยของผู้บริโภคและสุขภาพของประชาชนได้เช่นกัน นักวิทยาศาสตร์ได้แยกสารประกอบใน กัญชาเพื่อศึกษาผลการรักษาและผลข้างเคียง CBD ซึ่งเป็นสารประกอบที่ไม่ออกฤทธิ์ต่อจิตประสาท ได้รับ ความสนใจจากศักยภาพในการบรรเทาผลกระทบที่เป็นอันตรายของ THC ในขณะเดียวกันก็ส่งเสริมผลลัพธ์ ด้านสุขภาพในเชิงบวกและส่งเสริมความเป็นอยู่ที่ดีโดยรวม หน่วยความจำเป็นสิ่งจำเป็นสำหรับชีวิตประจำวัน การตัดสินใจ และการเรียนรู้ และ CBD ได้รับการศึกษาถึงผลกระทบข่อง CBD ต่อความทรงจำประเภทต่างๆ การ ทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบนี้มีจุดมุ่งหมายเพื่อเน้นย้ำถึงผลกระทบของ CBD ต่อความทรงจำประเภทต่างๆ เพื่อให้ มีหลักฐานเพิ่มเติมในการสนับสนุนการใช้ CBD เป็นตัวกระตุ้นประสิทธิภาพที่เกี่ยวข้องกับความจำและความ เป็นอยู่ที่ดี และอาจเป็นมาตรการป้องกันผลกระทบของ THC

วัตถุประสงค์: วัตถุประสงค์หลักของการทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบนี้คือการประเมินวรรณกรรม ปัจจุบันเกี่ยวกับผลกระทบของ CBD ต่อความทรงจำประเภทต่างๆ และเพื่อเป็นหลักฐานล่าสุดสำหรับการนำ CBD ไปใช้ทางคลินิกในด้านที่เกี่ยวข้องกับการปรับหน่วยความจำ วัตถุประสงค์รองคือการให้ข้อมูลเชิงลึก เพิ่มเติมเกี่ยวกับประเด็นแนวคิดและวิธีการของการใช้ CBD เพื่อการปรับปรุงในอนาคต

วิธีการ: ค้นหาอย่างเป็นระบบเพื่อระบุการศึกษาที่เกี่ยวข้องโดยใช้แนวทาง Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis (PRISMA), Medical Subject Heading (MeSH) word และเกณฑ์ที่กำหนดไว้ล่วงหน้า สำหรับการเลือกบทความ การค้นหานี้ดำเนินการในฐานข้อมูลต่างๆ รวมถึง EMBASE, MedLine, PubMed, PsychINFO และ Sciencedirect โดยใช้คำค้นหาที่เกี่ยวข้องกับ CBD และหน่วยความจำร่วมกัน การค้นหา จำกัดเฉพาะบทความที่ตีพิมพ์ระหว่างปี 2010 ถึงมกราคมปี2023 (ปัจจุบัน)

IV

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

V

ผลลัพธ์: การค[้]นหาให้ผลการศึกษาพรีคลินิกในสัตว์ทดลอง 48 งาน และการทดลองในมนุษย์ที่มี กลุ่มควบคุมแบบสุ่ม (RCTs) 12 งานที่เข้าเกณฑ์การคัดเลือก ประชากรทั้งสัตว์และมนุษย์เป็นประชากรที่มี สุขภาพดีและผู้ที่มีความบกพร่องทางสติปัญญา เช่น ภาวะสมองเสื่อมและอาการคล้ายโรคจิตเภท มีการใช้การ ทดสอบพฤติกรรมและการรับรู้ หลายอย่างเพื่อประเมินประเภทและขั้นตอนต่างๆ ของการประมวลผล หน่วยความจำ และใช้ปริมาณ CBD และมีวิธีการให้ที่แตกต่างกัน การศึกษาในสัตว์แสดงให้เห็นถึงการปรับปรุง ในความจำอาศัยเหตุการณ์ ความจำการทำงานเชิงพื้นที่ ความจำที่เกี่ยวข้องกับความกลัว และความจำที่ เกี่ยวข้องกับยา การศึกษาในมนุษย์แสดงให้เห็นการปรับปรุงในความจำที่เกี่ยวข้องกับความกลัว แต่มีผลลัพธ์ที่ ไม่แน่นอนในความจำอาศัยเหตุการณ์ และความจำเพื่อใช้งานผลกระทบของ CBD ต่อความจำเสื่อมที่เกิดจาก THC นั้นยังไม่สามารถสรุปได้ พบว่า CBD ส่งผลกระทบต่อขั้นตอนต่าง ๆ ของการประมวลผลหน่วยความจำ รวมถึงการรวม การรวมใหม่ การสูญพันธุ์ และการคืนสถานะในลักษณะที่ขึ้นกับปริมาณ นอกจากนี้ CBD ยัง ลดการแสดงออกของโปรตีนและปรับระดับการกระตุ้นสมองในบริเวณสมองที่เกี่ยวข้องกับความจำ มีรายงาน ผลข้างเคียงเล็กน้อย แต่สามารถหายได้เอง คุณภาพโดยรวมของหลักฐานถูกจำกัดเนื่องจากประชากรที่ แตกต่างกัน ความแตกต่างของระเบียบวิธี และอคติที่อาจเกิดขึ้น

สรุป: การทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบนี้ชี้ให้เห็นว่า CBD อาจปรับเปลี่ยนความทรงจำประเภทต่างๆ โดยมีผลดีต่อความจำที่เกี่ยวข้องกับความกลัว และอาจมีผลกระทบในเชิงบวกต่อความจำอาศัยเหตุการณ์ ความจำการทำงานเชิงพื้นที่ และความจำที่เกี่ยวข้องกับยา อย่างไรก็ตาม จำเป็นต้องมีการวิจัยเพิ่มเติมเพื่อหา ผลกระทบของ CBD ต่อความบกพร่องของความจำที่เกิดจาก THC และเพื่อให้เข้าใจอย่างถ่องแท้ถึงผลกระทบ ของขนาดยา วิธีการให้ และวิธีการทดสอบพฤติกรรม ดังนั้น จึงจำเป็นต้องมีแนวทางที่มีลักษณะเป็นพหุ วิทยาการ ในการกำหนดขนาดยา วิธีการให้ และผลระยะยาวที่เหมาะสม โดยรวมแล้ว การค้นพบนี้สนับสนุน CBD ในฐานะตัวเลือกการรักษาที่มีแนวโน้มสำหรับการปรับปรุงการทำงานของหน่วยความจำในประชากรทาง คลินิกและไม่ใช่ทางคลินิก

<mark>คำสำคัญ:</mark> แคนนาบิไดออล, CBD, กัญชา, หน่วยความจำ, การประมวลผลหน่วยความจำ, การทบทวนอย่าง เป็นระบบ

(ผู้ช่วยศาสตราจารย์ ดร.เอกราช บำรุงพืชน์) อาจารย์ที่ปรึกษา



Thesis Title	A SYSTEMATIC REVIEW ON THE EFFECTS OF CANNABIDIOL ON
	DIFFERENT TYPES OF MEMORIES
Author	Siwaporn Praneenij
Thesis Advisor	Assistant Professor Dr. Akkarach Bumrungpert
Program	Anti-aging and Regenerative Medicine
Academic Year	2022

ABSTRACT

Background: The recent changes in decriminalization and legalization of cannabis in Thailand has impacted the population's exposure to cannabis and availability for both medical and recreational use. Cannabis contains numerous phytocannabinoids, terpenes, and other compounds that have diverse biological, physical, and psychological actions. Emerging evidence supports the potential medicinal properties of "medical cannabis" in treating various pathological, neurological, and psychiatric disorders, but it can also have adverse effects on consumer safety and public health. Scientists have isolated compounds in cannabis to study their therapeutic and side effects. CBD, a non-psychoactive compound, has gathered attention for its potential to mitigate the deleterious effects of THC while simultaneously promoting positive health outcomes and enhancing overall well-being. Memory is essential for daily life, decision-making, and learning, and CBD has been studied for its effects on different types of memory. This systematic review aims to highlight the effects of CBD on different types of memories to provide further evidence to support the use of CBD as a performance booster in relation to memory and well-being, and perhaps as a protective measure against the effects of THC.

Objective: The primary objective of this systematic review is to evaluate the current literature on the effects of CBD on different types of memories and to provide up-to-date critical evidence for the clinical implications of CBD in its relations to memory modulation. The secondary objective is to provide further insight into the conceptual and methodological issues of CBD usage for future improvement.



Methods: A systematic search was conducted to identify relevant studies using the Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis (PRISMA) guideline, Medical Subject Heading (MeSH) words, and a predetermined set of criteria for article selection. This search was performed across a range of databases, including EMBASE, MedLine, PubMed, PsychINFO, and Sciencedirect, utilizing a combination of search terms related to CBD and memory. The search was limited to articles published between 2010 and January 2023 (present).

Results: The search yielded 48 preclinical animal studies and 12 human randomized controlled trials (RCTs) that met the inclusion criteria. Both animal and human populations included healthy individuals and those with cognitive impairments such as dementia and schizophrenia-like conditions. Multiple behavioral and cognitive tests were utilized to assess various types and stages of memory processing, and different CBD dosages and administration routes were employed. Animal studies demonstrated improvements in episodic memory, spatial working memory, fear-associated memory, and drug-associated memory. Human studies showed improvements in fear-associated memory, but mixed results in episodic and working memory. The effects of CBD on THC-induced memory impairment remain inconclusive. CBD was found to affect different phases of memory processing, including consolidation, reconsolidation, extinction, and reinstatement, in a dose-dependent manner. Furthermore, CBD decreased protein expression and modulated brain activation levels in memory-related brain regions. Mild adverse effects were reported but resolved on their own. The overall quality of evidence was limited due to the heterogeneous populations, methodological differences, and some potential biases.

Conclusion: This systematic review suggests that CBD may modulate different types of memories, with a beneficial effect on fear-associated memory and potential positive effects on episodic, spatial working memory, and drug-associated memory. However, more research is needed to determine the effects of CBD on THC-induced memory impairment and to fully understand the impact of dosage, administration route, and cognitive tasks. Thus, a multidisciplinary approach is required to establish optimal dosage, administration, and longterm effects. Overall, these findings support CBD as a promising therapeutic option for improving memory function in clinical and non-clinical populations.

VII



Keywords: Cannabidiol, CBD, cannabis, memory, memory processing, systematic review

Cogo Mm .

(Assistant Professor Dr. Akkarach Bumrungpert) Thesis Advisor



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to my supervisor, Asst. Prof. Akkarach Bumrungpert, Ph.D., for his guidance, invaluable feedback, and insightful comments throughout the research and writing process. Without his support and direction, this thesis would not have taken its current shape and form.

I would also like to extend my appreciation to the Dean, Asst. Prof. Patana Tengumnuay, Ph.D., M.D., and Course Director, Asst.Prof. Mart Maiprasert, M.D., for providing me with the foundation knowledge and information necessary to complete this thesis. Their constant reminders of impending deadlines and unwavering support were invaluable in keeping my work on track. Additionally, I would like to thank Dr. Phawit Norchai, Ph.D., M.D., for his valuable comments and insights, which contributed greatly to this thesis.

I am deeply grateful to all the staff members from the Anti-aging and Regenerative Medicine program at the College of Integrative Medicine, Dhurakij Pundit University, for their efforts in coordinating the courses and examination dates. Their support and dedication were integral to the successful completion of this project.

I would like to express my sincere appreciation to Lauren Rose Rowntree and Sujaree Kuenghakit for their time and assistance in reviewing the studies. Their contribution and critical eye were invaluable in shaping this thesis.

Lastly, I would like to express my profound gratitude to my family for their support and encouragement throughout my academic journey. Their love and guidance were the pillars of my success, and I could not have accomplished this without them.

Thank you all for your contributions to my academic and personal growth.

Siwaporn Praneenij



TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
ABSTRAC	T (THAI)	IV
ABSTRACT (ENGLISH)		
ACKNOW	LEDGEMENTS	IX
TABLE OF	F CONTENTS	Х
LIST OF 1	FABLES	XII
LIST OF F	FIGURES	XIII
CHAPTER		
1.	INTRODUCTION	1
	1.1 Background and significance of the problem / Rationale	1
	1.2 Research questions	2
	1.3 Objective of Study	2
	1.4 Scope of research	3
	1.5 Research Design	3
	1.6 Expected Benefits and Applications	3
	1.7 Definition of Terms	3
2.	CONCEPTS, THEEORIED AND RELATED RESEARCH	5
	2.1 Endocannabinoid System	5
	2.2 The Phytocannabinoids: THC and CBD	8
	2.3 Memory	9
	2.4 Memory and (Endo) cannabinoids	11
	2.5 Related Systematic Review	12
3.	METHODOLOGY	16
	3.1 Eligibility criteria	16
	3.2 Information sources	16
	3.3 Search strategy	17
	3.4 Selection process and data collection process	17
	3.5 Data collection process	18
	3.6 Data items and effects measure	18

Х



TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont.)

CHAPTER		Page
	3.7 Study risk of bias assessment and reporting bias assessment	19
	3.8 Ethics approval	19
4.	Results	20
	4.1 Preclinical Animal Studies	20
	4.2 Human's RCT Studies	28
5.	Discussion	309
	5.1 Episodic Memory	309
	5.2 Spatial and Working Memory	311
	5.3 Fear Associated Memory	312
	5.4 Drug Associated Memory	313
	5.5 CBD and THC	314
	5.6 Adverse events	314
	5.7 Strengths	314
	5.8 Limitations	314
	5.9 Implications and future directions	315
	5.10 Conclusion	317
REFEREN	CES	. 318
APPENDI	Х	. 339
	A Ethics Approval	. 340
BIOGRAP	HY	. 342

XI



LIST OF TABLES

TABLES	5		Page
	3.1	Cochrane's Risk of Bias	19
	4.1	Summary Table of the Characteristics of Preclinical Animal Studies	37
	4.1	Summary Table of the Characteristics of Randomized Controlled Trial	263
		Studies	



LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE	Page	
2.1	Structures of plant cannabinoids and endocannabinoids	9
2.2	Memory Structure	10
2.3	PRISMA Flow Diagram of The Impact of Cannabidiol on Human Brain	13
	Function: A Systematic Review	
3.1	PRISMA 2020 flow diagram	18
4.1	Flow of Studies for Preclinical Animal Studies	21
4.2	Flow of Studies for Human's RCT Studies	29
4.3	Risk of Bias Traffic light Plot	34
4.4	Risk of Bias Summary Plot	34

XIII



CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background and significance of the problem / Rationale

2022 has been an interesting year in terms of how Thailand has decriminalized and legalized the use of cannabis. The changes in the legal status of cannabis had significant impact on the general population of cannabis exposure and increased the availability of acquiring cannabis for both medical and recreational usage, in which there are currently 200 million cannabis users or more worldwide¹. Cannabis contained numerous phytocannabinoids, terpenes and other compounds which can bind and have certain affinity to specific receptors in the human body known as the endocannabinoid system. Currently there are approximately 560 compounds and 120 phytocannabinoids that are primarily produced in the trichomes identified² in which these compounds and phytocannabinoids have diverse biological, physical and psychological actions that are sometime opposing to one another.

There are emerging evidences supporting the potential medicinal properties of "medical cannabis". In the review by Fraguas-Sánchez and Torres-Suárez³, cannabinoids showed promising results in many pathological, neurological and psychiatric disorders, in terms of how the endocannabinoid system played an important role in energy balance, stimulating appetite, modulating pain, nausea and vomiting control, immunological response as well as anti-inflammatory effect, memory, recall and learning. Evidence from studies including randomized control trial and systematic review suggested that cannabinoids are effective in treating Multiple Sclerosis^{4–6}, Epilepsy⁷, Parkinson's Disease^{8,9}, Alzheimer's Disease¹⁰, Chronic Pain¹¹, Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder¹², Anxiety¹³ and Insomnia¹⁴. Due to the positive effects cannabinoids had on attenuating psychological and cognitive-like behaviors¹⁵; therefore, it can be arguably said that cannabinoids not only played a therapeutic role in several disorder but in roles of well-being as well. Although not all studies support the therapeutic uses of cannabinoids and found that adverse effects may not outweigh the benefits¹⁶ and thus these adverse effects may complicate consumer safety and public health expenditures.

With the development of technology, increasing numbers of phytocannabinoids are being isolated and identified in which studies are now more focused on individual compounds. The most frequent studied phytocannabinoids are Δ 9 - tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) and



cannabidiol (CBD). THC is recognized as the main psychoactive cannabis compound¹⁷ that is found to have several detrimental cognitive effects such as declining in executive function, decision making, attention and the most impaired was memory¹⁸. In contrast to its counterpart, CBD is a non-intoxicating phytocannabinoid and is shown to have more positive health sequalae and wellbeing. Batalla and colleagues¹⁹ found that CBD had opposite effects to THC and is shown to modulate brain areas that are involved in cognitive processes including emotional processing and memory. It has been suggested that pre-dosing with CBD may provide some protective mechanism against the detrimental effects of THC¹⁸. In this regard, CBD consumption has been on the rise and many used CBD for its calming effects and to enhance performances.

It is undeniable that memory plays a vital part in our daily life, humans depend on their working memory in order to execute decision making, learning and daily operational tasks. Impairment of memory can affect our cognitive capabilities and therefore affect quality of life and development²⁰. With many studies, including systematic reviews, focusing on neuroimaging²¹ and overall cognitive function^{19,22}, this systematic review highlights the effects of CBD on different types of memories to bridge the gap of knowledge and provide further evidence to support the use of CBD as performance booster and wellbeing, and perhaps a protective measure against the effects of THC.

1.2 Research question

The research question focused on whether CBD has any effects on memory and if it does which types of memories are affected.

1.3 Objective of Study

The primary aim of the review focused on the effects of CBD on different types of memories and to provide up-to-date critical evidence for the clinical implication of CBD in its relations to memory modulation. The secondary objective is to provide further insight in the conceptual and methodological issues of CBD usage for future improvement.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

1.4 Scope of research

This research focused on the effects of CBD on different types of memories. The research was conducted using different online databases for preclinical studies done in animal and randomized controlled trials (RCTs) done in human, where eligible studies were selected in terms of relevancy and or if the studies and RCTs included results on any memory performance or task. All forms and administration of CBD and dosage such as pills, vaporized or solution were included. Participants were not limited to species, nationality, age, sex, underlying illness and status of cannabis usage. The time-period between 2010 and January 2023 was chosen to include newer and more recent studies.

1.5 Research Design

The research is a systematic review with the purpose 'to identify, appraise and synthesize all the empirical evidence that meets pre-specified eligibility criteria to answer a given research question'²² in which qualified animal's preclinical studies and human's randomized control trials were selected for this systematic review.

1.6 Expected Benefits and Applications

1. The research will be able to determine the effect of CBD has on memory and if such effects were to be concluded in a positive outcome, CBD may be used as agent that boost cognitive performance in terms of memories' function and types, and possible therapeutic agent in illnesses that involve memory impairment.

2. Direction of use associated with memory boost can be conceptualized to provide standardized consumer's protocol.

3. Methodological issues in practice and research can be acknowledged for future improvement.

4. Evidence to support health and safety of recreational CBD usage.

DPU <u>มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์</u>

1.7 Definition of Terms

1. Cannabis is a flowering plant where three species have been recognized Cannabis sativa, Cannabis indica and Cannabis ruderalis. They contain active phytochemicals called cannabinoids that have various physical and neurological effects on the human endocannabinoid system.

2. Cannabinoid is a common term used to described compounds that are psychoactive and found in both cannabis plant (phytocannabinoids) and the human body (endocannabinoid).

3. Phytocannabinoids are phytochemicals found naturally in cannabis plant. The most concentrated phytocannabinoids are Δ 9-tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) and cannabidiol (CBD) found in the trichrome of the female plant.

4. Endocannabinoid system (ECS) refers to the biological system in the human body that encompass the endocannabinoids, the endocannabinoid receptors that are expressed throughout the body and their synthetic and degradative enzymes.

5. Cannabinoid receptor 1 (CB1) is a G protein-coupled cannabinoid receptor found mostly in the central nervous system and the peripheral nervous system. The binding site has affinity for the endocannabinoid (anandamide and 2-arachidonoylglycerol (2-AG)) and the phytocannabinoids such as THC.

6. Cannabinoid receptor 2 (CB2) is a G protein-coupled cannabinoid receptor found mostly in cells associated with immune system.

7. Cannabidiol (CBD) is a phytocannabinoid that doesn't have psychoactive activity.

8. Δ 9- tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) is a phytocannabinoid that has psychoactive effect.



CHAPTER 2 CONCEPTS, THEEORIED AND RELATED RESEARCH

2.1 Endocannabinoid System

The endocannabinoid system referred to the endogenous signaling system²³ that is characterized by endocannabinoids, which are the endogenous cannabinoid neurotransmitters or ligands, their receptors, transporters and enzymes responsible for their synthesis or metabolism^{24,25}. The system is established throughout the body and thus control various physiologic, metabolic and neurological networks. The modulation of these networks included working at a central networks of regulating brain homeostasis, brain plasticity, neurogenesis, and even higher cognitive function such as learning and memory²⁶; and at peripheral networks involving inflammation and immune responses²⁷. While there are more components of the endocannabinoid system being discovered, this systematic review will focus on the most studied endogenous endocannabinoids and receptors.

2.1.1 Endocannabinoids

The most studied endogenous endocannabinoids (ligands) are arachidonylethanolamine (anandamide or AEA) and 2-arachidonoylglycerol (2-AG). Both AEA and 2-AG are bioactive phospholipid that have a very short half-life, hydrophobic in nature and are unstable to uptake and stored into vesicles, therefore the endocannabinoids are synthesized and released "on demand" from stimuli such as depolarization of neurons²⁸. The endocannabinoids are said to exhibit control on excitatory and inhibitory signaling through the regulation of the neurotransmitters, glutamine and gamma-aminobutyric acid (GABA), in a retrograde manner which are in contrast to the usual electrochemical synaptic connection and communication²⁹. While anandamide acts as a partial agonist at cannabinoid receptors, 2-AG acts as an agonist at cannabinoid receptors with a much higher intrinsic efficacy³⁰.

(1) Anandamide (AEA)

In 1992, Devane and colleagues were successful in the isolation and the discovery of the first endocannabinoid which was named as Anadamide (AEA). AEA are arachidonic acid derivatives conjugated with ethanolamine which are biosynthesized via a phospholipid dependent pathway³¹. The phospholipid derivative N-arachidonoyl

DPU <u>มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์</u>

phosphatidylethanolamine (NAPE) is hydrolyzed by a phospholipase D (PLD) selective for NAPE called the NAPE-PLD to form AEA and phosphatidic acid^{23,31}. However, studies done in mice showed that there are alternative pathways, and perhaps is an evolutionarily conservative mechanism, to the biosynthesis of AEA³². AEA can be synthesized through the hydrolysis of other enzymes such as a lysophospholipase-D (lyso-PLD), α/β -hydrolase 4 and phospholipase C (PLC)³³. The deactivation and degradation of AEA is done after cellular uptake from the extracellular space through transporters, by fatty acid amide hydrolase (FAAH) which breaks down AEA into arachidonic acid and ethanolamine^{34,35}. In addition to FAAH's degradation, AEA can also be deactivated through N-acylethanolamine acid amidase (NAAA), oxygenated by cyclooxygenase-2 (COX-2), lipoxygenase (LOX) isoenzymes, and by cytochrome P-540³⁴.

(2) 2-arachidonoylglycerol (2-AG)

2-AG and AEA are structurally similar and differs in the length and the unsaturation of acyl chains, with 2-AG as arachidonic acid derivatives conjugated with glycerol³¹. Through the phospholipase C (PLC)/DAG lipase pathway, 2-AG is synthesized from the conversion of diacylglycerols (DAG) with additional alternative pathways via PI-specific phospholipase A1 (PLA1) and PI-selective phospholipase C (PI-PLC)^{31,36}. The primary enzyme responsible for the degradation of 2-AG is monoacylglycerol lipase (MAGL) and to a lesser degree FAAH, hydrolase α - β -hydrolase domain 6 (ABHD6) and hydrolase α - β -hydrolase domain 12 (ABHD12)³⁷. Similar to the deactivation of AEA, 2-AG can also be deactivated via COX-2, LOX isoenzymes, and by cytochrome P-450³⁸. Thus, giving the product of arachidonic acid and glycerol.

2.1.2 Cannabinoid Receptors

The cannabinoid receptors, CB1 and CB2 receptors, are G protein-coupled receptors (GPCRs)³⁹, the receptors are differentiated by their amino acid numbers and sequences, their signaling pathway and distribution in the body^{40,41}. In accordance with the retrograde released on the endocannabinoids, the activation of cannabinoid receptors was described as a "circuit-breaker" ²⁹. The cannabinoids receptors are presented at the presynaptic cleft where activation will subdue the release of neurotransmitter onto the synaptic junction and depending on the types of neurotransmitters will either suppress the excitation (glutamine) or inhibition (GABA) depolarization.

DPU <u>อายาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

(1) Cannabinoid Receptor 1 (CB1)

Even though CB1 receptors are found throughout the body, they are most abundantly found in the central and to a lesser extent peripheral nervous system⁴⁰. CB1 receptors are highly expressed in the cerebral cortex, hippocampus, cerebellum and brainstem^{41,42} where there are expressed more in GABAergic neurons than glutamatergic neurons⁴³. It is in this regard that stimulation of CB1 receptors affect cognitive function, memory and motor control, and therefore translated into behavioral and psychological outcomes as well. In addition, stimulation of CB1 receptors in astrocytes or glia cells responsible for neurogenesis and synaptogenesis are revealed to modulate neuroplasticity^{29,44}. As a GPCR, the binding of CB1 receptor stimulate Gi/o leading to inhibition of adenyl cyclase and decrease of cyclic adenosine monophosphate (cAMP) levels which results in decreased of Ca2+ influx^{31,41}. Other pathway includes interaction with **β**- arrestins which mediated signal transduction for cellular effects at extracellular-signal-regulated kinase (ERK), and c-jun terminal kinase (JNK)³¹.

(2) Cannabinoid Receptor 2 (CB2)

Predominantly, CB2 receptors are generally expressed in the immune tissues and cells^{40,45} such as leukocytes, spleen, tonsils, thymus, as well as the lung and testes³⁹. The expression of receptors in the immune system gave rise to the medicinal potential in modulating the immune function and inflammatory cytokines. Like CB1, CB2 is a GPCRs receptors that when activated causes a chain reaction involving adenyl cyclase, cAMP, β arrestin and protein kinase³¹.

2.2 The Phytocannabinoids: THC and CBD

There are approximately 560 compounds and 120 phytocannabinoids identified², they are found in the flowering plant Cannabis sativa and most abundantly in the glandular trichomes of the female flowers⁴⁶. The term phytocannabinoid refers to a group of natural cannabinoids that have similar biochemical structures and is said to contribute to 24% of the compounds found in Cannabis sativa^{47,48}. The most studied phytocannabinoids are THC and CBD. They both are able to bind to the CB1 and CB2 receptors, and have a profound effect on the endocannabinoids.

DPU มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

2.2.1 9- tetrahydrocannabinol (THC)

THC made up the most of the phytocannabinoid components in a plant³ and is a known psychoactive compound²⁸. THC is described as partial agonist of CB1 and CB2 receptor, sharing this effect with the endocannabinoids AEA and 2-AG that act on presynaptic receptors ⁴⁹. Due to its partial agonist nature, from its low receptor affinity, THC can show mixed agonist-antagonist effect depending on the numbers of cannabinoid receptors present at the site of activation⁴⁸. For example, downregulation of receptors may produce antagonist effect whereas upregulation may enhance the partial agonist activity⁴⁹. The mixed agonist-antagonist effect may attenuate and fine tune the level of endocannabinoid that are full agonist and thus mediate neuromodulator functions⁵⁰. THC's effects include dysphoria, pain control, anti-emesis, tolerance, and dependence⁴⁶.

2.2.2 Cannabidiol (CBD)

The second most abundant phytocannabinoid is the non-psychoactive CBD⁴⁷. In contrast to the THC, CBD expressed an antagonistic effect on both CB1 and CB2 receptors ⁴⁹. However, recent studies revealed that CBD is complexed and uniquely acted as negative modulator of CB1 and showed inverse agonism at CB2 receptors, as well as inhibiting enzymatic degradation of endogenous cannabinoid⁵⁰. CBD is proposed to have a counter or a protective effect to THC due to the antagonistic and modulator effects¹⁸. According to these properties, CBD has been therapeutically used as anxiolytic, antipsychotic, anticonvulsive and anti-inflammatory agent⁴⁶.



 Δ^9 -tetrahydrocannabinol (Δ^9 -THC)



cannabidiol (CBD)



arachidonoyl ethanolamide (anandamide)

2-arachidonoyl glycerol (2-AG)

Figure 2.1 Structures of plant cannabinoids and endocannabinoids ⁵¹.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITA</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

2.3 Memory

Memory is a cognitive phenomenon that refers to the process of encoding, storing, and retrieving information over time, it can be categorized roughly into sensory, short-term, and long-term memory⁵². In 1968, Atkinson and Shiffrin have proposed a foundational framework that paved way into the understanding and research of human memory in their Multi Store Model of Memory. In their concept, memories are compartmentalized into storage unit according to time. Once an event is perceived (as sensory input), it is stored as Sensory Memory (SM) which is transferred into Short-Term Memory (STM) and through rehearsal it is stored as Long-Term Memory (LTM). STM can be defined as the capability to remember seven plus or minus two items lasting for a few minutes to hours, while LTM has "unlimited" capacity that can be retained and revisited over a long period of time⁵³. However due to the oversimplification criticism, The Multi Store Model of Memory has been through significant modifications over the past few decades. Working memory is a more recent term that has more or less replaced STM in many literature reviews. LTM can be subdivided into explicit and implicit memory where explicit memory is defined as a conscious memory content such as facts and events (semantic and episodic memory), and implicit memory as unconscious memory content referring to skills, habits and reflex (procedural memory) that guided performance⁵⁴.



Figure 2.2 Memory Structure. SM = Sensory Memory, STM = Short-Term Memory,

LTM = Long-Term Memory.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

The study of memory remains a challenged to psychologist and neuroscientist as there are many theories and domains of the brain involved in terms of how memory is encoded, stored and retrieved. It is vital that memories are viewed as a dynamic process instead of a fixed and linear entity⁵⁵. A sensory memory input is comprised of different senses depending on what the memory represents and therefore networks of neural activation composing of several regions of the brain is responsible for memory processing instead of one modularity. It was found that the medial temporal cortex, consisting of hippocampus, amygdala and parahippocampal lobe, prefrontal cortex and cerebellum are involved in memory processing⁵⁴ and these regions overlap with one another during STM and LTM memory tasks⁵⁶. Another fascinating feature that demonstrates the dynamicity of memory is the modulation of memory where memories are not all created and stored equally and thus influences other memory processes such as memory extinction and recall⁵⁷. The strength of memory traces is theorized to be dependable on the strength of the synapses in which various cellular mechanism such as synaptic tagging, protein synthesis and protein kinase-based cascades are responsible for synaptic plasticity²⁰. Memory that involved multiple sensory input systems also demonstrate stronger retention of new information⁵³.

The difference in the strength of memory modulation can be further explain by the physical and emotional state of the host. Emotional significant experience or stressful event are bounded to be remembered more strongly⁵⁸. Memory consolidation is regulated through the activation of adrenergic neurotransmitters and stress hormones interacting with related brain regions. During high arousal or stressful situation, the sensory input is perceived through the primary pathway to the thalamus and then to the amygdala⁵³ where the amygdala is connected to the caudate nucleus and the hippocampus⁵⁷. As a result of stress, there is an upregulation of dopaminergic and noradrenergic activity through the sympathetic-adrenal-medullary (SAM) axis^{59,60}. However, contradicting effects of stress were reported in which some studies found that stress can both impair and improve memory.

These contradictions concluded that while stress enhanced memory consolidation, it impairs recall and retrieval in a dose dependent manner in which extremely stressful stimulation and excess norepinephrine or dopamine's level will impair memory^{57–59,61}.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

2.4 Memory and (Endo)cannabinoids

There are supporting evidences that demonstrated the involvement of the endocannabinoid system in learning and memory. While the exact mechanism is currently being studied, it is suggested that the endocannabinoid modulated consolidation, destabilization and extinction of memories by controlling the neural and adrenergic responses. The effects, both enhancement and diminishment, is dependent on the types of neurons and synaptic location⁶². This is due to the retrograde signaling of the endocannabinoids that attenuate the presynaptic release of GABA, glutamate and other neurotransmitters¹⁹.

In regards to CB1 receptors, they are found in memory related brain areas such as the cerebral cortex, amygdala and with the highest density at the hippocampus^{51,63}. It is found that the stimulation of CB1 receptors will impair acquisition of memory and promotes memory extinction^{50,64}. This may be the results of suppressed hippocampal presynaptic release of glutamate which is responsible for synaptic plasticity⁵¹ in memory tracing. Additionally, stimulation of CB2 receptors will also promote synaptic plasticity⁶⁵

Administration of phytocannabinoids was also found to affect memory processes. It was found that THC can induced memory impairment as both humans and animal participants were found to perform poorer at memory tasks^{51,64,66}. Whereas CBD was found to have opposing effects to THC and may improve attention, working memory, and episodic memory especially in THC induced memory impaired participants^{67,68}. A systematic review on neuroimaging studies by Batalla and colleagues¹⁹ found that CBD enhanced fronto-striatal connectivity and decrease limbic activity during resting state and modulated brain activity in the hippocampus, insula, midtemporal gyrus, lingual gyrus, precuneus and precentral gyrus. The mechanism behind this is thought to be due to the antagonistic effect of CBD on cannabinoid receptors as well as how CBD can act as negative modulator of CB1 and upregulates endogenous cannabinoid by inhibiting enzymatic degradation.

There are evidences that support CBD's role in restoring homeostasis of neurotransmitters and growth factors such as brain-derived neurotropic factor (BDNF) levels that appears to also stimulate synaptic plasticity and neurogenesis⁶⁹ where considerable effects on synaptic plasticity in the hippocampus and amygdala was found in a dendritic spine data⁷⁰. Furthermore, the modulation of endogenous cannabinoid and restoring the balance of neurotransmitters could potentially play a role in the signaling of stress pathway in the

DPU มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

amygdala by decreasing the activity of the primary pathway and alleviate stress as a result^{43,71}. The change in aversive state could therefore improve memory recall and retrieval.

In conclusion, the endocannabinoids and phytocannabinoids can both improve and impair memory functions and different memory processes. This is dependent to the types and locations of cannabinoid receptors in the brain where the mechanism is through stimulations of receptors and modulation of neurotransmitters in neural plasticity and stress pathway.

2.5 Related Systematic Review

Batalla and colleagues did a systematic review in 2021¹⁹ on the impact of CBD on human brain function. The aim of this review is to provide supporting evidence using neuroimaging studies that examined the effects of CBD on human brain function. The review was conducted using PubMed as the database using the Preferred Reporting Items for Systematic Reviews and Meta-Analyses (PRISMA) guideline where studies until May 2020 were included. The following search terms or PubMed search syntax were used: ("magnetic resonance imaging"[MeSH Terms] OR "neuroimaging"[MeSH Terms]) OR "fMRI"[Title/Abstract]) OR "magnetic resonance"[Title/Abstract]) OR "blood oxygen level"[Title/Abstract]) OR "BOLD"[Title/Abstract]) OR "neuroimaging"[Title/Abstract]) OR "brain imaging"[Title/Abstract]) OR emission tomography"[Title/Abstract]) "MRI"[Title/Abstract]) OR "single photon OR "SPECT"[Title/Abstract]) OR "positron emission tomography"[Title/Abstract]) OR "PET"[Title/Abstract]) OR "MRS"[Title/Abstract]) AND "humans"[MeSH Terms]) AND (("cannabinoids"[MeSH Terms] OR "cannabidiol"[Title/Abstract]) AND "humans"[MeSH Terms]).





Figure 2.3 PRISMA Flow Diagram of The Impact of Cannabidiol on Human Brain Function: A Systematic Review ¹⁹.

Two authors screened the titles and abstracts for eligibility using the inclusion criteria of: 1). use of neuroimaging techniques and 2). administration of CBD to human subjects, in which any discrepancies were settled by the third author. 17 out of 194 studies were eligible in concordance to the inclusion criteria. The data extracted were: study information, sample characteristics, cannabinoid dose and administration route, time interval between administration and imaging, imaging modality, cognitive task and degree of sample overlap.

Population: A total of 118 participants were reported. 115 were healthy participants while 33 participants were with clinical high risk for psychosis, 13 participants with psychotic disorder, 10 with anxiety disorder and 13 with autism spectrum disorder. Both male and female were included but some studies did not report the proportion of gender. The mean and standard deviation of the age ranged from 22.4(5.0), 22.7 (5.1), 23.9 (4.2), 24.1 (4.5), 25.4 (5.2), 26.7 (5.7), 26.2 (7.1), 26.3 (7.4), 27.7 (4.6), 28.5 (6.6), 29.8 (5.1) to 31.3 (9.9) years old. Their cannabis usage status includes those who use less than 5 times in their life time to less than 3 times per week, more than 4 times per year and more than once per week.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

Intervention: 13 studies used 600 mg of CBD in oral form, 1 study used 400 mg of CBD in oral form and 2 used 10 mg of CBD in inhalation form.

Comparison: 10 studies compared the effects of CBD to a placebo whereas 7 studies compared the effects of CBD to THC. The THC route of administration in 2 studies were in the form of inhalation using 8 mg of THC and 5 studies used 10 mg of THC in oral form.

Outcome: The studies used different types of cognitive tasks to measure the outcomes. 3 studies used the Go-no go salience task, 6 used visual and auditory processing tasks, 2 used fearful face processing task, 3 used verbal learning memory task and 1 used monetary incentive task, while 6 reported CBD effects of brain function during resting state. All studies reported effects of CBD on brain function which the outcome can be categorized into three domains.

2.5.1 Effects of CBD vs. placebo on brain function in healthy participants.

During the resting state of healthy participants, CBD was found to enhanced the connectivity between the frontal lobe and striatum as well as decreasing the activity of the limbic system. The effects of CBD compared to the placebo in healthy participants was shown to modulate brain activity during cognitive tasks that processed fearful face by decreasing the connectivity between the frontal and limbic cortex, and increased the connectivity between the frontal cortex. In verbal learning task that involved memory encoding and recall, CBD was reported to modulate the activity of the insula, midtemporal gyrus, lingual gyrus, precuneus, precentral gyrus and hippocampus. However, the findings of the verbal learning task were not significant.

2.5.2 Effects of CBD vs. THC on brain function in healthy participants

CBD and THC were reported to have opposite effects during the verbal memory task (frontal lobe to striatum activity), response inhibition task and tasks involving the processing of emotion (frontal to temporal lobe activity), auditory and visual stimuli (temporal to occipital lobe activity).



2.5.3 Effects of CBD vs. placebo in participants with psychiatric disorder

Compared to healthy participants, administration of CBD in participants with Psychiatric disorder were shown to have intermediate activity in the areas of the brain involving memory and reward processing, as well as the modulation of the activity in the limbic system during cognitive tasks.



CHAPTER 3 METHODOLOGY

3.1 Eligibility criteria

To be eligible for inclusion in the reviews, the studies had to meet several criteria. Specifically, they needed to be peer-reviewed journal articles, written in English, and evaluated using the Population, Intervention, Comparison, and Outcome (PICO) framework.

- 3.1.1 Inclusion Criteria
 - (1) Population:

The participants will not be limited to species (for preclinical animal studies), race, age, gender and status of cannabis usage. The participants can be healthy individuals or those with underlying disease.

(2) Intervention:

The intervention will be administration of CBD where there is no restriction regarding the types and durations of CBD given in which this includes the types, forms of administration and dosage of CBD.

(3) Comparison:

The control group may be given a placebo, no drugs and/or THC.

(4) Outcome:

Randomized controlled trials (RCTs) with statical outcomes and analyses were to be included in this review where the outcome's measure would include or demonstrate memory performances or tasks in which types of memory will also be mentioned.

3.1.2 Exclusion Criteria

The exclusion criteria were to exclude studies with no control intervention, study protocol, case study, review, naturalistic study and discussion or review article

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

3.2 Information sources

A systematic search for relevant studies was performed on a range of database composing of EMBASE, MedLine, PubMed, PsychINFO and Sciencedirect. Search was done separately on each database using the same search terms from the time-period between 2010 and January 2023 (present). Authors of the chosen articles were contacted personally for any missing or more relevant data.

3.3 Search strategy

Separate searches were done with individual database's using the same timeperiod and search terms to validate the numbers of articles obtained and thus improving replicability. The time-period between 2010 and January 2023 (present) was chosen to include newer and more recent studies. The time-period chosen was filtered using the database's own filter tool.

The systematic review was done in two parts: a preclinical study done in animals and the review of the RCTs done in human. The search used MeSH (Medical Search Heading) terms and following keywords for the preclinical study which are "CBD" OR "cannabidiol" OR "cannabis" OR "marijuana" AND "memory" OR "recall" OR "cognition" AND "animal". Whereas, the search terms "CBD" OR "cannabidiol" OR "cannabis" OR "marijuana" AND "memory" OR "recall" OR "cognition" AND "Randomized Control Trial" or "RCT" were chosen for the human studies. The searched studies were reviewed one by one from the title and abstract by the author and selected using the eligible criteria stated above.

3.4 Selection process and data collection process

Each record was assessed independently by two reviewers (the author and Miss Lauren Rose Rowntree), who screened the title and abstract of all retrieved articles according to the eligible criteria for article selection. In cases where discrepancies arose between the reviewers, a third reviewer (Miss Sujaree Kuenghakit) was consulted for input. After the preliminary screening, the author reviewed the full text of the chosen articles and selected those that met the criteria for inclusion in the systematic review.



Figure 3.1 PRISMA 2020 flow diagram⁷².

3.5 Data collection process

Two reviewers conducted the data collection, which involved inputting the extracted data into a table designed by the author. The articles were meticulously reviewed multiple times to address any discrepancies in the data and to identify any data that may have been missed during the initial review. Additionally, the authors of the selected articles were contacted to obtain any missing data or clarify any information that was unclear.

3.6 Data items and effects measure

The data items included all the relevant outcomes for which the data retrieved will answer the aim and objectives for this systematic review. The data collected was entered into a table comprising the following data: Author / Year, Country, Study Design, Study Population, Characteristics and Size, Cannabis use and frequency, Duration of Study, Intervention and Control, Clinical Test (Memory Task) and Types of Memory (Outcome measures) and Results. The results were statistical outcomes obtained from the clinical test and memory task which would be the mean difference of the accuracy of recall and performance on the cognitive clinical test compared between the intervention and the control group. In cases where data was missing, it was recorded as "not mentioned".



3.7 Study risk of bias assessment and reporting bias assessment

The quality of the RCT studies were assessed and reported using the Cochrane's Risk of Bias taken from chapter 8 Assessing risk of bias in included studies of Cochrane Handbook for Systematic Reviews of Interventions²². The studies were also checked for any conflict of interest.

Bias	Author's Judgment
Random sequence generation (selection bias)	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
Allocation concealment (selection bias)	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
Binding of participants and personnel (performance	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
bias)	
Blinding of outcome assessment (detection bias)	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
Self-reported outcomes	
Blinding of outcome assessment (detection bias)	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
Reaction time	
Incomplete outcome data (attrition bias)	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
Selective reporting (reporting bias)	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk
Other bias	Low Risk / Unclear Risk / High Risk

Table 3.1 Cochrane's Risk of Bias²²

3.8 Ethics approval

Ethics approval was done through the office of Human Research Ethics Dhurakij Pundit University. See appendix for ethics exemption document.



CHAPTER 4 RESULTS

4.1 Preclinical Animal Studies

4.1.1 Study selection

The initial search across five databases found a combined total of 5,848 studies. This included 579 studies found in Embase, 426 in Medline, 152 in PsycINFO, 563 in PubMed, and the highest number of 4,128 in ScienceDirect. After screening the titles and abstracts, a total of 5,795 studies were excluded as duplicates and studies that were not relatable based on their title and abstract. Full-text articles of 53 potential studies were assessed for their eligibility and the total of 48 preclinical studies were eligible and included in this review (see figure 4.1 for flow of studies). Two studies with no memory as outcome measures were excluded^{73,74}. Three were excluded as they were commentary article⁷⁵, review article⁷⁶ and poster presentation⁷⁷.





Figure 4.1 Flow of Studies for Preclinical Animal Studies.

4.1.2 Study characteristics

The animal models consisted of a few different species ranging from rodent to mammals which are mice, rats and monkeys. Nineteen studies^{70,78–95}used mice as study models and two studies^{96,97} used offspring of mice bred together to represent developmental exposure conditions. Fifteen studies^{8,81,89,98–109} used Wistar rats as their model. Sprague Dawley rat models were used in seven studies^{110–116} and two studies^{117,118}

DPU <u>อหบรลหมู คบพอเร บพเพระระกา</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

used offspring of Sprague Dawley rats. One study¹¹⁹ used Squirrel Monkey while one study¹²⁰ used Rhesus Monkey as their model. The animal models represented various cognitive impairment conditions which were induced by gene mutations or introduction of causative agents. Nine studies modeled dementia with Alzheimer (AD)'s disease and Frontotemporal Dementia (FTD) induced by mutations that expressed pathology in amyloid accumulation and plaque formation (APPxPS1 model, n = 6)^{86–88,90,93,95}, tau protein hyperphosphorylation and neurofibrillary tangles (NFTs) formation (n = 2)^{91,94}; and impairment caused by intracerebroventricular injection of Streptomycin (n = 1)⁸. One study⁸⁹ applied ovariectomy to model memory impairment caused by estrogen depletion. Neurodegenerative condition of one study was modeled using iron ingestion¹²¹.

Schizophrenia-like condition and Psychotomimetic behavior were induced by Nmethyl-D-aspartate (NMDA) receptor antagonist (n = 3)^{82,92,116}, ketamine injection (n = 1)¹¹⁴ and prenatal injection of polyinosinic-polycytidilic acid (poly I:C; n = 2)^{117,118}. Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) model was used one study⁹⁶. Transient Global Cerebral Ischemia (TGCI) model, by four vessels occlusion, represent ischemia-induced memory deficit in one study⁹⁸. A model of Status Epilepticus-Spontaneous Recurrent Seizure (RISE-SRS) of chronic temporal lobe epilepsy (TLE) in one study⁹⁹ was induced by using a modified version of the lithium-low dose pilocarpine.

A long-term cognitive impairment model from chronic drug use of methamphetamine (METH) was used in one study¹⁰⁰, while three^{79,83,102} studies represent drug addiction memory processes using cocaine and morphine. One study⁸⁰ modeled the mice with post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) and one study¹²² used Fragile X syndrome to represent cognitive impairment.

One study⁸⁵ modeled Adenosine (A_{2A}) receptor deficiency in mice to further demonstrate the mechanism and receptor involved in CBD activity. Twenty-one studies^{70,78,81,83,84,101,103-113,115,119,120,123} used non-disease animal models while one study⁹⁷ also used non-disease animal models but the intervention was exposed during developmental period. The study characteristics of the animal models and their conditions are summarized in table 4.1.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

4.1.3 Routes of administrations and dosage of CBD and duration of intervention Many studies used more than one dosage and route of administration of CBD to compare its effects in memory and cognitive performance. The most common route of administration was intraperitoneal injection with thirty-six^{8,70,78-86,89-98,101,103-105,107-110,113,114,117,118,121-123} studies using this method and the dosage of CBD used ranged between 1 to 120 mg/kg with 10 mg/kg as the most common dosage (1 mg/dl, n = 5; 1.875 mg/dl, n = 1; 2.5 mg/dl, n = 1; 3 mg/dl, n = 5; 3.75 mg/dl, n = 1; 5 mg/dl, n = 6; 7.5 mg/dl, n = 1; 10 mg/dl, n = 18; 15 mg/dl, n = 1; 20 mg/dl, n = 6; 30 mg/dl, n = 7; 50 mg/dl, n = 4; 60 mg/dl, n = 1; 100 mg/dl, n = 2; 120 mg/dl, n = 1). The second most common route is intracranial administration, although the locations of injection were different among studies. Intra-cerebroventricular injection was done in one study¹⁰⁰ with the dosage of 32 and 160 nmol (converted to 10.063 and 50.315 μ g using the molecular weight of 314.47 g/mol for CBD). One study¹¹⁶ injected 10, 100, 500 ng/0.5 μ l (0.02, 0.2 and 1 μ g/ μ l) of CBD into the prefrontal cortex (intra-PFC), while two other studies injected 100 ng/0.5 μ l¹¹⁵ (0.2 μ g/ μ l) and 2 μ g/ μ l¹⁰⁶ of CBD. Three studies¹⁰³⁻¹⁰⁵ studied the effects of intra-dorsal hippocampus (DH)'s injection of CBD using the dosage of 9.4 μ g/side, 30 nmol (9.4341 μ g), and 10 or 30 pmol (3.1447 and 9.4341 μ g) respectively. Intra-ventral hippocampal injection of 10 and 100 ng (0.01 - 0.1 μ g) of CBD was examined in one study¹¹⁰.

Injection of CBD into the shell region of the mesolimbic nucleus accumbens (intra-NASh) was studied in one study¹¹² using the dosage of 1, 10, 100 ng/0.5 μ l (0.002, 0.02, 0.2 μ g/ μ l). Four studies^{87,88,99,111} administered CBD orally using 20 mg gel pellet (n = 2), 200 mg mixed with drinking water (n = 1) and 50 mg/kg of CBD's extraction from Strawberry Kush (*Cannabis indica* and *Cannabis sativa* hybrid; n =1). Two studies^{119,120} injected CBD muscularly using the dosage of 0.5 and 3 mg/kg, and one¹⁰² subcutaneously at 5 and 10 mg/kg. There were twenty-six studies^{70,78,79,81-85,101-113,115,116,120,122,123} testing acute effects of CBD as CBD was given for the duration of one day but with different time frame to either before or after memory conditioning and/or cognitive tests to test different stages of memory. Eight studies studied subacute effects of CBD from six (n = 1)¹¹⁴, seven (n = 1)⁸, ten (n = 2)^{96,100} and fourteen days (n = 4)^{89,90,98,121}. Chronic effects of CBD were studied in fourteen studies with the duration of intervention ranging from three weeks (n =
7)^{80,86,92,95,97,117,118}, five weeks $(n = 1)^{94}$, seven weeks $(n = 2)^{91,93}$, ten weeks $(n = 1)^{99}$, four months $(n = 1)^{119}$ to eight months $(n = 2)^{87,88}$.

The CBD were supplied by THC Pharma GmbH (Germany, n = 19)^{78,79,83,86–88,91,92,94,95,98,101,105–107,117,118,121,123}, Biosynthesis Pharma Group (UK; n = 5)^{8,89,101,103,104}, Tocris Bioscience (UK & USA, n = 7)^{82,85,102,110,112,115,116}, STI Pharmaceuticals (UK, n = 1)⁸⁰, HPLC (China, n = 1)⁸¹, Phytoplant Research Ltd. (Spain, n = 2)^{96,105}, Cayman Chemical Company (USA, n = 2)^{97,120}, Cannabidiol Ltd. (Ireland, n = 1)⁹⁰, National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) of USA (n = 2)^{113,119}, GW Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (UK, n = 2)^{93,99}, National Measurement Institute of Australia (n = 1)¹²², combination of THC Pharma GmbH and STI Pharmaceuticals (n = 1)¹²¹ and University of Ottawa (Canada, n = 1)¹¹¹. Three studies^{70,84,100} did not mention their source of CBD.

4.1.4 Outcome measures used and types of Memories

Multiple behavioral and cognitive tests were used in the animal studies to assess various types and stages of memory processing. The tests employed to assess object recognition memory included the Novel Object Recognition Test (NORT; n = 13)^{8,85,86,88,90,93,95,96,100,114,117,118,121}, Novel Object Location Task (NOLT; n = 2) ^{96,98}, Spontaneous Oddity Discrimination (SOD) test (n = 1)¹¹⁵, and a Touch Screen Based Cognitive Test (n = 1)¹¹⁹. While social recognition memory was tested using Social Preference Test (SPT; n = 5)^{86,87,91,94,122}. Spatial memory was tested using Cheeseboard (CB) test (n = 4)^{88,91,93,95}, 8-arm Aversive Radial Maze (n = 1)⁹⁸, rewarded T Maze (n = 2)^{117,118}, Y-Maze (n = 5)^{92,96,100,116,122}, Barnes Maze (n = 1)⁹⁷, Hole-Board Apparatus (n = 1)⁹⁹, Visuospatial Paired Associates Learning (vsPAL; n = 1)¹²⁰ and Self-Ordered Spatial Search (SOSS) Task (n = 1)¹²⁰.

Attention Test Shifting was used to test for working memory $(n = 1)^{116}$. Fear associated memory was conditioned and tested using Fear Conditioning (FC) paradigm $(n = 24)^{70,78,80,81,84,86-88,91,93,94,101,103-113,123}$, Avoidance Task $(n = 5)^{82,89,92,121,122}$ and Latent Inhibition procedure $(n = 1)^{115}$. Conditioned Place Preference (CPP; $n = 4)^{79,83,102,110}$ and Conditioned Place Aversion (CPA; $n = 1)^{102}$ were used to test drug associated memory and addiction.

DPU <u>DHURAKI) PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

4.1.5 Results of individual studies

(1) Effects of CBD on Object and Social Recognition Memory

Eight studies showed improvement and reversal of both object^{8,86,90,95,121} and social^{86,87,91,94} recognition memory, as well as a protective effect when mice and rats modeled for dementia (Alzheimer's disease (AD) and frontotemporal dementia (FTD)) were given CBD treatment; with the study done by Fagherazzi and colleagues¹²¹ demonstrating a dose dependent effect of CBD where CBD treatment at a higher dose of 10 mg/kg is able to recover recognition memory deficit in rats with iron-induced dementia. However, Watt and colleagues⁹³ found no significant difference in memory performance, all of their AD's model mice demonstrated intact sociability and social recognition memory. Chestworth et al.⁸⁸ arrived at a similar conclusion, but in reverse, their control mice failed to demonstrate novel object recognition, thus comparison of groups cannot be concluded. CBD treatment in animals modeled with schizophrenia-like cognitive deficit resulted in improvement of object recognition memory^{117,118} where animals were shown to spend more time with a novel object instead of a familiar object.

Kozela and colleagues¹¹⁴ did further test to demonstrate that acute CBD treatment prevented object recognition memory deficit in schizophrenia-like model, while sub-chronic treatment reversed object recognition memory deficit. CBD treatment were also found to reduced object recognition memory deficit in ischemia-induced⁹² and drug-induced (Cocaine and Meth) cognitive impairment models^{83,100}, with Razavi and colleagues'¹⁰⁰ study also demonstrating the dose dependent mechanism of CBD where CBD at a higher dosage of 160 nmol were shown to be effective in reversing the deficit but not at 32 nmol. However, CBD treatments were found to have no effect on recognition memory in studies done by García-Baos and colleagues⁹⁶ and Zieba colleagues¹²² where their animals were modeled for FASD and Fragile X syndromes. Two studies with non-disease animal models compared the memory performance of CBD when co-administered with THC and found contradicting results with Aso and colleagues⁸⁵ showed that CBD diminished Δ 9-THC-induced cognitive impairment, whereas, Withey and colleagues¹¹⁹ found that CBD did not modulate THC effects on object recognition memory in their animals. Furthermore, Aso et al.⁸⁵ also noted in their findings that CBD alone in non-diseased animals did not have a significant effect on

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

memory. Interestingly, Szkudlarek and colleagues¹¹⁵ found that intra-PFC injection of CBD impaired object recognition memory in comparison to systematic injection.

(2) Effects of CBD on Spatial Memory and Working Memory

Four studies showed preventive and restoration effect of CBD treatment on spatial memory deficit in animals modeled for dementia^{88,91,94,95}. CBD treatment also showed improvement in spatial memory in animals with cognitive deficit induced by FASD-like⁹⁶, Schizophrenia-like¹¹⁷, TGCl⁹², SRS⁹⁹ and Meth¹⁰⁰. Further evaluation from Razavi and colleagues¹⁰⁰ demonstrated dose dependent mechanism of CBD where 160 nmol was found to be more effective than 32 nmol in improving spatial memory deficit. CBD treatment was shown to increase the rate of spatial learning in a study done by Kaplan and colleague⁹⁷. Wright and colleagues¹²⁰ had found contradicting results in their study with CBD co-administered with THC was effective in improving memory performance in one task (vsPAL) but not the other (SOSS) where both tasks tested for spatial memory. Two studies showed failure of CBD treatment to improve spatial memory deficit in schizophrenia-like model¹¹⁸ and mice modeled for Fragile X syndrome¹²². However, Szkudlarek and colleagues¹¹⁶ found deteriorating effect of CBD treatment on both spatial and working memory when injected into the intra-PFC.

(3) Effects of CBD on Fear Associated Memory

Five studies have reported positive outcomes of CBD treatment in reducing the formation and expression of fear memory, leading to a decrease in freezing behavior. These studies include Assare et al.⁷⁸, Kreilaus et al.⁹¹, Montaya et al.⁸⁴, Norris et al.¹¹², and Szkudlarek et al.¹¹⁵. Notably, Norris et al.¹¹² demonstrated a dose-dependent effect of intra-NASH injection of CBD, with a dosage of more than 10 ng showing efficacy. Additionally, CBD treatments have shown to improve long-lasting fear-related memory and anxiety-like behaviors in PTSD modeled mice⁸⁰ and were found to counteract THC's effect in increasing fear associated memory and behaviors¹¹⁰.

Several other studies explored the effects of CBD on fear associated memory deeper in regard to the different phrases of memory and timing of CBD administration. The different phrases of memory included memory consolidation, reconsolidation, extinction and reinstatement. In terms of memory consolidation, three studies demonstrated impairment of memory consolidation when CBD was administered^{105,106,109}.

DPU มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

Raymundi et al.¹⁰⁵ found the effect of window period where intra-DH CBD treatment shown to be effective when given immediately and at 1 hour after conditioning but no effect on consolidation when given at 3 hours after conditioning. Additionally, they found decreased expression of Arc protein in DH and the effect of CBD were dependent on different receptors where the effect was disrupted by blocking CB1 and CB2 receptors, partly disrupted by 5-HT_{1A} and A_{2A} antagonist and unaffected by PPAR**Y** receptor antagonist. In their study, Rossignoli and colleagues¹⁰⁶ also demonstrated the effect of window period but their study show the effective period of 3 to 6 hours which is in contrast to Raymundi et al.'s¹⁰⁵ study. However, their study showed similar effect of protein expression where there was a decreased in the expression of c-fos and zif-268 protein in the hippocampus, PFC, and thalamus, as well as a reduction in dopamine (DA) released in the cortico-limbic circuits.

Similarly, Stern et al.¹⁰⁹ found the effective period of CBD administration to be less than six hours and that the effect was mediated by activation of CB1 and CB2 receptors. Six studies found that CBD treatment impaired memory reconsolidation^{101,103,104,107,108,111}. Franzen and colleagues¹⁰³ found the effect of CBD to be dose dependent (3.0 and 10 mg/kg) where local (intra-DH) and systematic (intraperitoneal) administration produced the same effect in impairing memory reconsolidation. Additionally, Franzen and colleagues¹⁰⁴ found that the impairment of memory reconsolidation was through CB1 receptors where local (intra-DH) and systematic (intraperitoneal) administration produced the same effect. The finding of CB1 receptor dependent mechanism was also found in the study done by Bayer and colleagues¹⁰¹. In their study, Murkar and colleagues¹¹¹ found the effect of CBD to be long lasting (7 days) and combination of CBD and THC in Plant BM also reduced fear memory reconsolidation. Stern et al.¹⁰⁷ also demonstrated dose dependent effect where 10 mg/kg was most effective in disrupting memory reconsolidation and CB1 receptor dependent mechanism, moreover their study revealed a window period effect of less than 6 hours.

Regarding fear memory extinction and reinstatement, the study done by Song et al.¹²³ and Montaya et al.⁸⁴ showed that extinction was enhanced from reduced fear memory expression, on the other hand Franzen et al.'s¹⁰⁴ study fear associated memory did not show reinstatement. Song et al.¹²³ also found that even though extinction was enhanced, it was enhanced with strong conditioning and weaker conditioning showed that

CBD treatment impaired extinction with increased freezing expression. Two studies demonstrated CBD treatment improved all phases of fear associated memory where Han et al.⁸¹ found that CBD treatment was effective at 10 mg/kg and 30 mg/kg was found from the study done by Kruk-Slomka and Biala⁸².

In contrast to the studies above, seven studies found that CBD treatment had no effect on fear associated memory^{86,87,93,94,113,121,122} and one study revealed increased freezing behavior and enhanced fear memory⁷⁰. A study done by Corre and colleagues⁸⁹ found that CBD treatment can restore fear memory that was impaired by ovariectomy in mice modeled for dementia from estrogen depletion.

(4) Effects of CBD on Drug Associated Memory and Addiction

CBD treatment was shown to reduce context preference in drug associated memory in two studies^{79,102} where the study done by Chesworth and Karl⁷⁹ demonstrated a lasting effect at 20 days after CBD treatment cessation. Hudson and colleagues¹¹⁰ found that that coadministration of CBD and THC counteracted the morphine preference that was increased by THC. Diverse results were shown in regards to the consolidation, reconsolidation, extinction and reinstatement of drug associated memory. Ledesma and colleagues⁸³ found that while CBD treatment prevent reinstatement of drug associated memory, it did not affect the acquisition, expression or extinction of CPP.

de Carvalho and Naoto Takahashi¹⁰² demonstrated that CBD treatment can impaired reconsolidation and prevent reinstatement of drug associated memory. Whereas, Chesworth and Karl⁷⁹ found that while CBD treatment impaired consolidation, it did not affect reconsolidation, extinction, or reinstatement of drug associated memory.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

4.2 Human's RCT studies

4.2.1 Study selection

The initial search across five databases found a combined total of 5,433 studies. There were 145 studies from Embase, 98 studies from Medline, 46 studies from PsycINFO, 258 studies from PubMed and 4,886 studies from ScienceDirect. After screening the titles and abstracts, a total of 5,419 studies were excluded as duplicates and studies that were not relatable based on their title and abstract. Full-text articles of 14 potential studies were assessed for their eligibility and the total of 12 RCT studies were eligible and included in this review (see figure 4.2 for flow of studies). One study with no memory as outcome measures were excluded¹²⁴ and one study were excluded as it was a pseudorandomized study¹²⁵.



Figure 4.2 Flow of Studies for Human's RCT Studies.

DPU <u>DHURAKIJ PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

4.2.2 Study characteristics

There was a total of 570 patients, aged between 18 and 48 years old. The twelve studies originated from UK (n = 6)^{67,126-130}, Germany (n =2)^{131,132}, USA (n = 1)¹³³, Switzerland (n = 1)¹³⁴, Canada (n = 1)¹³⁵ and a collaboration between UK, Romania and Poland (n =1)¹³⁶. The study population in five studies were classified healthy participants^{67,127,128,132,134}. Participants with psychological disorder were recruited in seven studies where the phycological disorders were medication-naïve Clinical High-Risk (CHR) of Psychosis¹²⁶, Chronic Schizophrenia¹³³, Acute paranoid Schizophrenia¹³¹, Schizophrenia or related psychotic disorder defined by DSM-IV¹³⁶, Psychosis defined by DSM-IV¹³⁶, Schizotypal Personality Disorder¹²⁹ and Cocaine Use Disorder (CUD)¹³⁵. The majority of the studied population were male with (68% of population) with one study consisted of only male participants¹³².

A characteristic of the population that was worth mentioning was history of cannabis usage and frequency. There was only one study¹²⁷ with cannabis and CBD naïve participants and only two studies with no information on cannabis status^{131,133}. In the study done by Bhattacharyya and colleague¹²⁶, the majority of their participants were lifetime users in the CBD (94%) and placebo group (100%) and are still current users in the CBD (44%) and placebo group (41%). There were about 29% cannabis users from Das et al.'s¹²⁸ study, in which the mean and standard deviation of cannabis days ranged from 0.75 \pm 0.5, 1.75 \pm 2.22 and 3.17 \pm 3.82 days. In Englund and colleagues' ⁶⁷ study, the previous cannabis episodes of CBD group and placebo group were 137 \pm 234 and 118 \pm 218 respectively. The frequency of annual cannabis consumption for Hotz et al.'s¹³⁴ participants were 2.24 \pm 3.2 and with the range 0 –12 times. In their study, McGuire and colleague¹³⁶ did not mention the frequency of CBD usage but there were 3.4% participants with positive baseline urine THC test. Morgan et al.¹²⁹ recruited cannabis users as their participants and categorized their participants into light (1 - 24 days per month, n = 50%) and heavy user (25+ days per month, n = 50%). In the study done by O'neil and colleague¹³⁰, 15 of their participants in PSY group were lifetime users and 9 were current regular users but there was no information on the healthy control group.

While there was no information provided on the participants' cannabis status in Rizkallah et al.'s¹³⁵ study, there were 12.8% of participants that had a cannabis use disorder. In their study, Woelfl et al.¹³² reported the cannabis lifetime use as median and 0, 25, 75,

DPU มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

100 percentiles of number of participants with: PLA/PLA = 3 (1, 2, 4, 5), CBD/PLA = 6 (2, 4, 8, 10), PLA/THC = 6 (6, 6, 6, 7) and CBD/THC = 5 (4, 4, 5, 6). The characteristics and size of the participants and the cannabis status of the included studies are summarized in table 4.2.

4.2.3 Routes of administrations and dosage of CBD and duration of intervention

Nine studies used oral form of CBD as their intervention with six studies used 600 mg capsule^{67,126,127,130,131,133}, two studies used 800 mg capsule^{132,135}, and one study used 1,000 mg of CBD in oral solution¹³⁶. The other alternative route of administration was inhalation of vaporized CBD where three studies employed this technique^{128,129,134}. Eight studies compared the effect of CBD with placebo^{126-128,130,133-136} and one study tested the effect of CBD and placebo on THC⁶⁷. One study compared the effect of CBD with the antipsychotic, Amisulpride (AMI)¹³¹. Lastly, two studies had four intervention groups which are CBD, THC, CBD + THC and placebo control^{129,132}.

Five studies administered CBD one time before cognitive test where CBD was given three hours prior in three studies^{126,127,130}, 205 mins (3.42 hours) prior in one study¹³² and 210 mins (3.5 hours) in one study⁶⁷. For studies that employed vaporization of CBD as route of administration, CBD was inhaled before cognitive test in one study¹²⁹, before and after conditioning in one study¹²⁸, and 15 mins after words learning and immediate recall in one study¹³⁴. Four studies examined a more long-term effect of CBD where CBD was administered for 4 weeks¹³¹, 6 weeks^{133,136} and 92 days (13.15 weeks)¹³⁵.

The CBD were supplied by STI Pharmaceuticals (UK, n = 5)^{67,127,128,132,133}, THC Pharma (Germany, n = 2)^{126,130}, PharmaHemp (Slovenia, n = 1)¹³⁴. Four studies did not mention their source of CBD^{129,131,135,136}.

4.2.4 Outcome measures used and types of Memories

Each RCT study employed several cognitive tasks to test different types of memory. Episodic memory was tested using: Verbal Paired Associate (VPA) learning tasks (verbal memory; n = 2)^{126,130}, Rivermead Behavioural Memory Test (prose recall; n = 1)¹²⁷, Verbal Learning Task (verbal memory; n = 2)^{67,134}, Auditory Verbal Learning Test (AVLT; verbal memory; n = 1)¹³¹, The Rey-Osterrieth Complex Figure Test (ROFT; visual memory; n = 1)¹³¹ and Delayed Prose Recall (n = 1)¹²⁹. Working memory was tested using: N-back task (spatial memory; n = 3)^{127,129,134}, The Digit Span task (n = 2)^{67,127}, MATRICS Consensus Cognitive Battery (MCCB, n = 1)¹³³, The Letter Number Sequencing (STM capacity; n = 2)^{131,132}, Subject

Ordered Pointing Task $(n = 1)^{131}$, Delayed Response Task (spatial memory; $n = 1)^{131}$, and Cambridge Neuropsychological Test Automated Battery (CANTAB): Pattern Recognition Memory $(n = 1)^{135}$. One study¹³⁶ used Brief Assessment of Cognition in Schizophrenia (BACS) composite score which tested both episodic and working memory. One study¹²⁸ employed Fear Conditioning (FC) paradigm to test for fear associated memory.

4.2.5 Risk of bias in studies

This study employed the Cochrane risk of bias tool (ROBIN-II;)¹³⁷ to examine the risk of bias of each RCT studies included in the systematic review. The analysis was divided into five different domains that assessed: Bias arising from the randomization process (D1), Bias due to deviation from intended intervention (D2), Bias due to missing outcome data (D3), Bias in measurement of the outcome (D4) and Bias in selection of the reported result (D5). Seven studies were classified as low risk^{126,129,130,132,134–136}, three studies revealed some concern^{67,127,133} and two studies were considered as high risk¹³¹. See figure 4.3 for traffic light plot and figure 4.4 for summary plot.

The concern in bias was raised from the D5 domain in the study done by and colleague¹²⁷ which was due to the multiple outcome measurements (different cognitive tests) to test memory performance. However, because the different tests measured different types of memory which was in accordance with the secondary objective in determining the associations of cerebral blood flow with different memory tasks, the bias was considered as some concern in how the results would be reported. In Boggs et al.'s¹³³ study, there were some concerns in the D2 domain where a participant withdrew from experiencing side effects that were specific to CBD treatment. Nevertheless, preliminary considerations were not breached and could not have influenced intervention group assignment. There was some concern in the study done by Englund and colleagues⁶⁷ as their study revealed three subjects that failed to follow the protocol (failure of IV cannulation) but appropriate analysis was used.

The high risk in bias for Das et al.'s¹²⁸ study was due to several different domains. There was some concern from a baseline difference between intervention group with participants in the pre-extinction group having more recent tobacco use in which the difference could have an effect on the pharmacology of CBD. There was also a failure to implement the protocol which could have affected the outcome where some data were

lost due to equipment failure and failure of participants to make response during tasks. The post hoc power calculation was used to assess the impact of missing data. The missing data in some intervention groups exceed 95% which was excluded from the analysis. There was no evidence that the result would not be biased and the power was stated to be compromised but not too overly. While there were multiple outcome measurements, the objective of the study was to examine the fear conditioning paradigm and different phases of memories involved.

In Leweke and colleagues^{,131} research, there were several concerns raised that \resulted in a suggestion for high risk in bias. The total amount of intervention was reduced from 800 to 600 mg per day in some participants due to unwanted side effects which resulted in unstandardized total amount of intervention used. While the reduction of the dosage was justified for clinical and safety reasons, this raised a notion of awareness in the participants and researcher of assigned intervention and assert a risk of bias in this domain. Thirty-three participants out of forty-two completed the protocol, thus the availability of data was below 95%.

There was no information about the missingness and how the true value was affected. It was also noted the type I error (alpha) was not adjusted for multiplicity due to the explorative nature of the study and that the results needed to be interpreted carefully by the researcher.



				Risk of bia	s domains		
		D1	D2	D3	D4	D5	Overall
	Bhattacharyya et al. (2018)	+	+	+	+	+	+
	Bloomfield et al. (2020)	+	+	+	+	-	-
	Boggs et al. (2018)	+	-	+	+	+	-
	Das et al. (2013)	-	-	X	+	-	X
	Englund et al. (2013)	+	-	+	+	+	-
ldy	Hotz et al. (2021)	+	+	+	+	+	+
Str	Leweke et al. (2021)	+	X	X	+	-	X
	McGuire et al. (2017)	+	+	+	+	+	+
	Morgan et al. (2018)	+	+	+	+	+	+
	O'neil et al. (2019)	+	+	+	+	+	+
	Rizkallah et al. (2022)	+	+	+	+	+	+
	Woelfl et al. (2020)	+	+	+	+	+	+
		Judge	Judgement				
		. 🗙 H	High				
	- 9	Some concerns					

Bias in measurement of the outcome.

D5: Bias in selection of the reported result.

Figure 4.3 Risk of Bias Traffic light Plot.

Low





DPU <u>DHURAKI) PUNDIT UNIVERSITY</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

4.2.6 Results of individual studies

(1) Effects of CBD on Episodic Memory

In regards to episodic memory, Hotz and colleague¹³⁴ found a significant effect of CBD treatment in verbal episodic memory (words recall) using Verbal Learning Task when compared to the placebo. The positive effect of CBD on episodic memory was also supported by a study done by Leweke and colleagues¹³¹ which found improvement in visual episodic memory recall using ROFT, however, their study also demonstrated no effect of CBD treatment on auditory verbal memory recall through AVLT. Even though there was an improvement in overall composite score of BACS utilized by McGuire et al.¹³⁶, the difference was not significant and there was no effect in verbal episodic memory. Similarly, the studies done by Bhattacharyya et al.¹²⁶, Bloomfield et al.¹²⁷ and O'neil et al.¹³⁰ also found no effect on episodic memory performance. However, it is important to note that while there was no effect on the task performance in the later three studies, there were correlations between CBD treatment and brain activities.

There was a significant correlation between total recall and the level of left parahippocampal activation, as well as an intermediate level of activation in brain areas involved in memory (parahippocampal gyrus/midbrain) in healthy participants¹²⁶. In participants with psychosis or related disorder, CBD treatment showed significant increase in CBF in the hippocampus¹²⁷ and attenuation of dysfunctionality in prefrontal activation and hippocampal-striatal functional connectivity¹³⁰.

(2) Effects of CBD on Working Memory

Bloomfield and colleagues¹²⁷ demonstrated decreased reaction time in working memory task and increased CBF in orbitofrontal cortex (ORF) which suggested that CBD may have an effect in working memory performance. Nevertheless, most of the studies found no effect of CBD treatment on working memory of both spatial and non-spatial domains where CBD treated groups did not have better performance compared to their control^{131,133–136}.

(3) Effects of CBD on Fear Associated Memory

There was only one study by Das and colleague¹²⁸ which also claimed to be the first study that examined the effect of CBD on fear associated memory in Human's RCT. CBD treatment showed decreased fear expression during recall and reinstatement, and enhanced extinction of fear memory. It was found that CBD treatment given at postextinction demonstrated lower response to extinction context which led to generalized attenuation of explicit fearful response during recall and reinstatement. There was also a trend level reduction in reinstatement of autonomic contextual responding when given preand post-extinction, suggesting potential CBD effect in the potentiation of extinction memory consolidation.

(4) Effects of CBD on THC induced memory impairment

Three studies^{67,129,132} examined the effect of CBD on THC induced memory impairment. All three studies showed detrimental effects of THC where THC impaired cognitive performance on both working and episodic memory but found contradicting results for CBD. Englund and colleagues⁶⁷ found that pre-treatment with CBD had a protective effect against THC on episodic memory but not on working memory where participants had better delayed recall in Verbal Learning Task, but no significant difference in Digit-Span task. Both studies done by Morgan et al.¹²⁹ and Woelfl et al.¹³² revealed that CBD treatment did not improve the cognitive impairment induced by THC.

(4) Adverse events

Seven studies out of twelve reported adverse events from their participants ^{67,126,129,132–134,136}. There was no serious adverse event or side effect that was resolved without intervention where the CBD and placebo group showed similar rate of occurrence and events. Reported adverse events were: sedation¹³³, mild headache and abdominal pain¹³⁴, diarrhea and nauseas¹³⁶. Additionally, pre-treatment with CBD decreased the proportion of participants experiencing psychosis induced by THC⁶⁷. There was one case of exacerbation of Schizophrenia but it was reported in the placebo group¹³⁶.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Aso et	Mice,	23 male mice	- Memory	Intraperitoneal	- Two-	- Object	- CBD diminished THC-
al.	C57BL/	were	task was	injection of:	Object	recognitio	induced impairment
(2019) ⁸⁵	6J with	randomly	done in 24	- CBD: 3 mg/kg	Recognition	n memory.	through adenosine
,	A _{2A}	assigned n =	hours after	(from Tocris 9	Test.		receptor dependent
Spain	recepto	5–8 per	interventio	BioScience; Bristol,			mechanism.
Spain	r (A _{2A} R)	group.	n.	UK). Dissolved in			- THC (3 mg/kg)
	deficien	- Vehicle		5% ethanol, 5%			significantly reduced
	t (A., R⁻	group		Tween and 90%			recognition memory (p <
	(- CBD group		saline.			0.01) and was reversed
	/-).	- THC group		- THC: 1 and 3			with the selective $\ensuremath{CB_1R}$
		- CBD + THC		mg/kg, (from			antagonist SR141716A (1
		group		Sigma-Aldrich			mg/kg; p < 0.05).
				Química SL; Madrid,			- Co-administration of
				Spain). Dissolved in			CBD with THC diminished
				5% ethanol, 5%			memory impairment.

Table 4.1 Summary Table of the Characteristics of Preclinical Animal Studies.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
				Tween and 90%			Two-way ANOVA [F(1,25)
				saline.			= 11.09, p < 0.01] &
				- CB1R antagonist			Three-way ANOVA with
				SR141716A: 1			antagonist and THC +
				mg/kg (from Tocris			CBD [F(1,98) = 16.81, p <
				9 BioScience;			0.001].
				Bristol, UK).			- CBD was still able to
				Dissolved in 5%			diminished THC induced
				ethanol, 5% Tween			impairment when
				and 90% saline.			administered with KW-
				- Selective A _{2A} R			6002 (0.1 mg/kg; p <
				antagonists			0.05), while administering
				SCH442416: 0.1			with SCH442416 (0.1
				mg/kg, and KW-			mg/kg) significantly
				6002: 0.1 mg/kg			reduced CBD effect on
				(from Tocris			THC-induced memory



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
				9 BioScience;			impairment (p < 0.01).
				Bristol, UK).			Thus, suggesting the
				Dissolved in 1%			involvement of A _{2A} R.
				DMSO.			- CBD alone did not have
				- In all cases, the			significant effect on
				volume			memory.
				administered was			
				10 ml/kg body			
				weight.			
Assare	- Male	Mice were	- CBD or	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment
et al.	C57BL/	randomly	CBDA was	injection of:	conditioning	memory	disrupted cued fear
(2020) ⁷⁸	бJ	assigned into	injected	- CBD: 1, 10, 30,		(Fear	memory's expression
,	mice.	treatment	24 hours	and 100 mg/kg		associated	while CBDA did not.
Australi		group. (N =	after	(from THC Pharma		memory).	Additionally, CBD did not
а			conditioni	GmbH; Germany).			affect generalized



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		10 –17 per	ng and	Dissolved in			anxiety-related behavior
		group)	prior to	ethanol, Tween 80			induced by trauma, while
		- Nonshock-	assessmen	and 0.9% NaCl. The			CBDA did. Therefore, CBD
		vehicle (NS-	t.	ratio by volume of			and CBDA demonstrated
		VEH) group		1:1:18 of Tween			opposing effects.
		- Shock-		80:ethanol:saline			- There was a main effect
		vehicle (S-		was used.			of CBD on freezing
		VEH) group		- CBDA: 0.1, 1, 10,			behaviour [F(4,45) = 3.23,
		- S-CBD1		and 30 mg/kg.			p = 0.025]. Dunnett's
		group		(purified from			post-hoc analyses
		- S-CBD10		hemp extract).			showed that S-CBD30
		group		Dissolved in			group had significantly
		- S-CBD30		ethanol, Tween 80			reduced freezing time
		group		and 0.9% NaCl. The			compared to S-VEH (p <
		- S-CBD100		ratio by volume of			0.01).
		group		1:1:18 of Tween			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- S-CBDA0.1		80:ethanol:saline			- CBD or CBDA had no
		group		was used.			effects on the expression
		- S-CBDA1		(Cannabidiolic acid			of contextual fear
		group		(CBDA) is the acidic			memory when re-
		- S-CBDA10		precursor to CBD)			exposed to conditioned
		group		- Vehicle group was			stimuli (p > 0.05).
		- S-CBDA30		administered			
		group		similarly without			
				addition of CBD.			
				- In all cases, the			
				volume			
				administered was			
				10 ml/kg body			
				weight.			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Bayer	- Male	Mice were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD has the potential
et al.	Wistar	assigned into	n was	injection of:	conditioning	memory	to impair reconsolidatior
(2022) ¹⁰	rats.	groups	given after	- CBD: 10 mg/kg		(Fear	of destabilized aversive
¹ , Brazil		according to	reactivatio	(99.9% purified		associated	memories specifically in
		different	n session.	from BSPG Pharm,		memory).	the dorso-ventral axis of
		experiment.		Sanwich, UK).			the medial prefrontal
		Experiment 1:		Dissolved in NaCl			cortex and this effect
		- Non-		0.9% containing 5%			relies on the activation
		reactivated		of polyoxyethylene			of CB1 receptors.
		(neutral		sorbitan			Experiment 1:
		exposure)		monooleate			Intraperitoneal injection
		group, N = 3		- In all cases, the			of CBD reduced the
		- Vehicle-		volume			activity-associated
		activated		administered was			plasticity in the AC
		(vehicle		1.0 ml/kg body			[F(2,10) = 18.7; p =
		treated and		weight.			0.0004; n ² = 0.79] and P



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		conditioned		Infused			cortex [F(2,10) = 51.9; p
		exposure)		intracranially into			= 0.00001; η ² = 0.91]
		group, N = 5		the mPFC:			during the
		- CBD-		- CBD: 30 pmol			reconsolidation of
		reactivated		(99.9% purified			contextual fear memory.
		(CBD treated		from BSPG Pharm,			Reactivation of fear
		and		Sanwich, UK).			memory increased the
		conditioned		Dissolved in NaCl			expression of cells in the
		exposure)		0.9% containing 5%			AC and PL cortex, but
		group, N = 5		of polyoxyethylene			the CBD group showed
		Experiment 2:		sorbitan			lower expression in AC (p
		four groups		monooleate			= 0.03) and PL cortex (p
		(N = 9 -		- AM251 (CB1			= 0.00002) compared to
		12/group)		receptor			the vehicle group.
		- Intra-AC-		antagonism/inverse			- Experiment 2: CBD
		Vehicle group		agonist <i>N</i> -			disruption of fear



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Intra-AC-		(Piperidin-1-yl)-5-(4-			memory reconsolidation
		AM251 group		iodophenyl)-1-(2,4-			depended on the
		- Systemic		dichlorophenyl)-4-			activation of CB1
		(intraperitone		methyl-1 <i>H-</i>			receptors in the AC
		al)-Vehicle		pyrazole-3-carbox-			cortex.VEH-CBD group
		group		amide): 50 pmol			showed lower freezing
		- Systemic		(Tocris, USA).			time than the VEH-VEH
		(intraperitone		Dissolved in NaCl			(p = 0.002), AM251-VEH
		al)-CBD group		0.9% containing 5%			and AM251-CBD groups
		Experiment 3:		of polyoxyethylene			(p = 0.001 in both case).
		four groups		sorbitan			However, VEH-VEH,
		(N = 8 -		monooleate.			AM251-VEH and AM251-
		9/group)		- In all cases, the			CBD groups did not
		- Intra-PL-		volume			differ.
		Vehicle group		administered was			- Experiment 3: CBD
				0.2 μ l/hemisphere.			disruption of fear



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Intra-PL-					memory reconsolidation
		AM251 group					depended on the
		- Systemic					activation of CB1
		(intraperitone					receptors in PL cortex.
		al)-Vehicle					VEH-CBD group showed
		group					lower freezing time than
		- Systemic					the VEH-VEH group (p =
		(intraperitone					0.0005), AM251-VEH and
		al)-CBD group					AM251-CBD groups (p =
		Experiment 4:					0.002 in both case).
		four groups					However, VEH-VEH,
		(N = 8 -					AM251-VEH and AM251-
		9/group)					CBD groups did not
		- Intra-IL-					differ.
		Vehicle group					- Experiment 4: CBD
							disruption of fear



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Intra-IL-					memory reconsolidation
		AM251 group					depended on the
		- Systemic					activation of CB1
		(intraperitone					receptors in IL cortex.
		al)-Vehicle					VEH-CBD group showed
		group					lower freezing time than
		Experiment 5:					the VEH-VEH group (p =
		two groups (n					0.002), AM251-VEH and
		= 7 -					AM251-CBD groups (p =
		9/group)					0.0003 and 0.003,
		- Intra-AC-					respectively). However,
		Vehicle group					VEH-VEH, AM251-VEH and
		- Intra-AC-					AM251-CBD groups did
		CBD group					not differ.
		Experiment 6:					- Experiment 5: CBD
		two groups (n					disruption of fear



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		= 9 -					memory reconsolidation
		11/group)					when infused directly
		- Intra-PL-					into the AC cortex. CBD
		Vehicle group					group showed lower
		- Intra-PL-CBD					freezing time than
		group					controls (p = 0.01).
		Experiment 7:					- Experiment 6: CBD
		two groups (n					disruption of fear
		= 8/group)					memory reconsolidation
		- Intra-IL-					depended on the
		Vehicle group					activation of CB1 when
		- Intra-IL-CBD					infused directly into the
		group					PL cortex. CBD group
							showed lower freezing
							time than controls (p =
							0.001).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- Experiment 7: CBD
							disruption of fear
							memory reconsolidation
							depended on the
							activation of CB1 when
							infused directly into the
							IL cortex (p < 0.05).
Cheng	- Mice	45 mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- Social	- Social	- Chronic CBD treatment
et al.	carrying	assigned to	duration	injection of:	preference	recognitio	reversed cognitive
(2014) ⁸⁶	double	vehicle or	of	- CBD: 20 mg/kg	test (SPT).	n memory.	impairment in APPxPS1
,	transge	CBD groups.	treatment	(from CAS: 13956-			mice with no effects on
Australi	nes	Treatments	was 3	29-1 THC Pharma	- Novel		aversive memory (fear
а	expressi	were quasi-	weeks.	GmbH;	object	- Object	associated memory) and
	ng	randomized.		Frankfurt/Main,	recognition	recognitio	anxiety-related
	chimeri			Germany).	test (NORT).	n memory.	behaviours.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	С	- Vehicle		Dissolved in equal			- One-sample t test
	mouse/	(Control):		amounts of Tween	- Fear		showed that all groups,
	human	Wild type-like		80 and 100%	conditioning		except APPxPS1-VEH,
	mutatio	(WT), N = 11		ethanol, diluted		- Aversive	spent significantly more
	ns of	APPxPS1, N =		with 0.9% NaCl.		memory	time with the novel
	amyloid	11		Ethanol and Tween		(Fear	(unfamiliar) mouse than
	precurs	- CBD:		80 comprised 10 %		associated	the familiar mouse [WT-
	or	WT, N = 11		of the total		memory).	VEH, t(7) = 3.7, p < 0.01;
	protein	APPxPS1, N =		volume.			APPxPS1- VEH, t(8) = 0.8,
	(APP)	12		- Vehicle group was			p = 0.4; WT-CBD, t(9) =
	and			administered			2.8, p < 0.05; APPxPS1-
	presenil			similarly without			CBD, t(10)=3.4, p<0.01].
	in			addition of CBD.			- The effect of
	1(PS1/			- In all cases, the			'treatment' was found
	Δ E9) =			volume			between APPxPS1-VEH
				administered was			and APPxPS1- CBD



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	(APPxPS			10 ml/kg body			groups [F(1,17) = 4.7, p <
	1).			weight.			0.05]. Thus, CBD
							treatment restored
	- The						object recognition.
	mice						- APPxPS1 mice did not
	modele						develop impairment in
	d for						fear-associated memory
	Alzhei						as all mice have similar
	mer's						freezing time (p > 0.05).
	disease						Thus, CBD has no impact
	(AD).						on aversive memory (fear
							associated memory).
Cheng	- Mice	Mice were	The total	Oral administration	- Social	- Social	- CBD prevented social
et al.	carrying	either given	duration	of gel pellet of:	preference	recognitio	recognition deficit in
(2014) ⁸⁷	double	CBD or	of		test (SPT).	n memory.	A eta PP × PS1 mice



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
,	transge	vehicle gel	treatment	- CBD: 20 mg/kg			without affecting aversive
Australi	nes	pellet.	were 8	(from CAS: 13956-	F a a u		memory (fear associated
а	expressi	Treatments	months:	29-1 THC Pharma	- Fear	- Aversive	memory) and anxiety-
	ng	were quasi-	- WT-	GmbH;	Conditioning	(Fear	related behaviours.
	chimeri	randomized.	vehicle =	Frankfurt/Main,	•		- RM ANOVA showed that
	С	- WT-vehicle,	241.6 ±	Germany).		momony	vehicle-treated APPxPS1
	mouse/	N = 8	38.9 days	Dissolved in equal		memory).	mice showed
	human	A B DD	- A eta PP ×	amounts of Tween			impairments in social
	mutatio	- APPP X	PS1-	80 and 100%			recognition $[F(1,41) = 4.8,$
	ns of	PSI-vehicle,	vehicle =	ethanol in gel			p < 0.05].
	amyloid	N=10	247.9 ±	pellet with the			- T-test showed that all
	-β	- WT-CBD, N	31.6 days	composition of			groups, except APPxPS1
	precurs	= 10	- WT-CBD	2.0% ethanol, 2.0%			mice, spent significantly
	or		= 239.3 ±	Tween 80, 15.2%			more time with the
	protein		33.4 days	sweetener			novel mouse [WT-VEH:
	(A eta PP)			(Splenda), 8.7%			t(7) = 2.5, p < 0.05; A eta PP



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	and	- A eta PP ×	- A eta PP ×	gelatine, 20.1%			× PS1-VEH: t(13) = 0.3,
	presenil	PS1-CBD, N =	PS1-CBD =	chocolate flavoring			469 p = 0.8; WT-CBD: t(9)
	in	10	251.2 ±	and 52.0% water			= 3.3, p < 0.01; A eta PP ×
	1(PS1/		35.8 days	for irrigation.			PS1- 470 CBD: t(12) = 3.7,
	Δ E9) =			- Vehicle group was			p < 0.01].
	(APPxPS			administered			- Two-way ANOVA
	1).			similarly without			showed a trend toward
	- The			addition of CBD.			an effect of CBD
	mice			- In all cases, the			treatment [F(1,41) = 3.1,
	modele			volume			p = 0.09].
	d for			administered was 8			- ANOVA showed that
	AD.			ml/kg body weight			CBD had positive effect
							on social recognition
							memory in A eta PP × PS1

[F(1,25) = 5.0, p < 0.05],

but showed no effect in



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							WT mice [F(1,16) = 0.2, p
							= 0.7].
							- Two-way ANOVA
							showed all mice have
							similar freezing time and
							intact context memory
							regardless of treatment
							(p>0.05), demonstrating
							that CBD has no impact
							on aversive memory (fear
							associated memory).
Cheswo	- Male	Mice were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	Conditioned	Drug-	- CBD treatment reduced
rth and	C57BL/	randomly	n was	injection of:	place	associated	preference for cocaine
Karl	6J	assigned into	administer	- CBD: 10 mg/kg	preference	memory.	context and a long-
(2020) ⁷⁹	mice.	groups	ed 30	(from THC Pharma	(CPP).		lasting effect at 20 days



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
,	- The	according to	mins prior	GmbH; Germany).			after treatment
Australi	mice	different	to	Suspended in			cessation. CBD treatment
а	modele	experiment in	different	100% ethanol,			reduced consolidation of
	d	an unbiased	phrases of	Tween 80 and			cocaine memory. CBD
	cocaine	allocation	CPP.	0.9% NaCl. The			did not affect
	-	manner.		ratio by volume of			reconsolidation,
	memor			1:1:18 was used.			extinction, or
	У	Experiment		- Cocaine			reinstatement.
	process			hydrochloride: 15			Experiment 1: effect of
	es.	1 - 5: N = 9 - 15		mg/kg (From			CBD on acquisition of
		15 / drug		National			cocaine CPP.
		treatment		Measurements			- CBD treatment reduce
		condition in		Institute, Australia).			preference for cocaine
		each		Dissolved in 0.9%			when given prior to
		experiment.		saline.			conditioning across the
							test period with



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Vehicle		- Control for			significant days x CBD
		group		cocaine was 0.9%			treatment interaction
				saline.			[F(3,48) = 4.1, p = 0.01].
		- CBD group		- Vehicle group was			Bonferonni post-hoc
				administered			tests confirmed the
				similarly without			reduction in preference
				addition of CBD.			at 20 days after
				- In all cases, the			conditioning s (p < 0.01).
				volume			Experiment 2: effect of
				administered was			CBD on consolidation of
				10 ml/kg body			cocaine CPP.
				weight.			- There was a main effect
							on treatment on % time
							spent in the cocaine
							paired compartment at 1

day after CBD cessation



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							[F(1,28) = 4.34, p = 0.04]
							and there was a
							significant treatment x
							time interaction [F(5,140)
							= 3.2, p = 0.001].
							Bonferonni post-hoc
							tests showed that CBD
							group had weaker
							preference (p < 0.05)
							Thus, CBD reduced
							consolidation of cocaine
							memory.
							Experiment 3: effect of
							CBD on reconsolidation
							of cocaine CPP



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- CBD was given after
							reactivation of memory
							with no effect on
							reconsolidation of
							cocaine memory. There
							was no effect on
							treatment [F(1,22) = 0.4,
							p = 0.5] and no
							interaction between day
							x CBD treatment [F(4,88)
							= 0.1, p = 0.9].
							Experiment 4: effect of
							CBD on extinction of
							cocaine CPP
							- CBD was given prior
							extinction conditioning
							-



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							and showed no effect on
							the preference ['days'
							F(5,80) = 3.1, p = 0.01;
							no days x CBD treatment
							interaction: F(5,80) = 0.9,
							p = 0.5].
							Experiment 5: effect of
							CBD on drug-primed
							reinstatement of cocaine
							CPP
							- CBD was given prior to
							drug-primed
							reinstatement and
							showed no effect on
							relapse-like behaviour.
							CBD treatment showed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							no effect on
							reinstatement [no
							interaction of CBD
							treatment x days: F(1,16)
							= 0.1, p = .9].
Chestw	-	Mice were	The total	Oral administration	-	- Spatial	- CBD showed moderate
orth et	Female	either given	duration	of gel pellet of:	Cheeseboar	memory.	preventive effect on
al.	mice	CBD or	of	- CBD: 20 mg/kg	d (CB).		spatial learning in
(2022) ⁸⁸	carrying	vehicle gel	treatment	(from CAS: 13956-			APPxPS1 mice but
,	double	pellet.	was 8	29-1 THC Pharma	- NORT.		limited effects on fear
Australi	transge	Treatments	months.	GmbH;		- Ohiect	memory.
а	nes	were quasi-		Frankfurt/Main,		recognitio	- Two-way ANOVA of CB
	expressi	randomized.		Germany).		n memory	experiment showed
	ng	- WT-vehicle,		Composition of the	- Fear	n memory.	longer time to find food
	chimeri	N = 14, -		gel pellets were	conditioning		in VEH-treated APPxPS1
	С	APPxPS1-		2.0% ethanol, 2.0%			mice than CBD-treated


Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	mouse/	vehicle, N =		Tween 80, 15.2%		- Aversive	APPxPS1 mice $[F(1,24) =$
	human	16		sweetener		memory	5.1, p = 0.03] but not in
	mutatio	- WT-CBD, N		(Splenda), 8.7%		(Fear	WT mice [F(1,25) = 0.1, p
	ns of	= 14		gelatine, 20.1%		associated	= 0.9].
	amyloid	- APPxPS1-		chocolate flavoring		memory).	- Two-way ANOVA CB
	precurs	CBD, N = 12		and 52.0% water			experiment showed CBD
	or			for irrigation.			reduced intermediate-
	protein			- Vehicle group was			term memory in APPxPS1
	(APP)			administered			mice [F(1,24) = 4.6, p =
	and			similarly without			0.04] but not in WT mice
	presenil			addition of CRD			[F (1,25) = 0.1, p = 0.9]
	in			In all cases, the			- There is no difference
	1(PSEN						for long-term memory
	1dE9) =			administered was 9			(p>0.05).
	(APPxPS			auministered was a			- In NORT experiment,
	1).			my kg body weight.			WT VEH-treated mice



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	- The						failed to demonstrate
	mice						novel object recognition
	modele						therefore cannot be
	d for						concluded.
	AD.						- All mice have similar
							freezing time (p > 0.05),
							demonstrating that CBD
							has no impact on
							aversive memory (fear
							associated memory).
Coles	-	50 mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- CB.	- Spatial	- CBD treatment showed
et al.	Female	assigned to	duration	injection of:		memory.	a reversal effect of
(2022) ⁹⁵	mice	vehicle or	of	- CBD: 5 mg/kg			object recognition
,	carrying	CBD group	treatment	(from CAS: 13956-	- NORT.		deficits and delayed
Australi	double	- WT-VEH, N	prior	29-1 THC Pharma			spatial learning in
а	transge	= 15	cognitive	GmbH;			APPxPS1 mice.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	nes	- WT-CBD, N	assessmen	Frankfurt/Main,		- Object	- One-sample t-tests of
	expressi	= 13	t was 3	Germany).		recognitio	NORT showed that all
	ng	- APPxPS1-	weeks.	Dissolved in 0.5		n memory.	groups except for
	chimeri	VEH, N = 10		mg/ml equal			vehicle-treated APPxPS1
	С	- APPxPS1-		amounts of Tween			mice had a significant
	mouse/	CBD, N = 12		80 and 100%			preference for the novel
	human			ethanol, diluted			object [WT-VEH: t(13) =
	mutatio			with 0.9% NaCl.			4.5 and p = 0.001;
	ns of			Ethanol and Tween			APPxPS1-VEH: $t(9) = 0.5$
	amyloid			80 comprised 10 %			and p = 0.6; WT-CBD:
	precurs			of the total			t(12) = 2.8 and p = 0.02;
	or			volume. The ratio			APPxPS1-CBD: t(9) = 2.6
	protein			by volume of			and $p = 0.03$].
	(APP _{Swe})			1:1:18 of			- APPxPS1 mice were
	and			ethanol:Tween			slower on the CB during
	presenil			80:saline was used.			reversal training [F(1,45)



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	in			- Vehicle group was			= 17.2; p < .001] and
	1(PS1 ∆			administered			they took longer to find
	E9) =			similarly without			reward [F(1,45) = 17.9; p
	(APPxPS			addition of CBD.			< 0.001] compared to
	1).			- In all cases, the			WT groups. There was
	- The			volume			also a significant
	mice			administered was			interaction between time
	modele			10 ml/kg body			x genotype x treatment
	d for			weight.			[F(3,135) = 3.6; p = 0.02]
	AD.						with CBD treated group
							showing increased
							average speed than the
							VEH treated groups (p <
							0.001).
Corre	-	Rats were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- Inhibitory	- Aversive	- CBD treatment was
et al.	Female	assigned into	duration	injection of:	avoidance	memory	able to reverse the



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
(2022) ⁸⁹	Wistar	ovariectomy	of	- CBD: 10 mg/kg	(IA)	(Fear	aversive memory
, Brazil	rat.	group (OVX,	treatment	(from BSPG-Pharm,	conditioning	associated	impairment caused by
	- The	N = 28) and	was 14	UK). Suspended in		memory).	estrogen depletion.
	rat	false-	days.	100% ethanol,	(Step down		- Two-way ANOVA
	modele	operated		Tween 80 and	= shock)		showed significant main
	d	(sham, N =		0.9% NaCl. The			effect of treatment [F(1,
	memor	25) group.		ratio by volume of			49) = 6.21, p = 0.016]
	У			1:1:18 was used.			and significant interaction
	impair			- Vehicle solution:			[F(1, 49) = 4.37, p =
	ment	- Vehicle-		Tween 80 and			0.042] in comparison of
	due to	Sham group,		saline solution in			reaction time to step
	estroge	N = 10		the ration of 1:16			down.
	n	- Vehicle-OVX		∨/∨.			- CBD-OVX group showed
	depleti	group. $N = 14$					longer time to step-down
	on	2.00p, 11					than Vehicle-OVX group
	induce						[F(1, 49) = 11.38, p =



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	d by	- CBD-Sham					0.001] suggesting the
	ovariect	group, N = 15					reversal effect of fear
	omy.						memory deficit.
		$\frac{1}{2}$					- Sham groups showed
		g(Oup, N = 14)					no significant simple
							effect of treatment (p =
							0.785), main effects of
							surgery [F(1, 49) = 0.99, p
							= 0.325] and treatment
							[F(1, 49) = 0.062, p =
							0.805], and no
							interactions [F(1, 49) =
							0.053, p = 0.819].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
de	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Subcutaneous	_	Drug-	- CBD treatment reduce
Carvalh	Wistar	assigned into	n was	injection of:	Conditioned	associated	environmental
o and	rats.	groups	given	- CBD: 5 and 10	place	memory.	preference for morphine
Naoto	- The	according to	immediate	mg/kg (from Tocris	preference		and cocaine and
Takahas	mice	different	ly after	Bioscience, USA).	(CPP).		impaired reconsolidatio
hi	modele	experiment.	reconsolid	Dissolved in	-		of drug-associated
(2016) ¹⁰	d	Experiment 1:	ation.	vehicle solution of	Conditioned		memory by blocking
² , Brazil	cocaine	effects of		10% dimethyl	place		reactivated memory.
	and	CBD on		sulfoxide, 0.1%	aversion		- Moreover, CBD
	morphi	reconsolidati		Tween 80 in saline.	(CPA).		treatment resulted in a
	ne	o, N = 10-		Given at the			notable decrease in bot
	memor	11/group		volume of 2 ml/kg			morphine- CPP and CPA
	У	Ear MOR		body weight.			induced by naltrexone
	process	trained		- Morphine			the same context.
	es.			hydrochloride:			Experiment 1: CBD grou
		group.		2.5mg/kg (from			showed disrupted



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Saline group		Merck, Germany).			reconsolidation of place
				Dissolved in 0.9%			preference.
				sodium chloride.			- Two-way ANOVA
		group		Given at the			showed significant effect
		- MOR-CBD5		volume of 1 ml/kg			on treatment [F2, 108 =
		group		body weight.			32.09, p < 0.00001] and
				Intraperitoneal			trials [F3,108 = 4.50; p <
				injection of:			0.005], with significant
		510 ap		- Cocaine: 10 mg/kg			interaction between
		For COC-		(from Sigma-			treatment x trials [F6,108
		trained		Aldrich, USA).			= 5.48; p < 0.0001].
		group:		Dissolved in 0.9%			CBD10 groups showed
		- Saline group		sodium chloride.			significant disruption of
		56e 3. oup		Given at 1 ml/kg.			morphine CPP which
		- COC-VEH		Given at the			persisted at 7 (p < 0.003
		group					and 14 (p < 0.01) days.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- COC-CBD10		volume of 1 ml/kg			- Two-way ANOVA of
		group		body weight.			COC-trained groups
		Exporiment 2.		Cocaine (Sigma-			showed significant effect
		offocts of		Aldrich, Missouri,			on treatment [F _{1, 60} =
				USA) and morphine			33.28; p < 0.00001] and
		CDD UII		hydrochloride			trials [F2, 60 = 3.76; p <
		t of MOP		(Merck, Darmstadt,			0.03], with significant
		trained rate		Germany) were			interaction between
		(N - 8)		both dissolved in			treatment x trials [F2, 60
		(N - 0 - 10/aroup)		0.9 percent sodium			= 5.38; p < 0.008]. CBD10
		TOLLIOUPI		chloride (saline)			groups showed significant
		- MOR-VEH-		and given at a			disruption of morphine
		Non-Stress		volume of 1 ml/kg			CPP which persisted at 7
		group		to a final			, (p < 0.01) and 14 (p <
				concentration of			0.03) days.
				10mg/kg for initial			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- MOR-VEH-		CPP training and at			Experiment 2: CBD
		Stress group		2.5mg/kg as the			groups showed
				priming drug for			prevention of
		- MON-CDD-		reinstatement of			spontaneous recovery
		aroup		MOR-CPP.			and the reinstatement of
		group					morphine-reward
		- MOR-CBD-					memory.
		Stress group					- Two-way RM ANOVA of
		Experiment 3:					MOR-trained rats showed
		effects of					significant main effects of
		CBD on					treatment [F _{1,} 37 =
		development					153.48; p < 0.00001],
		of					repetition [F4, 148 =
		naltrexone-					137.49; p < 0.00001],
		precipitated					interaction between
		1					treatment x trials [F4,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		withdrawal (N					148 = 47.68; p < 0.00001]
		= 8-9/group)					and interaction between
		- MOR-VEH-					stress x trials [F4, 148 =
							3.21; p < 0.02].
		VEIT Stoup					- Bonferroni's test
		- MOR-CBD-					showed that CBD treated
		VEH group					group had less time
		- MOR-VEH-					spent in MOR-paired
		NTX group					chamber (p < 0.0001).
		5 1					CBD treatment
		- MOR-CBD-					prevented spontaneous
		NTX group					recovery where MOR-
							CBD-non-stress and MOR-
							CBD-stress (both p's <
							0.00001) groups showed
							significant decrease in



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							CPP scores which lasted
							until 21 days.
							- MOR-CBD-non-stress
							and MOR-CBD-stress
							groups also maintained
							lower CPP compared to
							VEH groups (both p <
							0.00001), thus showing
							the prevention of stress-
							induced reinstatement of
							MOR-CPP.
							Experiment 3: CBD group
							showed disruption of
							reconsolidation of MOR-
							CPP and suppression of



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							subsequent naltrexone-
							precipitated CPA.
							- Two-way RM ANOVA for
							MOR-trained rats showed
							main effects of post-
							treatment [F ₁ , 31 =
							135.51; p < 0.00001],
							repetition [F2, 62 =
							217.13; p < 0.0001], pre-
							treatment x post-
							treatment interaction [F _{1,}
							31 = 52.51; p < 0.0001]
							and pre-treatment vs.
							post-treatment vs.
							repetition interaction [F2,
							62 = 27.38; p < 0.0001].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- Post-hoc tests showed
							CBD treatment
							significantly reduced
							place preference in MOR-
							VEH-VEH vs. MOR-CBD-
							VEH and aversion in
							MOR-VEH-NTX vs. MOR-
							CBD-NTX to MOR-paired
							chamber (p < 0.001) in
							which the effect lasted
							at 7 days (p < 0.001).
							- Groups treated with
							CBD also showed
							decrease in CPP scores
							after treatment (p <
							0.0001).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
de	- Male,	12 rats were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- NORT.	- Object	- CBD showed a
Paula	outbred	randomly	duration	injection of:		recognitio	protective effect on STZ-
Faria et	Charles	assigned into	of	- CBD: 20 mg/kg		n memory.	induced AD, preserving
al.	River	2 groups	treatment	(from Biosynthesis			STM and LTM.
(2022) ⁸ ,	Wistar	ST7 N - 6	was 1	Pharma Group			- STZ group showed
Brazil	rats.	-512, N = 0	week.	Limited-BSPG, UK).			worse memory index for
	- The	- STZ + CBD,		Diluted in 2%			NORT in both STM (53.83
	rat	N = 6		Tween 80 and 98%			± 3.12, –20%) and LTM
	modele			saline.			(39.17 ± 14.43, -53%)
	d for						compared to STZ + CBD
	AD						group (STM: 67.33 ± 5.13
	induce						p = 0.0003; LTM: 83.67 ±
	d by						4.13, p < 0.0001).
	strepto						



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	zotocin						
	(STZ).						
Faghera	- Male,	60 rats were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- NORT.	- Object	- Acute CBD at the
zzi et	Wistar	randomly	duration	injection of:		recognitio	highest dose (10 mg/kg)
al.	rats.	assigned to	of	- CBD: 2.5, 5.0 and	- Inhibitory	n memory.	was able to recover
(2012) ¹⁰	- The	treatment	treatment	10 mg/kg (99.9%	avoidance		memory in iron-treated
¹ , Brazil	rat	groups	was 2	pure from THC-	task		rats.
	modele	Vohiclo N -	weeks.	Pharm, Germany		- Aversive	- Chronic CBD showed
	d	- venicle, n –		and STI-Pharm, UK).		memory	improvement in
	Neurod	15		Dissolved in Tween		(Fear	recognition memory in
	egenera	- CBD 2.5		80 1:16 v/v.		associated	iron-treated rats. CBD
	tive	mg/kg, N = 15				memory).	does not show any effect
	disorde	- CBD 5					on memory in control
	r using iron-	mg/kg, N = 15					rats. CBD showed no



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	induce	- CBD 10					effect on memory for
	d (oral)	mg/kg, N = 15					inhibitory avoidance task.
	impair						- Iron given during
	ment.						neonatal period induced
							severe recognition
							memory impairment (p <
							0.0001).
							- Two-way ANOVA
							showed significant
							interaction between the
							effects treatment x acute
							CBD [F = 20.30; df = 2; p
							< 0.0001].
							- Tukey's post hoc
							showed that acute
							administration of CBD at



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							2.5 mg/kg and 5.0 mg/kg
							showed no significant
							effect (p < 0.0001).
							Whereas, 10 mg/kg
							showed significantly
							higher recognition (p <
							0.0001).
							- Two-way ANOVA
							showed a significant
							interaction between the
							effects of treatment x
							chronic CBD [F = 34.87;
							df = 2; p < 0.0001].
							- Tukey's post hoc
							showed chronic
							administration of CBD at



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							2.5, 5.0 and 10 mg/kg
							showed significantly
							higher recognition
							indexes (p<0.0001) where
							10 mg/kg was able to
							reverse the memory
							deficit (p < 0.0001).
							- Chronic CBD in control
							rats showed no effect on
							recognition memory.
Franzen	-	Rats were	Exp. 1:	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- Higher doses of CBD
et al.	Female	randomly	Interventio	injection of:	conditioning	memory	treatment (3.0 and 10
(2022) ¹⁰	Wistar	assigned into	n was	- CBD: 1.0. 3.0 and		(Fear	mg/kg) reduced freezing
³ , Brazil	rats.	groups	administer	10 mg/kg (99.9%			time through DH 5-HT1A
		according to	ed 45	purified from BSPG			receptors, regardless of



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		different	mins	Pharm, Sanwich,		associated	estrous cycle. CBD
		experiment.	before	UK). Dissolved in		memory).	treatment impaired
		Experiment 1:	testing.	NaCl 0.9%			reconsolidation and
		effects of		containing 5% of			lowered fear expression
		CBD on		polyoxyethylene			during early extinction.
		contextual	Exp. 2:	sorbitan			Local administration (DH
		fear memory	Interventio	monooleate.			produced the same
		(N = 9 -	n was	- In all cases, the			effects of systematic
		11/group).	administer	volume			(intraperitoneal).
		- VEH group	ed 24	administered was			Experiment 1: CBD
		- CBD1 group	hours	1.0 ml/kg body			reduced contextual fear
		- CBD3 group	before	weight.			memory.
		- CBD10	testing.	Infused			- CBD treatment
		group	Evn 3.	intracranially into			(intraperitoneal) showed
		Experiment 2:	LXU. J.	the DH (Dorsal			an effect of freezing time
		effects of					during exposure [F(3,37)
			n was				



Author, Year & Country	Animal Model	Study Allocation and Size	Duration of Intervention	Intervention and Control	Memory Test	Types of Memory	Results
		early CBD treatment on contextual fear memory (N = 9/group). - VEH group - CBD10 group	administer ed 45 mins before testing. Exp. 4: Interventio	Hippocampus) of interest: - CBD: 9.4 μg (99.9% purified from BSPG Pharm, Sanwich, UK). Dissolved in NaCl 0.9% containing 5%			 = 8.8, p = 0.0002; η² = 0.42] where CBD 3 (p = 0.04) and CBD10 (p = 0.001) groups showed lower freezing time compared to VEH group. Experiment 2: early CBD administration did not
		Experiment 3: effects of the estrous cycle on CBD and contextual fear memory retrieval/expr	n was administer ed 45 mins (intraperito neal) and 55 mins (intracrania	of polyoxyethylene sorbitan monooleate. - AM251 (CB1 receptor antagonism/inverse agonist: 0.2 ng (Tocris, USA).			affect contextual fear memory suggesting that the effects of CBD was acute. - CBD 10 and VEH groups showed similar scores when test was done 24



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		ession (N =	l) before	Dissolved in NaCl			hours later [t16 = 0.33; p
		9–11/group)	testing.	0.9% containing 5%			= 0.74].
		- Proestrus-		of polyoxyethylene			Experiment3: the effects
		VEH	Exp. 5.	sorbitan			of CBD on contextual
		- Proestrus-		monooleate.			fear memory were simila
		CBD10	administer	- AM630 (CB2			across different phase of
		- Estrous-VEH	ed 15	receptor			the estrous cycle.
		- Estrous-	mins	antagonism/inverse			- There was no main
		CBD10	hefore	agonist: 1.0 ng			effect on the estrous
		- Diestrus -	testing	(Tocris, USA).			cycle [F(2,56) = 0.80, p =
		VEH		Dissolved in NaCl			0.45; ${m \eta}^2_{\ p}$ = 0.03] and no
		- Diestrus -	Exp. 6:	0.9% containing 5%			significant interaction
		CBD10	Interventio	of polyoxyethylene			between treatment x
		Experiment 4:	n was	sorbitan			estrous cycle [F(2,56) =
		effects of DH	administer	monooleate and			0.72, p = 0.49; η ² _p =
		CB1, CB2, or	ed 10				0.02].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		5-HT1A	mins	5% dimethyl			Experiment 4:
		receptor	before	sulfoxide.			antagonism of DH 5-HT $_1$ A
		antagonism	testing.	- WAY100635 (a			but not CB1 or CB2
		and CBD on	Evp 7.	selective 5-HT1A			receptors prevented CBD
		contextual	Interventio	receptor antagonis):			effects on contextual
		fear memory		0.1 ng (Tocris, USA).			fear memory.
		(N = 10 -	administer	Dissolved in NaCl			- There was an effect on
		12/group).	ad 15	0.9%.			DH treatment [F(1,81) =
		- VEH-VEH	mins	- In all cases, the			33.2, p = 0.000001; η ² _p =
		group	hefore	volume			0.29] and interaction
		- CBD-VEH	testing	administered was			between treatment x
		group	testing.	0.5 μ l/hemisphere.			freezing time [F(3,81) =
		- VEH-AM251					4.2, p = 0.008; η ² _p =
		0.2 group					0.13] where VEH-CBD (p
		- CBD-AM251					= 0.0002) and AM251-
		0.2 group					CBD groups (p = 0.0004)



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH-AM630					showed lower scores
		1.0 group					than control groups.
		- CBD-AM630					WAY100635-CBD and
		1.0 group					AM630-CBD groups did
		- VEH-					not show any significant
		WAY100635					difference, suggesting
		0.1group					that CBD reduced the
		- CBD-					fear memory through
		WAY100635					activation of DH 5-HT $_1$ A
		0.1group					receptor.
							Experiment 5:
		Experiment 5:					intraperitoneal CBD
		effects of					treatment impaired
		systemic CBD					memory reconsolidation
		of contextual					resulting in lower fear
		fear memory					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		on extinction					expression during early
		(N = 8/group).					extinction.
		- VEH group					- There was an effect of
		- CBD10					treatment [F(1,14) = 8.6,
		group					p = 0.01; ${f \eta}^2_{\ p}$ = 0.38] and
		Experiment 6:					repeated testing [F(1,14)
		effects of					= 35.9, p = 0.00003; η ² _p
		intra-DH CBD					= 0.72] on freezing time
		infusion on					but there was no
		contextual					significant interaction
		fear memory					[F(1,14) = 2.3, p = 0.15;
		extinction (N					$\mathbf{\eta}_{p}^{2} = 0.14$]. CBD groups
		= 7/group).					showed lower scores
		- VEH group					than VEH group during
		- CBD10					test (p = 0.004) but not
		group					at the retest period. Both



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment 7:					VEH (p = 0.00005) and
		effects of					CBD ($p = 0.02$) groups
		CBD on					showed lower freezing
		anxiety-					times after extinction
		related					session.
		behaviors (N					- During the extinction
		= 8-					session, there was an
		15/group)					effect on treatment
		- VEH group					[F(1,14) = 13.0, p = 0.003
		- CBD1 group					$\mathbf{\eta}_{p}^{2}$ = 0.48], time bin
		- CBD3 group					[F(4,56) = 49.1, p =
		- CBD10					0.00001; η ² _p = 0.78] and
		group					significant interaction on
							freezing time [F(4,56) =
							11.0, p = 0.00001; η ² _p =

0.44]. Both VEH and CBD



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							group showed lower
							scores from the $2^{nd} - 5^{th}$
							extinction session (p \leq
							0.01) where CBD group
							showed accelerated
							extinction rate in the first
							two session (p \leq 0.0003).
							Experiment 6: Intra-DH
							CBD infusion reduced
							contextual fear memory
							and impaired
							reconsolidation resulting
							in lower fear during early
							extinction.
							- There was an effect of
							treatment [F(1,12) = 24.7,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							p = 0.0003; η ² _p = 0.67]
							and repeated testing
							[F(1,12) = 132.2, p =
							0.000001; $\mathbf{\eta}_{p}^{2}$ = 0.92] on
							freezing time but there
							was no significant
							interaction [F(1,12) =
							29.6, p = 0.0002; η ² _p =
							0.71]. CBD group showed
							lower score than VEH
							group during the test (p
							= 0.0002) but not the
							retest session. Both VEH
							(p = 0.0002) and CBD (p
							= 0.003) groups showed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							lower freezing times after
							the extinction session.
							- During the extinction
							session, there was an
							effect on treatment
							[F(1,12) = 4.6, p = 0.05;
							$\mathbf{\eta}_{p}^{2}$ = 0.28], time bin
							[F(4,48) = 66.4, p =
							0.00001; η ² _p = 0.85] and
							significant interaction on
							freezing time [F(4,48) =
							10.0, p = 0.00001; η ² _p =
							0.45]. Both VEH and CBD
							group showed lower
							scores from the $2^{nd} - 5^{th}$
							extinction session (p \leq



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							0.005) where CBD group
							showed accelerated
							extinction rate in the first
							two session (p \leq 0.0002).
							Experiment 7: CBD
							reduced anxiety-related
							behaviors.
Franzen	-	Rats were	Exp. 1:	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment impaired
et al.	Female	randomly	Interventio	injection of:	conditioning	memory	the reconsolidation
(2022) ¹⁰	Wistar	assigned into	n was	- CBD: 10 mg/kg		(Fear	process and resulted in
⁴ , Brazil	rats.	groups	given	(99.9% purified		associated	reduced freezing time for
		according to	immediate	from BSPG Pharm,		memory).	more than a week,
		different	ly after	Sanwich, UK).			thought the activation of
		experiment.	reactivatio	Dissolved in NaCl			CB1 receptor (but not
			n.	0.9% containing 5%			CB2) located on DH. The



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment 1:	Exp. 2:	of polyoxyethylene			action was restricted to
		Effects of	Interventio	sorbitan			time and on reactivation
		systematic	n was	monooleate.			and destabilization. Local
		CBD on	given 6	- In all cases, the			administration (DH)
		contextual	hours after	volume			produced the same
		fear memory	reactivatio	administered was			effects of systematic
		reconsolidati	n.	1.0 ml/kg body			(intraperitoneal). Fear
		on (N = 9–	Evp 3.	weight.			associated memories
		10/group)	Intonyontio				reduced by CBD did not
				Infused			show reinstatement.
			ri was	intracranially into			Experiment 1: CBD
			given	the DH (Dorsal			impaired contextual fear
		group	Inmediate	Hippocampus) of			memory reconsolidation.
		Experiment 2:	ty after	interest:			- There was an effect on
		Effects of	non-	- CBD: 30 nmol			treatment [F(1,17) = 8.8;
		delayed		(99.9% purified			$n = 0.0009 \cdot n^2 = 0.341$
		systemic CBD		· - 1			$p = 0.0007, 1_{2} = 0.34$],



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		treatment on	reactivatio	from BSPG Pharm,			repeated testing [F(2,34)
		contextual	n.	Sanwich, UK).			= 14.8; p = 0.00002; η 2 =
		fear memory	Evo 1	Dissolved in NaCl			0.46], and interaction
		reconsolidati	EXP. 4.	0.9% containing 5%			between treatment x
		on		of polyoxyethylene			repeated testing [F(2,34)
		(N = 9/group)	riven 10	sorbitan			= 5.6; p = 0.008; ŋ 2 =
		- VEH group	mins after	monooleate.			0.25] on freezing time.
		- CBD10	antagonist	- AM251 (CB1			CBD group showed lowe
		group	ς	receptor			score compared to VEH
		Experiment 3	5.	antagonism/inverse			group at 1 day (p =
		Effects of	Exp. 5:	agonist: 0.0002 μ g			0.002) and 7 days after
		systematic	Interventio	(Tocris, USA).			reactivation ($p = 0.01$).
		CRD in the	n was	Dissolved in NaCl			Experiment 2: Delayed
		absence of	given	0.9% containing 5%			CBD treatment had no
		reactivation	immediate	of polyoxyethylene			effect on memory
		and	ly after				reconsolidation.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		destabilizatio	reactivatio	sorbitan			- There was an effect
		n of	n.	monooleate.			repeated testing [F(2,32]
		contextual		- AM630 (CB2			= 23.7; p = 0.000001; ໗
		fear memory		receptor			= 0.60] but no effect or
		(N = 9/group)		antagonism/inverse			treatment [F(1,16) = 0.2
		- VFH group		agonist: 0.001 μ g			p = 0.67; η 2 = 0.01] and
		- CBD10		(Tocris, USA).			interaction $[F(2,32) = 1.0]$
		group		Dissolved in NaCl			p = 0.38; η 2 = 0.06] on
		Experiment 4:		0.9% containing 5%			freezing time, suggestin
		Effects of CB1		of polyoxyethylene			that CBD did not impair
		or CB2		sorbitan			memory.
		receptor		monooleate and			Experiment 3: CBD
		antagonism in		5% dimethyl			induced
		the DH CA1		sulfoxide.			reconsolidation's
		on CBD and					impairments required
		contextual					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		fear memory		- In all cases, the			destabilization of
		reconsolidati		volume			memory.
		on (N = 9–		administered was			- There was on effect of
		12/group)		0.5 μ l/hemisphere.			treatment on freezing
							time [t16 = 0.33; p =
							0.74].
		group					Experiment 4:
							Antagonism at CB1
		group					receptors, (not CB2) in
							the DH prevented the
		AMIZ51group					impairments in
		- CRD-AMI221					reconsolidation caused
		group					by systemic CBD
		- VEH-AM630					treatment.
		group					- There was an effect or
		- CBD-AM630					pre-treatment $[F(2.54)] =$
		group					pre treatment [r (2,34) =



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment 5:					3.3; p = 0.04; η 2 = 0.11],
		Effects of					treatment [F(1,54) = 14.7;
		CBD on DH					p = 0.0003; η 2 = 0.21],
		on					and repeated testing
		contextual					[F(2108) = 51.7; p =
		fear memory					0.000001; ໗ 2 = 0.49] on
		reconsolidati					freezing time. There was
		on (N =					also significant
		8/group)					interaction between
		- VEH group					effects of pretreatment x
		- CBD30 nmol					repeated testing [F(4108)
		group					= 7.2; p = 0.00003; η 2 =
							0.21] and treatment x
							repeated testing
							interactions [F(2108) =

11.3; p = 0.04; **η**2 = 0.17,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							respec- tively]. CBD
							group showed lower
							score compared to VEH
							group at 1 day (p =
							0.001) and 7 days after
							reactivation (p = 0.003).
							- Co-administration of
							CB1 antagonist (AM251)
							diminished the impairing
							effect of CBD on
							reconsolidation,
							indicating that CBD's
							impact is mediated
							through CB1 receptor.
							- However, co-
							administration of CB2


Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							antagonist (AM630)
							showed significant
							difference between
							AM630-CBD and AM630-
							VEH groups (p = 0.002).
							Experiment 5: CBD
							infused directly into the
							DH impaired memory
							reconsolidation.
							- There was an effect on
							treatment [F(1,14) = 27.0;
							p = 0.0001; 1 2 = 0.66],
							repeated testing [F(2,28)
							= 12.2; p = 0.0002; 1 2 =
							0.46], and an interaction
							between treatment x



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							repeated testing [F(2,28)
							= 3.7; p = 0.04; η 2 =
							0.21] on freezing time.
							CBD group showed lower
							score compared to VEH
							group at 1 day (p =
							0.0002) and 7 days after
							reactivation ($p = 0.002$).
García-	- Male	- Offspring	The total	Intraperitoneal	- Y-maze.	- Spatial	- CBD treatment
Baos et	and	mice were	duration	injection of:		memory.	improved
al.	female	used as a	of	- CBD: 20 mg/kg	- NORT.	Object	reference memory,
(2021) ⁹⁶	C57BL/	whole	treatment	(from Phytoplant	- Novel	- Object	object location memory
, Spain	6 were	population	was 10	Research S.L.,	Object	n momon	and partially improved
	bred	and balanced	days.	Spain). Mixed in 2%	Location	n memory.	spatial working memory
	togethe	for numbers		Tween 80 and	(NOL) task.		deficits in



Authorit	Austine	Cturely a	Duration of	laten miten en el	Manager	Turana af	Depute
Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	r for	of male and		added with 0.9%			FASD-like mice model.
	offsprin	female.		NaCl.			- Two-way ANOVA
	g mice.	- Offspring		- Ethyl alcohol			showed that CBD
	-	were		(from Merck			counteracted the PLAE-
	Pregnan	randomly		Chemicals,			induced reference
	t	distributed		Germany) diluted			memory deficit as there
	females	where N =		in tap water to			was significant interaction
	were	10-14 per		obtain 20% (v/v)			between group x
	random	group.		alcohol solution.			treatment [F(1,45) =
	ly	- PLAE-CBD					4.906, p < 0.05]. PLAE-
	assigne	- PLAE-VEH					CBD group showed
	d to						significantly higher score
	20%						compared to PLAE-VEH
	(\/\)						(p < 0.05).
	alcohol						- Two-way ANOVA
	or						showed that CBD has no



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	water						effect on recognition
	(control						memory (p > 0.05).
) to						- Two-way ANOVA
	induce						showed that CBD
	d early						improves deficit in object
	alcohol						location memory where
	exposur						there was significant
	e for						interaction between
	Foetal						group x treatment
	alcohol						[F(1,46) = 7.598, p <
	spectru						0.01]. Bonferroni's
	m						multiple comparisons
	disorde						revealed that PLAE-CBD
	r (FASD)						animals showed greater
	mice						score when compared to
	model.						PLAE-VEH (p < 0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- Two-way ANOVA
							showed that CBD
							partially improved spatial
							working memory deficits
							where group [F(1,46)
							=5.605, p < 0.05] and
							interaction [F(1,46) =
							4.379, p < 0.05] effect
							were significant.
							Bonferroni's post-hoc
							analyses showed that
							PLAE-VEH mice have
							lower correct score than
							Water-VEH group (p <
							0.01) and the PLAE-CBD
							group showed no



A							
Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	lypes of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							significant difference
							compared to PLAE-VEH
							and to Water-VEH.
Gaspary	- Male	Mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment
an et	C57BL/	randomly	duration	injection of:	conditioning	memory	improved long-lasting
al.	6J	assigned into	of	- CBD: 20 mg/kg		(Fear	fear memory and
(2021) ⁸⁰	mice.	groups	treatment	(from STI		associated	anxiety-like behaviors in
, Spain	- The	according to	was 3	Pharmaceuticals;		memory).	mice modeled for PTSD
	mice	different	weeks.	UK). Dissolved in			in which the
	modele	experiment.		ethanol,			improvement was
	d post-	- PTSD-VEH		cremophor and			enhanced when
	traumat	group, N = 10		saline. The ratio by			combined with STR.
	ic stress			volume of 1:1:18 of			- Student's t-test showed
	disorde	$r_{13} = 10$		ethanol:cremophor			PTSD modeled mice had
		group, n = 10		: saline was used.			increased freezing time (



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	r	- PTSD-STR		- In all cases, the			-13.738, p < 0.001, 14
	(PTSD).	group, N = 9		volume			d.f.), startled response (t
				administered was			-3.002, p < 0.01, 14 d.f.)
				10 ml/kg body			and latency time (t -
		CDDTJIN		weight.			6.824, p < 0.001, 14 d.f.).
		group, n = 10		Oral administration			- Student's t-test showed
		- Control-VEH		of:			PTSD modeled mice had
		group, N = 10		- Sertraline (STR):			increased gene
		- Control-CBD		10 mg/kg (from			expression of
		$\frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}$		Pfizer laboratories;			corticotropin releasing
		group, 11 – 7		Spain). Dissolved in			factor (Crf; t -9.349, p <
		- Control-STR		water.			0.001, 14 d.f.) and
		group, N = 9		- Vehicle group was			proopiomelanocortin
				administered			(Pomc; t -5.565, p <
				similarly without			0.001, 14 d.f.), relative
				addition of CBD.			expression of



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Control-		- In all cases, the			paraventricular nucleus
		CBD+STR		volume			(PVN) and arcuate
		group, N = 10		administered was			nucleus
				10 ml/kg body weight.			(ARC), and decreased expression of glucocorticoid receptor (GCr) in the hippocampus (HIPP; t 5.734, p < 0.001, 14 d.f.). The mice hair also showed increased concentration of corticosterone (t -3.943, p < 0.01, 14 d.f.). - Student's t-test showed PTSD modeled mice had



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							decreased CB1 receptor
							(t 5.647, p < 0.001, 14
							d.f.), increased CB2
							receptor (t –3.604, p =
							0.003, 14 d.f.) and
							enhanced gene
							expression on serotonin
							transporter (Slc6a4; t
							-3.337, p = 0.005, 14 d.f.)
							- PTSD-CBD and PTSD-
							STR groups showed
							reduced freezing time
							but PTSD-CBD+STR group
							showed no significant
							differences (Two-way
							ANOVA, CBD: F(1,37)



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							4.794, p < 0.05; STR:
							F(1,37) 4.712, p < 0.05;
							CBD x STR: F(1,37) 1.140,
							p = 0.293).
							- CBD + STR showed a
							superior effect in
							reducing freezing time
							compared to PTSD-CBD
							and PTSD-STR
							treatments, although the
							difference was not
							statistically significant.
Han et	- Male	Mice were	Exp. 1:	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment (10
al.	C57BL/	randomly	Interventio	injection of:	conditioning	memory	mg/kg) reduced fear
(2022) ⁸¹	6 J	assigned into	n was	- CBD: 10 and 30		(Fear	associated memory,
, China	mice.	groups	administer	mg/kg (from HPLC;			anxiety-like behavior and



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		according to	ed 30	China). Dissolved in		associated	increased social
		different	mins	saline containing		memory).	interaction behavior.
		experiment	before	2% ethanol and			- CBD treatment also
		Experiment 1:	test from	2% Tween 80.			reduced consolidation,
		Alleviation of	day 3 to	Oral (intragastric)			retrieval and
		responses by	15.	administration of:			reconsolidation of fear
		CBD and		- Sertraline (STR):			associated memory.
		sertraline in	EXP. Z:	15 mg/kg (from			- Two-way RM ANOVA of
		PTSD model		Sigma Chemical;			daily administration of
		(N = 6-	11 Wds	USA). Dissolved in			CBD and STR showed
		8/group)		saline.			significant effect of
		- Control (no	the				treatment (F [4, 31] =
		shock) group	intonvol				54.56, P < 0.001), time (F
		- VEH +	niterval				[3.176, 98.44] = 78.28, P
		Shock group	period				< 0.001) and interaction
			immediate				between time x
			ly after re-				between time x



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- STR + Shock	exposure				treatment (F [16, 124] =
		group	from day 3				9.331, P < 0.001) on
		- CBD10 +	to 7.				freezing time.
		Shock group	Evn 3.				Bonferroni's post-hoc
		- CBD30 +	Exp. J.				tests showed daily
		Shock group					administration of STR
		Experiment 2:	n was				and CBD (10 mg/kg) had
		Alleviation of					reduced freezing time
		PTSD - like	ed during				from days 3 to 15 (all p's
		symptoms by	belore				< 0.05) but CBD at 30
		CBD and	TOOT Shock				mg/kg showed no
		sertraline	at day 1				significant effect.
		during the	and 2.				- Two-way RM ANOVA of
		interval	Exp. 4:				daily administration of
		period (N =	Interventio				CBD and STR during the
		8–12/group)	n was				interval period after



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Control	administer				shock showed significant
		group	ed 30				effect of treatment (F [3,
		- VEH +	mins				42] = 57.62, P < 0.001),
		Shock group	before				time (F [2.829, 118.8] =
		- STR + Shock	test on				67.58, P < 0.001) and
		group	day 3, 8,				interaction between time
		- CBD10 +	and 15.				x treatment (F [12, 168] =
		Shock group					6.608, P < 0.001) on
		Experiment 3:	Exp. J.				freezing time.
		Effects of	nterventio				Bonferroni's post-hoc
		CBD and	n was				tests showed CBD10
		sertraline on					group had lower freezing
		fear memory	ed alter				time in day 8 and 15 (all
		acquisition (N	test at				p's < 0.05). Further
		= 9–	reconsolid				testing at day 25, after
		12/group)	ation then				extinction, showed CBD
			24 hours				



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Control	after re-				group with lower freezing
		group	exposure				time (p < 0.01).
		- VEH +	at days 4				- CBD and STR
		Shock group	to 7 and 9				treatments did not
		- STR + Shock	to 14.				significantly affect the
		group	Interventio				acquisition of fear-
		- CBD10 +	n was also				associated memory
		Shock group	given at				when administered prior
		Experiment 4:	day 3, 8				to foot shock. While
		Effects of	and 15 to				Two-way RM ANOVA
		CBD and	test the				showed significant effect
		sertraline on	effect of				of treatment (F[3, 39] =
		fear memory	absence.				50.58, P < 0.001), time
		retrieval (N =					(F[2.446, 95.38] = 102.8, I
		8–10/group)					< 0.001) and interaction
							between time x



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Control					treatment (F[12, 156] =
		group					6.347, P < 0.001) on
		- VEH +					freezing time, post hoc
		Shock group					analyses indicated that
		- STR + Shock					PTSD model group was
		group					the one with significant
		- CBD10 +					higher freezing time
		Shock group					compared to control.
		Experiment 5:					- Both CBD and STR
		Effects of					showed decreased
		CBD and					retrieval of fear
		sertraline on					associated memory.
		fear memory					Two-way RM ANOVA of
		reconsolidati					CBD and STR before
		on (N = 8–					retrieval showed
		10/group)					significant effect of



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Control					treatment (F [3, 34] =
		group					103.9, P < 0.001), time ((F
		- VEH +					[3.218, 109.4] = 51.86, P
		Shock group					< 0.001) and interaction
		- STR + Shock					between time x
		group					treatment (F [12, 136] =
		- CBD10 +					17.56, P < 0.001) on
		Shock group					freezing time.
		- CBD10 (24					Bonferroni's post-hoc
		hours after					tests showed STR and
		exposure) +					CBD10 group had lower
		Shock group					freezing time (Day 3, STR:
		- Naïve +					P < 0.001, CBD: P = 0.04;
		Shock group					Day 8, STR: P<0.001, CBD:
		- Naïve CBD +					P=0.002; Day 15, STR:
		Shock group					P=0.009, CBD: P=0.03).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- Two-way RM ANOVA of
							daily administration of
							CBD and STR after
							freezing test showed
							significant effect of
							treatment (F [3, 34] =
							76.65, P < 0.001), time (F
							[3.309, 112.5] = 100.1, P
							< 0.001) and interaction
							between time x
							treatment (F [12, 136] =
							9.777, P < 0.001) on
							freezing time.
							Bonferroni's post-hoc
							tests showed CBD10
							group had lower freezing



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							time in day 8 (P = 0.05) and 15 (P = 0.02). Thus, suggesting that CBD
							disrupted reconsolidation of fear associated memory.
Hudson	Male	Rats were	Injectors/i	Intra-vHipp (ventral	- Context-	- Aversive	- Co-administration with
et al.	Sprague	randomly	nfusions	hippocampus)	dependent	memory	CBD prevented THC
(2019) ¹¹	Dawley	assigned into	were	microinfusions of:	fear	(Fear	effect in increasing fear
°, Canada	rats.	groups according to different experiment and counterbalan	removed after 1 min and were done immediate ly before	- CBD: 10 and 100 ng (from Tocris Bioscience; USA). Dissolved in ethanol cremophor and saline. The	conditioning - Context- independen t fear conditioning	associated memory).	associated memory and drug associated memory through blockade of extracellular signal- regulated kinase (ERK) phosphorylation.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		ced within	cognitive	1:1:18,			Context-dependent fear
		groups.	testing.	ethanol:cremophor	-	Drug	conditioning:
		- VEH group,		:saline was used.	Conditioned	- Drug-	- One-way ANOVA
		N =11		- THC: 10 and 100	place	memory	showed significant main
		- THC 10		ng (from Cayman	preference	тепоту	effect of group [F(5,45)
		$\frac{1}{2} = 11 \times 10$		Chemical; USA).	(CPP).		3.09, p = 0.018]. Fisher's
		910up, 11 – 0		Dissolved in			LSD Post-hoc
		- THC 100		cremophor and			comparisons showed
		group, N = 9		saline. The ratio by			THC 100 group had
		- CBD 10		volume of 1:18,			elevate freezing time
		group N = 7		cremophor: saline			compared to VEH (p =
		510up, 11 = 1		was used.			0.003), CBD 100 (p =
		- CBD 100		LIQ126 (coloctive			0.038), THC 100 + CBD
		group, N = 8					100 group (p = 0.001).
							Thus, suggesting that co
				inhibitor): 1 μ g			administration with CBD
				(trom Tocris			



Author, Year & Country	Animal Model	Study Allocation and Size	Duration of Intervention	Intervention and Control	Memory Test	Types of Memory	Results
		- THC 100 +		Bioscience; USA).			diminished the increase
		CBD 100		Dissolved in DMSO			fear associated memory
		group, N = 8		and diluted in			induced by THC.
				saline to achieve a			- Further testing showed
		- 10126 -		25% DMSO			THC 100 + U0126 group
		00126 group,		concentration.			had reduced freezing
		N = 9					time compared to THC
		- THC 100 +		- EPA (ω -3 fatty			100 group (p = 0.034).
		CBD 100 +		acid			Thus, suggesting that
		EPA group, N		eicosapentaenoic			blockade of MEK1-2
		= 10		acid): 1 mM (from			disrupt the potentiate
				Tocris Bioscience;			effect of THC.
		- U0126		USA). Dissolved in			- THC 100 + CBD 100 +
		group, N = 8		cremophor and			EPA group showed
		- EPA group, N = 8	EPA group.				increased freezing time
				volume of 1:18,			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
				cremophor: saline			compared to THC 100 +
				was used.			CBD 100 group
				- Vehicle solution			[t(16) = -2.19, p = 0.043].
				of cremophor and			Thus, suggesting
							upregulation of pERK1–2
				saure (1.10) was			diminished the effect of
				used as controt.			THC and CBD in reducing
				- In all cases, the			fear associated memory.
				volume			Context-independent
				administered was			fear conditioning:
				0.5 μ l/hemisphere.			- Mixed-measures ANOVA
				Intraperitoneal			showed significant effect
				injection of:			of group group [F(3,28) =
				- Morphine sulfate:			13.36, p = 0.001],
				0.05 mg/kg.			conditioned stimulus
							factor (F(1,28) = 24.67, p



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
				Dissolved in saline.			= 0.001) but no
							interaction between
							group x conditioned
							stimulus factor. Post-hoc
							comparisons showed
							THC 100 group had
							elevate freezing time to
							$CS^{\text{-}}$ and $CS^{\text{+}}$ compared
							to VEH (p = 0.022; p
							=0.001), CBD 100 (p =
							0.007; p = 0.001), THC
							100 + CBD 100 group (p
							= 0.007; p = 0.001). Thus,
							suggesting that co-
							administration with CBD
							diminished the



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							potentiate effect from
							intra-vHipp THC.
							- Further testing showed
							THC 100 + U0126 group
							had reduced freezing
							time to CS^+ compared to
							THC 100 group (p =
							0.004) but not to CS ⁻ .
							Thus, suggesting that
							inhibition of pERK1–2
							disrupt the effect of THC.
							- THC 100 + CBD 100 +
							EPA group showed
							increased freezing time
							to CS^- and CS^+ compared
							to THC 100 + CBD 100



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							group (p = 0.026; p =
							0.001). Thus, suggesting
							co-administration with
							CBD counteract the
							effect of THC through
							inhibition of vHipp
							pERK1–2 activation.
							Conditioned place
							preference (CPP):
							- Mixed-measures ANOVA
							showed significant
							interaction between
							group x context factor
							[F(3,24) = 3.38, p = 0.035]
							but no effect of group
							and context factor. Post-



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							hoc comparisons showed
							THC 100 group spent
							more time in morphine
							context compared to
							VEH (p = 0.035), CBD 100
							(p = 0.028), THC 100 +
							CBD 100 group (p =
							0.007). Thus, suggesting
							that co-administration
							with CBD counteracted
							the enhanced preference
							for morphine from THC.
							- Further testing showed
							THC 100 + U0126 group
							compared to VEH group
							did not differ in the time



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							spent in the morphine
							context. This suggested
							that THC's modulation of
							the reward process in
							response to morphine
							may occur through local
							pERK1-2 signaling.
							- VEH group showed
							increased time spent in
							the morphine context
							compared to THC 100 +
							CBD 100 + EPA group,
							suggesting that CBD
							counteract THC
							potentiation effect



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							through local pERK1–2
							inhibition.
Kaplan	- Male	- 26 mice	The total	Intraperitoneal	- Barnes	- Spatial	- CBD treatment
et al.	and	were	duration	injection of:	Maze.	memory.	improved the rate of
(2021) ⁹⁷	female	assigned to	of	- CBD: 20 mg/kg			learning in the Barnes
, USA	C57BL/	treatment	treatment	(isolated CBD with			Maze. Prolonged CBD
	6J were	groups in a	was 21	>98% purity from			exposure during
	bred	between-	days.	Cayman Chemical			adolescence did not
	togethe	subjects		Company;			have any negative effect
	r for	experimental		Michigan, USA).			on anxiety behavior or
	offsprin	design.		Dissolved in a			spatial memory
	g mice.	Vahiela		solution of 1:1:18,			- Three-way ANOVA
	- The	- venicle		ethanol:			showed significant
	mice	$y_{10}u_{1}$, $w = 15$		cremophor: 0.9%			interaction between the
	modele	(101.F = 0.5)		saline.			exposure condition x



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	d for	- CBD group,		- Vehicle group was			acquisition day for the
	develo	N = 13 (M:F =		administered			latency to the escape
	pmenta	8:5)		similarly without			box [F(2,66) = 5.14, p <
	ι			addition of CBD.			0.01] and the distance to
	exposur			- In all cases, the			the escape box $[F(2,66) =$
	е			volume			3.60, p = 0.04]
	studies.			administered was 3			- Tukey's post hoc
				ml/kg body weight.			showed that CBD group
							had a shorter mean
							latency and distance to
							the escape box on
							second training day (p <
							0.05), suggesting faster

rate of the spatial

learning task.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- There was significant
							main effect of exposure
							condition on mean
							latency to the escape
							box [F(1,66) = 6.01, p =
							0.02] and number of
							errors, [F(1,66) = 4.04, p
							< 0.05].
							- Tukey's post hoc
							showed CBD group had
							shorter mean latency to
							the escape box and
							made fewer errors.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Khodad	- Mice	- Mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- NORT.	- Object	- CBD treatment
adi et	carrying	randomly	duration	injection of:		recognitio	improved symptoms of
al.	double	assigned N =	of	- CBD: 10 mg/kg		n memory.	AD and decrease
(2021) ⁹⁰	transge	6–10 per	treatment	(CBD isolate from			cognitive decline.
, USA	nes of	group in	was 2	Canabidiol Ltd.;			- CBD treatment
	5xFAD	blind	weeks.	Dublin, Ireland).			improved cognitive
	expressi	experimental		Mixed in 2% Tween			function (Discrimination
	ng APP	conditions.		80 and added with			Index increased to 0.5 \pm
	and	- 5xFAD-		0.9% NaCl.			0.9 from -0.2 ± 0.8, p =
	PSEN1	Vehicle		- Placebo group			0.04).
	transge	group, N = 6-		was administered			
	nes	10		similarly without			
	- The	- 5xFAD-CBD		addition of CBD.			
	mice	group, N = 6-					

modele 10



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	d for	- WT group, N					
	AD.	= 6					
Kozela	- Male	- Rats were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- NORT.	- Object	- CBD treatment
et al.	Sprague	assigned into	duration	injection of:		recognitio	prevented (acute) and
(2019) ¹¹	-	treatment	of	- CBD: 1.875, 3.75,		n memory.	reversed (sub-chronic)
⁴ , Israel	Dawley	groups.	treatment	7.5, 15, and 30			KET-induced object
and	rats.	For acute	was 6 days	mg/kg (from THC			recognition deficit.
Deland		administratio	for sub-	Pharma GmbH;			- Acute administration of
POlanu	- The	n of CBD	chronic	Frankfurt/Main,			CBD before KET injection
	rat	- Vehicles	experimen	Germany).			prevented deficit [F(6,56)
	modele	only treated	t.	Dissolved in 10%			= 24.25; p < 0.001].
	d	(V-V), N = 7		aqueous solution			- The effect can be
	schizop	- KET-only		of mixture of 1:1			observed in a dose
	hrenia-	treated (KET-		ethanol.			dependent manner
	like	V), N = 8					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	cognitiv	- KET+ CBD		- In all cases, the			where 7.5 and 30 mg/kg
	е	1.875 mg/kg		volume			showed effectiveness.
	deficits	(KET-CBD), N		administered was 1			- Two-way mixed design
	using	= 9		ml/kg body weight.			ANOVA showed
	intraper	- KET+ CBD					significant effects of CBE
	itoneal	3.75 mg/kg					treatment [F(3,33) =
	adminis	(KET-CBD), N					61.561; p < 0.001]. Thus
	tration	= 10					showed that CBD
	of 20	- KET+ CBD					reversed KET-induced
	mg/kg	7.5 mg/kg					deficit.
	of	(KET-CBD), N					
	ketamin	= 10					
	e (KET	- KET+ CBD					
	from	15 mg/kg					
	115.34	(KET-CBD), N					
	mg/ml	= 9					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	of an	- KET+ CBD					
	aqueou	30 mg/kg					
	S	(KET-CBD), N					
	solutio	= 10					
	n,	For sub-					
	Vetoqui	chronic					
	nol	administratio					
	Biowet,	n of CBD					
	Gorzow	- Vehicles					
	Wielkop	only treated					
	olski,	(∨-∨), N = 9					
	Poland	- 7.5 mg/kg					
	diluted	CBD only					
	in	treated (V-					
	distilled	CBD) N = 9					
	water).						



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- KET-only					
		treated (KET-					
		V), N = 10					
		- KET+ CBD					
		7.5 mg/kg					
		(KET-CBD), N					
		= 9					
Kreilaus	-	- Mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- SPT.	- Social	- Chronic CBD treatment
et a.	Female	assigned into	duration	injection of:		recognitio	restored social and
(2022) ⁹¹	mice	treatment	of	- CBD: 100 mg/kg		n memory.	spatial reference
,	carrying	groups.	treatment	(from CAS: 13956-			memory deficit and
Australi	heteroz	- WT-vehicle	was 7	29-1 THC Pharma			decreased contextual
а	ygous	group, N = 11	weeks.	GmbH;		- Spatial	fear-associated memory.
	transge	- TAU58/2-		Frankfurt/Main,	- CB.	memory.	- In SPT, single sample t-
	nes of	vehicle		Germany).			tests showed CBD
	TAU58/	group, N = 11		Dissolved in 100%			treatment reversed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	2	- WT-CBD		ethanol andTween		- Aversive	deficit [Sociability of
	expressi	group, N = 11		80, diluted with	Гест	memory	TAU58/2-CBD, t(8) = 4.32;
	ng the	- TAU58/2		0.9% NaCl with	- Fear	(Fear	p = 0.003; Social
	human	CBD group, N		final volume of 5%	conditioning	associated	recognition memory of
	0N4R	= 9		ethanol and 5%		memory).	TAU58/2-CBD group, t(8)
	tau			Tween80.			= 4.48; p = 0.002].
	isoform			- Vehicle group was			- In CB training, two-way
	with			administered			ANOVA showed CBD
	the			similarly without			restored spatial memory
	P301S			addition of CBD.			by reducing the overall
	mutatio			- In all cases, the			latency to find reward
	n.			volume			[F(1,18) = 5.77; p =
	- The			administered was			0.027], and increasing the
	mice			10 ml/kg body			speed of trial compared
	modele			weight.			[F(1,36) = 5.44; p =
	d for						0.025].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	Frontot						- In CB probe trial, single
	empora						sample t-tests showed
	ι						CBD group having higher
	dement						preference to reward
	ia (FTD)						zone compared to
	and AD.						TAU58/2-vehicle group
							[TAU58/2-vehicle group
							t(10) = 1.78; p = 0.11;
							TAU58/2-CBD group t(8)
							= 4.65; p = 0.002] with
							two-way ANOVA
							comparison showing
							significant genotype x
							'reatment interaction
							[F(1,35) = 5.2; p = 0.029].


Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- In reversal probe trial,
							TAU58/2-vehicle group
							spent longer in the
							reward zone while CBD
							treated group did not.
							[TAU58/2-vehicle group
							t(10) = 2.63; p = 0.025;
							TAU58/2-CBD group t(7)
							= 1.30; p = 0.23].
							- CBD treatment reduced
							freezing time [F(1,37) =
							4.46; p = 0.042].
Kruk-	- Male	Mice were	For acute	Intraperitoneal	- Passive	- Aversive	- CBD treatment at 30
Slomka	Swiss	assigned into	administra	injection of:	avoidance	memory	mg/kg improved all
and	mice.	groups.				(Fear	phases of fear associated



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Biala	- The	Acute	tion of	- CBD: 1, 5, and 30	(PA) learning	associated	memory where CBD at 1
(2021) ⁸²	rat	administratio	CBD:	mg/kg (from Tocris,	task.	memory).	or 5 mg/kg reduced
,	modele	n of CBD (N =	Mamany	USA). Suspended in			memory impairment in
Poland	d	8-10):		1% Tween 80 and			the consolidation and
	Schizop			0.9% NaCl.			retrieval stage.
	hrenia's	- ven gloup	: intonyontio	- MK-801: 0.6 mg/kg			Acute administration of
	patholo	- CBD 1 group		(Tocris, Bristol, UK).			CBD:
	gy and	- CBD 5 group	riven 20	Dissolved in 0.9%			- For memory acquisitior
	cognitio		given 50	NaCl.			one-way ANOVA showed
	n	- CBD 30	mins prior.	- Vehicle group was			effect of CBD doses on
	impair	group	- LTM	administered			latency index [LI; F(3.33)
	ment		consolidati	similarly without			= 15.99; p < 0.0001].
	using		on:	addition of CBD.			Post-hoc Tukey's test
	intraper	Acute co-	interventio	- In all cases, the			showed CBD at 30 mg/kg
	itoneal	administratio	n was	volume			increased LI scores
	injectio	n of CBD and	given	administered was			compared to VEH group



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	n of N-	MK-801 (N =	immediate	10 ml/kg body			(p < 0.001). Thus,
	methyl-	8-9):	ly after	weight.			suggesting that CBD
	D-	- VEH-VEH	trial				treatment improved
	aspartat	group	- Retrieval·				memory acquisition.
	е	sioup	inton/ontio				- For consolidation: one-
	(NMDA)	- VEH-MK-801					way ANOVA showed
	recepto	group	riven 20				effect of CBD doses on LI
	r		given 50				[F (3.31) = 6.105; p =
	antagon		minutes				0.0025]. Post-hoc Tukey's
	ist, MK-	group	before				test showed CBD at 30
	801.	- CBD5-VEH	retrieval.				mg/kg increased LI scores
		group	For co-				compared to VEH group
		- CBD1-MK-	administra				(p < 0.05). Thus,
		801 group	tion of				suggesting that CBD
		oor group	CBD and				treatment improved
			MK-801:				memory consolidation.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD5-MK-	- Memory				- For memory retrieval:
		801 group	acquisition				one-way ANOVA showed
			:				effect of CBD doses on LI
			interventio				[F (3.31) = 5.473; p =
			n was				0.0043]. Post-hoc Tukey's
			given 15				test showed CBD at 30
			mins prior				mg/kg increased LI scores
			trial				compared to VEH group
			before				(p < 0.01). Thus,
			MK-801 or				suggesting that CBD
			VEH.				treatment improved
			- I TM				memory retrieval.
			consolidati				
			on.				Acute co-administration
			interventio				of CBD and MK-801:
			11 11 11 11				



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
			given 15				- For memory acquisition:
			mins prior				two-way ANOVA showed
			trial				significant effect of MK-
			before				801 on LI [F(1.42) =
			MK-801 or				134.8; p < 0.0001] and
			VEH where				interaction [F(2.42) =
			test was				3.784; p = 0.0308] but no
			24 hours				significant effect of
			later.				pretreating with CBD
			Detriered				[F(2.42) = 3.207; p =
			- Retrieval:				0.0505]. Post-hoc Tukey's
			Interventio				test showed MK-801
			n was				decrease LI scores
			given 24				compared to VEH group
			nours after				(p < 0.001) but CBD
			test and				
			15 mins				



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
			prior trial				showed no effect against
			before				MK-801 (p > 0.05).
			MK-801 or				- For memory
			VEH.				consolidation: two-way
							ANOVA showed
							significant effect of MK-
							801 on LI [F(1.44) =
							13,77; p = 0.0006] and
							interaction [F(2.44) =
							4.643; p = 0.0148] but no
							significant effect of
							pretreating with CBD [F
							(2.44) = 2.571; p =
							0.0879]. Post-hoc Tukey'
							test showed MK-801
							decrease LI scores



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							compared to VEH group
							(p < 0.001) and that CBD
							(1 and 5 mg/kg) showed
							effect against MK-801 (p
							< 0.05).
							- For memory retrieval:
							two-way ANOVA showed
							significant effect of MK-
							801 on LI [F(1.42) =
							20,27; p < 0,0001],
							interaction [F(2.42) =
							6.581; p = 0.033] and
							effect of pretreating with
							CBD [F(2.42) = 13.19; p <
							0.0001]. Post-hoc Tukey's
							test showed MK-801



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							decrease LI scores compared to VEH group (p < 0.001) and that CBD (1 and 5 mg/kg) showed effect against MK-801 (p
							< 0.001).
Ledesm	- Male	Mice were	Exp 1.	Intraperitoneal	- Cocaine-	- Drug-	- CBD treatment at 30
a et al.	C57BL/	assigned into	Interventio	injection of:	induced	associated	and 60 mg/kg prevented
(2021) ⁸³	6 J	groups.	n was	- CBD: 30, 60 and	CPP.	memory.	reinstatement of CPP
, Spain	mice.	Experiment 1:	given prior	120 mg/kg (from		- Object	while at 120 mg/kg
		effects of	conditioni	THC Pharm GmbH;	- NORT.	recognitio	improved memory
		CBD on CPP	ng.	Germany).		n memory.	deficits induced by
			Evp 2	Dissolved in			cocaine withdrawal.
		acquisition.	LXP Z.	vehicle solution of			However, there was no
			n was	saline and 4% of			effect on acquisition,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 0 +	given post	dimethyl sulfoxide			expression or extinction
		Coc group, N	conditioni	(DMSO).			of cocaine-induced CPP.
		= 12	ng and 60	- Cocaine			Experiment 1: effects of
			mins	hydrochloride: 5,			CBD on CPP acquisition.
		- CBD 30 + Coc group, N	before	10, 15, 20 and 25			- CBD treatment had no
		= 10	iesi.				effect on acquisition.
			Exp 3.	0.9% NACI.			- ANOVA showed
			Interventio				significant effects on
			n was				Days [F(1, 50) = 10.67; p
		= 12	given 60				< 0.01], Treatment [F(4,
		- CBD 30 +	mins				50) = 3.65; p < 0.05] and
		Sal group, N	before				Days x Treatment
		= 11	extinction.				interaction [F(4, 50) =
							9.01; p < 0.01]. Post-hoc
			Exp. 4				tests showed cocaine
			interventio				treated mice spent more



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 60 +	n was				time in drug-paired
		Sal group, N	given				context during post-
		= 10	before				conditioning compared
		Exporiment 2.	Coc/Sal				(CBD 0 + Coc group, p <
		effects of	administra				0.001; CBD 30 + Coc
			tion				group, p < 0.05; CBD 60
		CBD on the					+ Coc group, p < 0.001)
			Exp. 5 – 7				While CBD + Sal groups
		expression.	Interventio				showed no significant
		- Coc + CBD	n was				change in time spent in
		0 group, N =	given				the compartment.
		10	during				Experiment 2: effects of
		- Coc + CBD	withdrawal				' CBD on CPP expression.
		30 group, N =	period and				- CBD treatment had no
		12	60 mins				effect on CPP expressio



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Coc + CBD	before				- ANOVA showed
		60 group, N =	test.				significant effects on
		10					Days [F (1, 29) = 33.8; p <
		Experiment 3:					0.01] but not on
		effects of					Treatment nor
		CBD on CPP					interaction. Post-hoc
		during					tests showed cocaine
		extinction					treated mice spent more
		and					time in drug-paired
		reinstatemen					context during post-
		t.					conditioning (Coc + CBD
		- CBD 0 +					0 group, p < 0.01; Coc +
		RCoc group,					CBD 30 group, p < 0.01;
		N = 8					Coc + CBD 60 group, p <
							0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 30 +					Experiment 3: effects of
		RCoc group,					CBD on CPP during
		N = 10					extinction and
							reinstatement.
							- ANOVA showed
		RCoc group,					significant effects on
		N = 9					Days [F(1, 24) = 58; p <
		Experiment 4:					0.001] but not on
		effects of					Treatment nor
		CBD on					interaction with only CBD
		locomotor					0 + RCoc group showed
		stimulation.					reinstatement of CPP (p
		- CBD 0 +					< 0.05). Thus, suggesting
		Coc group, N					CBD had blocking effect
		= 12					on reinstatement.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 30 +					Experiment 4: effects of
		Coc group, N					CBD on locomotor
		= 12					stimulation.
							- Pre-treatment with CBD
							at 30 mg/kg reduced the
		Coc group, N					locomotor stimulating
		= 11					effects of Coc.
		- CBD 0 + Sal					Experiment 5: effects of
		group, N = 12					CBD on the open field
							after withdrawal.
							- All the groups showed
		Jac group, N					similar activities.
		= 12					Experiment 6: effects of
		- CBD 60 +					CBD on object
		Sal group, N					recognition after
		= 12					withdrawal.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment 5:					- CBD treatment at 120
		effects of					mg/kg prior to exposure
		CBD on the					showed improvement in
		open field					memory impairment
		after					induced by withdrawal.
		withdrawal (N					- ANOVA showed
		= 12-					significant effects on
		15/group).					treatment [F(1, 82) =
		- Sal + CBD 0					108.48, p < 0.01] and
		group					Treatment x CBD
		- Sal + CBD					interaction [F(2, 82) =
		60 group					13.51, p < 0.01]. Post-ho
		- Sal + CBD					tests showed Coc + CBD
		120 group					120 group had
		- Coc + CBD					significantly higher DI
		0 group					than both Coc + CBD 0



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Coc + CBD					and Coc + CBD 60 groups
		60 group					(p < 0.01).
		- Coc + CBD					Experiment 7: effects of
		120 group					CBD on the Tail
		Experiment 6:					Suspension Test after
		effects of					withdrawal.
		CBD on the					- CBD treatment showed
		object					no effect on depressive-
		recognition					like symptoms.
		test after					
		withdrawal (N					
		= 12-					
		15/group).					
		- Sal + CBD 0					
		group					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Sal + CBD					
		60 group					
		- Sal + CBD					
		120 group					
		- Coc + CBD					
		0 group					
		- Coc + CBD					
		60 group					
		- Coc + CBD					
		120 group					
		Experiment 7:					
		effects of					
		CBD on the					
		Tail					
		Suspension					
		Test after					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		withdrawal (N					
		= 12-					
		15/group).					
		- Sal + CBD 0					
		group					
		- Sal + CBD					
		60 group					
		- Sal + CBD					
		120 group					
		- Coc + CBD					
		0 group					
		- Coc + CBD					
		60 group					
		- Coc + CBD					
		120 group					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Long et	- Male	- Mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- Y-maze.	- Spatial	- CBD treatment had no
al.	C57BL/	randomly	duration	injection of:		memory.	effect on spatial and
(2010) ⁹²	6JArc	assigned and	of	- CBD: 1, 5, 10 and			aversive memory. There
,	mice.	counterbalan	treatment	50 mg/kg (from	- PA Test.		was no difference Y-
Australi	- Drug-	ces across	was 21	THC Pharma GmbH;		- Aversive	maze tasks and PA test.
а	induce	groups, N =	days for	Frankfurt/Main,		memory	
	d	8–10. Per	chronic	Germany).		(Fear	
	psychot	group.	experimen	Suspended in a		associated	
	omimet	- Vehicle	t.	1:1:18 mixture of		memory).	
	ic	group		ethanol: Tween-80:			
	behavio	- Δ ⁹ -THC 0.3		saline.			
	ur	mg/kg group		- Δ ⁹ -THC: 0.3, 1, 3			
	were	- Δ ⁹ -THC 1		and 10 mg/kg (from			
	done	mg/kg group		THC Pharma GmbH;			
	with	- Δ ⁹ -THC 3		Frankfurt/Main,			
	non-	mg/kg group		Germany).			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	compet	- Δ ⁹ -THC 10		Suspended in a			
	itive	mg/kg group		1:1:18 mixture of			
	NMDA	- CBD 1		ethanol: Tween-80:			
	antagon	mg/kg group		saline.			
	ist MK-	- CBD 5		- In all cases, the			
	801	mg/kg group		volume			
	and the	- CBD 10		administered was			
	catecho	mg/kg group		10 ml/kg body			
	laminer	- CBD 50		weight.			
	gic	mg/kg group					
	stimula						
	nt						
	dexam						
	phetam						
	ine						
	(Dex).						



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Meyer	- Male	- Rats were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- 8-arm	- Spatial	- CBD treatment reduced
et al.	Wistar	randomly	duration	injection of:	Aversive	memory.	ischemia-induced
(2021) ⁹⁸	rats	assigned into	of	- CBD: 10 mg/kg	Radial Maze		memory deficits.
,		treatment	treatment	(from THC Pharma	(A∨RM).		- Analysis showed that
Brazil	- The	groups.	was 14	GmbH;	- Object	- Object	both latency and
DIdZIU	rat	For 8-arm	days.	Frankfurt/Main,	Location	recognitio	number of errors
	modele	Aversive		Germany).	Test (OLT).	n memory.	significantly decreased ir
	d	Radial Maze:		Dissolved in 2%			the TGCI + CDB group (p
	Transie	- Sham +		Tween 80 in sterile			< 0.0001-0.01).
	nt	vehicle, N =		isotonic saline			- CBD treatment
	global	14		(vehicle).			improved impairment in
	cerebra	- Sham +					discrimination ability
	ι	CBD, N = 17					[student's t-test, t ₂₆ =
	ischemi	- TGCI +					2.60, p < 0.05].
	a (TGCI)	vehicle, N =					- One-way ANOVA
	induce	12					showed significant



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	d by	- TGCI+CBD,					differences in
	four-	N = 13					discrimination index
	vessel	For Object					among groups [F _{2, 46} =
	occlusi	Location					4.67, p < 0.05] where
	on (4-	Test:					Duncan's post hoc
	VO)	- Sham +					analyses showed TGCI +
	model.	vehicle, N =					vehicle group having
		21					lower score than the
		- TGCI +					sham + vehicle group (p
		vehicle, N =					< 0.05). But TGCI + CBD
		20					group showed significant
		- TGCI+CBD,					decrease in spatial
		N = 21					memory impairment (p
							0.05).
							- TGCI + CBD group
							showed discrimination



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							score that was significant
							[Student's t-test, t ₂₆ =
							2.87, p < 0.01], showing
							that CBD treatment
							prevented TGCI-induced
							spatial memory deficits.
Montay	Female	Mice were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment showed
a et al.	C57BL/	assigned in	n was	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	reduced contextual and
(2020) ⁸⁴	6 mice.	different	given 30	- CBD: 10 mg/kg.		(Fear	generalized fear memory
, USA		conditioning	mins (CBD)	Dissolved in 2%		associated	while extinction of fear
		group.	and 60	ethanol, 2% Tween		memory).	was enhanced. CBD
		Paired-	mins (CIT)	80 and 0.9% NaCl.			treatment had no effect
		conditioned	prior fear	- Citalopram (CIT;			on auditory cue-
		group:	conditioni	SSRI): 10 mg/kg.			associated fear memory.
			ng.	Dissolved in 2%			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH-Pair		ethanol, 2% Tween			CBD and CIT showed no
		group (N =		80 and 0.9% NaCl.			effect on auditory cue-
		12)		- Vehicle group was			associated fear memory:
		- CBD-Pair		administered			- There was no significant
		group (N =		similarly without			difference in freezing
		12)		addition of CBD or			behavior between
		- CIT-Pair		CIT.			different conditioning
		group (N =					and treatment groups
		12)					compared to control.
		Unpaired-					Thus, suggesting that
		conditioned					both CBD and CIT
		group:					showed no effect on
		- VEH-UP					auditory cue-associated
		group (N =					fear memory.
		12)					CBD reduced contextual
							fear memory but not CIT:



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD-UP					- CBD treated groups
		group (N =					showed reduced freezing
		12)					time by 11% compared
		- CIT-UP					to VEH groups (p < 0.05).
		group (N =					But CIT treated group
		12)					showed similar results.
		Non-					CBD and CIT reduced
		conditioned					generalized fear memory:
		group:					- CBD treated groups
		- VEH-NC					showed reduction in
		group (N =					freezing time by 20% and
		12)					CIT treated groups
		- CBD-NC					showed reduction by
		group (N =					22% compared to VEH
		12)					groups (both: p < 0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CIT-NC					CBD and CIT showed
		group (N =					enhanced extinction:
		12)					- For auditory cued
							memory extinction, both
							CBD and CIT treated
							groups showed significant
							reduction in freezing
							time (both: p < 0.05).
							- For contextual memory
							extinction, CBD treated
							groups showed
							significantly lower
							freezing time compared
							to control groups (p =
							0.001).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- For generalized fear
							memory extinction, CBD
							treated group showed
							reduced freezing time (p
							< 0.05).
							Effects of estrous cycle
							on fear memory:
							- There was no effect of
							estrous cycle phase on
							fear memory or
							extinction.
Murkar	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Oral administration	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment reduced
et al.	Sprague	randomly	n was	of:	Conditioning	memory	fear memory
(2015) ¹¹	-Dawley	assigned into	given	- CBD: 50 mg/kg		(Fear	reconsolidation in which
	rats.	different	immediate	(extracted from			the effect lasted for 7



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
1,		experiment	ly after	Strawberry Kush,		associated	days. THC combined wit
Canada		groups (N =	memory	Cannabis indica		memory).	CBD or plant BM reduce
		7–10/group).	retrieval.	and Cannabis			reconsolidation of fear
		For		<i>sativa</i> hybrid;			memory but not when
		Experiment 1		University of			given as monotherapy.
		and 2:		Ottawa, Canada).			Plant BM reduced fear
		- 50 THC +		- THC: 5 and 50			memory reconsolidation
		21.5 BM		mg/kg (extracted			alone and in
		group		from Strawberry			combination with THC
		- 50 CBD +		Kush			and CBD.
		21.5 BM		; University of			Experiment 1: Effects of
		group		Ottawa, Canada).			CBD, THC and plant BM
		- 5 THC + 2		- Plant background			on short-term fear
		BM group		material (BM): 2,			memory reconsolidation
				21.5, 24 and 43			- Mixed measure ANOVA
				mg/kg (extracted			showed significant main



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- 50 THC + 50		from Strawberry			effect of treatment on
		CBD + 43 BM		Kush containing			freezing time [F(6,53) =
		group		less than $3 \pm 0.5\%$			5.509, p < 0.001]. Further
		- 50 CBD + 5		THC and less than			analyses showed 5 THC
		THC + 24 BM		0.6% of CBD;			+ 2 BM group, 50 THC +
		group		University of			50 CBD + 43 BM group,
		- 43 BM		Ottawa, Canada).			50 CBD + 21.5 BM group
		group		Total amount of			and 43 BM group showed
		- VEH group		compounds			significant reduction in
		For		contained 30% of			freezing time (all p's <
		Experiments		BM and 70%			0.05). However, 50 THC +
		3, 4 and 5:		cannabinoids.			21.5 BM group and 50
		- 5 THC group					CBD + 5 THC + 24 BM
		- 50 CBD					group did not (p > 0.05).
		group					Experiment 2: Effects of
							CBD, THC and plant BM



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- 50 THC + 50					on long-term fear
		CBD group					memory reconsolidation
		- 43 BM					- Mixed measure ANOVA
		group					showed significant main
		- VEH group					effect of treatment on
							freezing time [F(6,53) =
							4.974, p < 0.001]. Furthe
							analyses showed 5 THC
							+ 2 BM group, 50 THC +
							50 CBD + 43 BM group,
							50 CBD + 5 THC + 24 BN
							group, 50 CBD + 21.5 BN
							group and 43 BM group
							showed significant
							reduction in freezing
							time (all p's < 0.01).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							However, 50 THC + 21.5
							BM group did not (p >
							0.05).
							Experiment 3: Effects of
							CBD, THC without plant
							BM on short-term fear
							memory reconsolidation.
							- Mixed measure ANOVA
							showed significant main
							effect of treatment on
							freezing time [F(4,40) =
							7.517, p < 0.001]. Further
							analyses showed 43 BM
							group, 50 THC + 50 CBD
							group, 50 CBD group
							showed significant



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							reduction in freezing
							time (all p's < 0.05).
							However, 5 THC group
							did not (p > 0.05).
							Experiment 4: Effects of
							CBD, THC without plant
							BM on long-term fear
							memory reconsolidation.
							- Mixed measure ANOVA
							showed significant main
							effect of treatment on
							freezing time [F(4,40) =
							6.670, p < 0.001]. Further
							analyses showed 43 BM
							group, 50 THC + 50 CBD
							group, 50 CBD group



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							showed significant
							reduction in freezing
							time (all p's < 0.05).
							However, 5 THC group
							did not (p > 0.05).
							Experiment 5: Effects of
							CBD, THC and plant BM
							on memory recall.
							- There was no significan
							main effects of group
							[F(4,40) = 0.919, p >
							0.05].
Norris	Male	Rats were	Injections/i	Infused	- Olfactory	- Aversive	- Intra-NASh CBD
et al.	Sprague	assigned into	nfusions	intracranially into	Fear	memory	treatment disrupted
(2016) ¹¹	_	different	were	intra-shell region of		(Fear	formation of conditionec



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
2,	Dawley	treatment	removed	the mesolimbic	Conditioning	associated	freezing behaviors in a
Canada	rats.	and	after 1 min	nucleus		memory).	dose dependent manne
		experimental	and were	accumbens (NASh):	- Footshock		This occurred through a
		groups.	done	- CBD: 1, 10 and	Sensitivity		mechanism dependent
		Ear alfactory	immediate	100 ng/0.5 µ l (from	Tests.		on 5-HT1A and GABAerg
		for	ly before	Tocris, USA).			transmission substrates,
		conditioning	test.	Dissolved in DMSO			acting via the NASh and
		conditioning.		and diluted in PBS			VTA neuronal pathway.
		- VEH group,		to form 1% DMSO			- ANOVA of % freezing
		N = 6		in PBS vehicle			time showed significant
		- CBD 1		(VEH) solution.			main effect of group
		group N = 7		- RIM: 50 and 500			[F(7,287) = 5.75, p =
		51000,11		ng/0.5 µ l			0.0001] with post-hoc
		- CBD 10		(SR141716A; CB1R			analyses showing
		group, N = 8		antagonist; Tocris,			treatment with higher
				USA). Dissolved in			doses of CBD (10 and



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 100		DMSO and diluted			100 ng) reduced freezing
		group, N = 6		in PBS to form 1%			response to CS+
				DMSO in PBS			compared to control
				vehicle (VEH)			(both p's < 0.001).
		$\frac{1}{10}$		solution.			- Co-administration of
		group, n = r		- NAD 299: 10, 100			CBD and NAD 299:
		- CBD 100 +		and 500 ng/0.5 µ l			ANOVA of % freezing
		NAD299 100		(5-HT _{1A} receptor			time showed significant
		group, N = 6		antagonist; Tocris,			main effect of treatment
		- CBD 100 +		USA). Dissolved in			group [F(1,37) = 13.9; p <
		C flu 100		DMSO and diluted			0.001] with post-hoc
		$\frac{1}{100}$		in PBS to form 1%			analyses showing co-
		g(oup, N = 0)		DMSO in PBS			administration of CBD
		- CBD 100 +		vehicle (VEH)			with NAD 299 (10 and
		α -flu 1000		solution.			100 ng) significantly
		group, N = 8					increased freezing



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 100 +		- α -flu: 100 and			response to CS+
		RIM 50 group,		1000 ng/0.5 μ l (α -			compared to control
		N = 9		flupenthixol; DA			(both p's < 0.01). Thus,
		- CBD 100 +		receptor			suggesting 5-HT_{1A}
		RIM 500		antagonist; Tocris;			dependent mechanism
		$\frac{1}{2}$		USA). Dissolved in			in which blockade of 5-
		şıoup, 11 – 10		saline.			HT_{1A} counteracted CBD's
		- NAD299 100		- Bicuculline: 50			effect.
		group, N = 8		ng/0.5 μ l (GABA _A			- Co-administration of
		- 0 -flu 1000		antagonist; Tocris;			CBD and $oldsymbol{lpha}$ -flu: ANOVA of
		group N = 8		USA). Dissolved in			% freezing time showed
		sroup, n = 0		saline.			significant main effect of
		For		- Saclofen: 50			treatment group [F(3,50)
		Footshock		ng/0.5 μ l (GABA _B			= 5.65; p < 0.001] with
		Sensitivity		antagonist; Tocris;			post-hoc analyses
		Test:		-			showing coadministration



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH group,		USA). Dissolved in			of CBD with $oldsymbol{lpha}$ -flu (100
		N = 8		saline.			and 1000) showed no
		- CBD 100					effect on associative
		aroun N = 7					freezing during exposure
		S100p, 11 - 1					to CS+ (p's > 0.05). Thus,
		- α -flu 1000					suggesting that blockade
		group, N = 8					of DA receptor had no
		- NAD299 100					effect on fear memory
		$\frac{1}{100}$					acquisition.
		group, 11 – 0					- Coadministration of
							CBD and RIM: ANOVA of
		For ventral					% freezing time showed
		tegmental					significant main effect of
		area (VTA)					treatment group [F(2,47)
							= 10.53; p < 0.001] with
		DAergic and					post-hoc analyses


Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		non-DAergic					showing coadministration
		neuronal					of CBD with RIM (50 and
		activity:					500 ng) showed no
							reversal of CBD's
		- CDD IVU					disruption on fear
		group, $N = 15$					memory acquisition (p's
		For ventral					> 0.05).
		VTA					- For footshock sensitivity
		recordings on					tests: ANOVA showed no
		serotonergic/					effect on freezing
		dopaminergic					behavior [F(3,29) = 1.10;
		antagonists					p > 0.05], total distanced
		activity:					traveled [F(3,29) = 0.92;
							p > 0.05] and average
		- VEH group,					number of jumping
		N = 10					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 100					events [F(3,29) = 0.25; p
		group, N = 15					> 0.05].
							- Analysis of VTA
							recordings on DAergic
		$\frac{10}{3}$					neuronal activity showed
		gioup, 11 – 10					that 60% of DA neurons
		- CBD 100 +					had decreased activity
		α -flu 1000					and CBD increased
		group, N = 9					neuronal activity.
							- Analysis of VTA
							recordings on GABAergic
		VIA Evenetismed					neuronal activity showed
		Functional					that 40% of non-DA
		Disconnectio					neurons had increased
		n Studies:					activity and CBD



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH + VEH					increased neuronal
		group, N = 6					activity.
		- VEH + CBD					- VTA recordings of
		100 group, N					DAergic neuronal activity
		= 6					showed the following:
		-					• Intra-NASh VEH
		- Saclofen +					showed 30%
		Bicuculline +					increased and
		CBD 100					20% decreased
		group, N = 6					neuronal activity.
		- Saclofen +					• Intra-NASh CBD
		Bicuculline +					showed 60%
		VEH group, N					decreased
		= 6					neuronal activity.
							 Intra-NASh CBD +

NAD 299 showed



Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
	Size					
						60% decreased
						neuronal activity.
						 Intra-NASh CBD +
						lpha-flu showed
						78% decreased
						neuronal activity.
						• Comparison of
						activity rate of
						pre- and post-
						infusion showed -
						27% in CBD, +3%
						in CBD + NAD
						299, and - 23%
						CBD + Q -flu
						group.
	Animal Model	Animal Study Model Allocation and Size	Animal Study Duration of Model Allocation and Intervention Size	Animal Study Duration of Intervention and Model Allocation and Intervention Control Size	Animal Study Duration of Intervention and Memory Test Model Allocation and Intervention Control Size	Animal Study Duration of Intervention and Memory Test Types of Model Allocation and Intervention Control Memory Size Size Size Size Size



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- ANOVA of VTA DA
							neuron activity showed
							significant main effect of
							treatment [F(3,43) = 3.57,
							p < 0.05] with post-hoc
							analysis showing intra-
							NASh CBD and CBD + $oldsymbol{lpha}$ -
							flu had decreased
							activity (p's < 0.05), while
							CBD + NAD 299 group
							had increased activity (p
							< 0.05). Thus, suggesting
							that coadministration
							with NAD 299 may
							reversed the reduction
							effect of CBD.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- Disconnecting the
							NASh-VTA pathway
							reversed the blocking
							effect of intra-NASh CBD
							on fear memory
							formation [F(3,38) =
							3.261; p ≤ 0.05]. Post-
							hoc analysis showed that
							administering $GABA_{A\!/B}$
							antagonists in the VTA
							before intra-NASh CBD
							significantly increased
							freezing behaviors in
							response to the CS+
							stimulus (p < 0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Osbour	-	Offspring	The total	Intraperitoneal	- NORT.	- Object	- CBD treatment
ne et	Offsprin	were grouped	duration	injection of:		recognitio	improved deficits in
al.	g of	as offspring	of	- CBD: 10 mg/kg		n memory.	recognition and working
(2017) ¹¹	Sprague	of control	treatment	(from THC Pharma			memory as well as social
7,	-Dawley	(saline	was 3	GmbH;	- Rewarded		interaction in rat model.
Australi	rats.	injection) or	weeks.	Frankfurt/Main,	T-maze	- Spatial	- In NORT, CBD treatment
а	- The	offspring of		Germany).	alternation	memory	significantly improved
	rat	poly I:C.		Dissolved in 1:16	test.	(reference	discrimination ratio of
	modele	- CONT+VEH,		(v/v), Tween		and	poly I:C offspring
	d	N = 12		80:saline.		working	(POLY+CBD vs
	schizop	- CONT+CBD,		- Vehicle group was		memory).	POLY+VEH, p = 0.003).
	hrenia-	N = 12		administered			But there was no
	like	- POLY+VEH,		similarly without			significant difference
	phenot	N = 12		addition of CBD.			between CONT+VEH and
	уре	- POLY+CBD,		- In all cases, the			CONT+CBD group (p =
	induce	N = 12		volume			0.205).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	d by			administered was 5			- In Rewarded T-Maze
	polyino			ml/kg body weight.			Alternation Test, CBD
	sinic-						treatment improved
	polycyti						working memory deficits
	dilic						in poly I:C offspring
	acid						(POLY+VEH vs
	(poly						POLY+CBD, p = 0.009)
	I:C)						and restored
	injectio						performance to control
	n (4						levels (POLY+CBD vs
	mg/kg).						CONT+VEH, p = 0.561).
							- However, CBD
							treatment did not affect
							working memory
							performance of control
							groups (CONT+VEH vs



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							CONT+CBD, p = 0.686)
							showing no effect in
							healthy rats.
Osbour	-	Offspring	The total	Intraperitoneal	- NORT.	- Object	- CBD treatment
ne et	Offsprin	were grouped	duration	injection of:		recognitio	improved deficits in
al.	g of	as control	of	- CBD: 10 mg/kg		n memory	recognition memory and
(2019) ¹¹	Sprague	(saline	treatment	(from CAS: 13956-			social interaction in rat
8,	-Dawley	injection) or	was 3	29-1, THC Pharma	- Rewarded		model, while there was
Australi	rats.	poly I:C.	weeks.	GmbH;	T-maze	- Spatial	no difference in working
а	- The	- CONT+VEH,		Frankfurt/Main,	alternation	memory	memory.
	rat	N = 12		Germany).	test.	(reference	- In NORT, CBD treatment
	modele	- CONT+CBD,		Dissolved in 1:16		and	improved discrimination
	d	N = 12		(v/v), Tween		working	index in poly I:C offspring
	matern	- POLY+VEH,		80:saline.		memory)	(POLY+VEH vs
	al	N = 12		- Vehicle group was			POLY+CBD, p = 0.036)
	immun			administered			and restored



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	е	- POLY+CBD,		similarly without			performance to control
	activati	N = 12		addition of CBD.			level (POLY+CBD vs
	on			- In all cases, the			CONT+VEH, p = 0.578).
	(MIA) to			volume			- However, CBD
	produc			administered was 5			treatment showed no
	е			ml/kg body weight.			effect in NORT of contro
	offsprin						groups (CONT+VEH vs
	g with						CONT+CBD, p = 0.280).
	schizop						- Mann-Whitney tests
	hrenia-						showed no significant
	like						difference in Rewarded
	sympto						T-Maze Alternation Test
	ms						(CONT + VEH vs.
	induce						POLY+VEH, p = 0.950;
	d by						POLY+VEH vs.
							POLY+CBD, p = 0.724;



Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
	Size					
poly						CONT + VEH vs. CONT +
I:Cinject						CBD, p = 0.519).
ion (4						
mg/kg).						
- Wistar	Rats were	- CBD was	Oral administration	A hole-	Spatial	- Chronic CBD treatment
rat.	assigned into	administer	of:	board	learning	improved spatial learning
- The	treatment	ed for 10	CPD: 200 mg/kg	apparatus.	and	and memory in rat
rat	groups.	weeks.	(from CW)		memory.	model for RISE-SRS of
modele					Deference	TLE.
d	- Naive		Pharmaceuticats		(Reference	
Status	vehicle -		Ltd.; Cambridge,		-memory	- One-way ANOVA
Enilonti	treated, N =		UK) and vehicle		error; RME	showed significant
Ерперп	15		(3.5% Kolliphor [®]		and	difference in RMEs [F _{2, 42}
CUS-			HS, Sigma-Aldrich,		NA 1 .	= 15.06, p < 0.0001]
Sponta	- Epileptic		Poole, UK). All		working-	where Holm-Sidak post
neous	vehicle -		drugs were		memory	has test showed points
	Animal Model Doly I:Cinject ion (4 mg/kg). - Wistar rat. - The rat rat modele d Status Epilepti cus- Sponta neous	AnimalStudyModelAllocation and SizepolySizepoly-l:Cinject-ion (4-mg/kg) WistarRats wererat.assigned into- Thetreatmentratgroups.modele-d-Statustreated, N =Epilepti15cusSponta- Epilepticneousvehicle-	AnimalStudyDuration ofModelAllocation and SizeInterventionpolySizeInterventionpolyI:Cinjection (4mg/kg) WistarRats were- CBD wasrat.assigned intoadminister- Thetreatmented for 10ratgroups.weeks.modele-Naivevehicle-treated, N =Epilepti15-Sponta- Epilepticneousvehicle-	Animal ModelStudyDuration of InterventionIntervention ControlModelAllocation and SizeInterventionControlpolySizeSizeSizepoly- CBDSizeSizeion (4 mg/kg) CBD wasOral administration- WistarRats were- CBD wasOral administrationrat.assigned intoadministerof:- Thetreatmented for 10 weeks CBD: 200 mg/kg (from GWratgroups.weeks.Pharmaceuticalsd- NaiveLtd.; Cambridge, treated, N =Ltd.; Cambridge, Size,fuest15(3.5% Kolliphor®cus EpilepticHS, Sigma-Aldrich, Poole, UK). Allneousvehicle-HS, Sigma-Aldrich, Poole, UK). All	AnimalStudyDuration of InterventionIntervention and ControlMemory TestModelAllocation and SizeInterventionControlInterventionpolySizeInterventionControlInterventionpolyI.CinjectInterventionInterventionInterventionion (4InterventionInterventionInterventionInterventionmg/kg).InterventionOral administrationA hole WistarRats were- CBD wasOral administrationA hole-rat.assigned intoadministerof:board- Thetreatmented for 10 romodele- CBD: 200 mg/kg (from GWapparatus.ratgroups.weeks.PharmaceuticalsInterventiolesdvehicle-Ltd.; Cambridge,Interventionfipilepti15(3.5% Kolliphor® HS, Sigma-Aldrich,Interventionsponta- EpilepticHS, Sigma-Aldrich,Poole, UK). Allneousvehicle-InterventionHruss were	Animal ModelStudyDuration of InterventionIntervention and ControlMemory TestTypes of MemoryModelAllocation and SizeInterventionControlMemory TestMemorypolySizeControlMemoryMemoryicinjection (4mg/kg)CBD wasOral administrationA hole WistarRats wereCBD wasOral administrationA hole Thetreatmented for 10 groups Thetreatmented for 10 (from GWandratgroups.weeksPharmaceuticals(Referenced-NaivePharmaceuticals(Reference-statustreated, N =UK) and vehicleerror; RMEerror; RMEEpilepti15-(3.5% Kolliphor®andSponta- Epileptic-HS, Sigma-Aldrich, Poole, UK). AllWorking- memory



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	Recurre	treated, N =		administered in		error;	vehicle (p < 0.0001) and
	nt	15		drinking water		WME)	CBD group (p < 0.05)
	Seizure	Eniloptic					made significant lower
	(RISE-						errors.
	SRS) of	CBD-treated					- However, CBD group
	chronic	groups, N =					made significantly more
	tempor	15					RMEs compared to the
	al lobe	N = 15 mean					naïve vehicle group (p <
	epileps	trial/group					0.05) showing that CBD
	y (TLE)						failed to completely
	induce						restore reference
	d using						memory.
	lithium-						- One-way ANOVA
	low						showed significant
	dose						difference in WMEs $[F_{2, 42}]$
	pilocar						= 35.72, p < 0.0001]



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	pine						where Holm-Sidak post
	model.						hoc test showed chronic
							CBD group made fewer
							errors (p < 0.0001).
							- Additionally, working
							memory in epileptic CBD
							group was superior to
							the naïve vehicle group
							(p < 0.05).
Raymu	- Male	Rats were	Exp.1A-1B:	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment impaired
ndi et	Wistar	assigned into	Interventio	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	memory consolidation
al.	rats.	different	n was	- CBD: 10 mg/kg		(Fear	when administered
(2019) ¹⁰		treatment	given	(from Phytoplant,		associated	immediately or 1 hour
⁵ , Brazil		and	immediate	Spain). Dissolved in		memory).	after conditioning.
				NaCl 0.9%			Additionally, systematic



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		experimental	ly after	containing 5% of			CBD treatment reduced
		groups.	paring.	Tween 80.			the expression of Arc
		Experiment	Exp.2A-2B:	- In all cases, the			protein in the DH.
		1A: intra-DH	Interventio	volume			- CBD's effects on
		CBD effects	n was	administered was			memory consolidation
		on	given	1.0 mi/kg body			were disrupted by CB1
		contextual	immediate	weight.			and CB2 receptor
		fear memory	ly 1 hour	- Vehicle group was			antagonists, partially
		consolidation	after	administered			disrupted by 5-HT1A and
			paring.	similarly using NaCl			A2A antagonists, and
		- VEH group,		0.9% containing 5%			unaffected by a PPAR \mathbf{V}
		N = 7	Exp. 3:	of Tween 80			receptor antagonist.
		- CBD 10	Interventio				However, when
		group, N = 7	n was	Infused			administered 1 hour aft
		- CBD 30	given	intracranially into			conditioning the PPARV
		group N = 7	immediate	the DH (Dorsal			recenter antagonist



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment	ly 3 hours	Hippocampus) of			prevented CBD's effect.
		1B: systemic	after	interest:			Inhibiting FAAH impaired
		CBD effects	paring.	- CBD: 10 or 30			memory consolidation
		on DH's Arc		pmol (from			immediately after
		protein	Exp. 4:	Phytoplant, Spain).			conditioning but not at 1
		expression.	interventio	Dissolved in NaCl			hour.
		- VEH group,	n was	0.9% containing 5%			Experiment 1A: intra-DH
		N = 8	given	of Tween 80.			CBD impaired contextual
		- CBD 10	Immediate	- AM251 (CB1			fear memory
		group, N =10		receptor			consolidation.
		- Naïve group,	paring.	antagonist): 0.5			- One-way RM ANOVA
		N = 8	Exp. 5:	nmol (Tocris, USA).			showed significant main
		Experiment	Interventio	Dissolved in NaCl			effects of treatment but
		2A: intra-DH	n was	0.9% containing 5%			no interaction between
		CBD effects	given 1	of Tween 80.			treatment x re-exposure.
		on	hour				Post-hoc analyses



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		contextual	immediate	- AM630 (CB2			showed CBD 30 group
		fear memory	ly after	receptor			had less freezing time (p
		consolidation	paring.	antagonist): 0.1			< 0.05).
		at 1 hour.	Exp. 6A:	nmol (Tocris, USA).			Experiment 1B: systemic
		- VEH group,	Interventio	Dissolved in NaCl			CBD reduced DH's Arc
		N = 11	n was	0.9% containing 5%			protein expression.
		- CBD 30	given				- One-way ANOVA
		group, $N = 9$	immediate	- ZM241385 (A _{2A}			showed significant main
		Experiment	ly after	receptor			effects of treatment
		1B: systemic	paring.	antagonist): 10 nM			groups on Arc protein
		CBD effects	I- 2	(Tocris, USA).			expression Post-boc
		on DH's Arc	Exp. 6B:	Dissolved in NaCl			
		protein	Interventio	0.9% containing 5%			analyses snowed CBD 30
		expression at	n was	of Tween 80.			group had reduced
		1 hour.	given	- URB597 (FAAH			expression ($p < 0.05$).
			immediate	inhibitor): 0.1 µ g			



Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
	Size					
	- VEH group,	ly 1 hour	(Tocris, USA).			Experiment 2A: intra-DH
	N = 9	after	Dissolved in NaCl			CBD impaired contextual
	- CBD 10	paring.	0.9% containing 5%			fear memory
	group, N =11		of Tween 80.			consolidation when
	- Naïve group,		- WAY100635 (5-			administered at 1 hour.
	N = 7		HT_{1A} receptor			- One-way RM ANOVA
	Experiment 3:		antagonist): 0.14			showed significant main
	intra-DH CBD		nmol (Sigma-			effects of treatment but
	effects on		Aldrich, USA).			no interaction between
	contextual		Dissolved in NaCl			treatment x re-exposure.
	fear memory		0.9%.			Post-hoc analyses
	consolidation		- GW9662 (PPAR $oldsymbol{\gamma}$			showed CBD 30 group
	at 3 hours.		receptor			had less freezing time (p
	- VEH group,		antagonist): 32			< 0.05).
	N = 7		pmol (Sigma-			Exportment 2P. austomic
			Aldrich, USA).			Experiment 2D: systemic
	Animal Model	AnimalStudyModelAllocation and Size- VEH group, N = 9 - CBD 10 	AnimalStudyDuration ofModelAllocation and SizeInterventionSize- VEH group,ly 1 hourN = 9after- CBD 10paring.group, N =11- Naïve group,- Naïve group,N = 7Experiment 3:intra-DH CBDeffects oncontextualfear memoryconsolidationat 3 hours VEH group,N = 7Image: Note the second	Animal ModelStudy Allocation and SizeDuration of InterventionIntervention ControlModelAllocation and SizeInterventionControlSize- VEH group, Ply 1 hour after(Tocris, USA).N = 9afterDissolved in NaCl- CBD 10 group, N =11of Tween 80 Naïve group, N = 7- WAY100635 (5-N = 7HT1A receptorExperiment 3: intra-DH CBDantagonist): 0.14intra-DH CBDnmol (Sigma-effects on fear memoryO.9%.consolidation at 3 hours GW9662 (PPAR y at 3 hours.receptor- VEH group, N = 7antagonist): 32N = 7pmol (Sigma- Aldrich, USA).	Animal ModelStudy Allocation and SizeDuration of InterventionIntervention and ControlMemory TestAllocation and SizeInterventionControlControlVEH group, N = 9ly 1 hour after(Tocris, USA).Image: ControlN = 9afterDissolved in NaClImage: Control- CBD 10 group, N =11paring.0.9% containing 5%Image: Controlgroup, N =11of Tween 80.Image: ControlImage: Control- Naïve group,- WAY100635 (5-Image: ControlImage: ControlN = 7Time receptorImage: ControlImage: ControlExperiment 3:antagonist): 0.14Image: ContextualImage: Contextualintra-DH CBDImage: ContextualDissolved in NaClfear memory0.9%.Image: ConsolidationImage: Consolidationat 3 hours GW9662 (PPAR Y Image: Consolidationat 3 hours VEH group,Image: ConsolidationImage: ConsolidationVEH group,Image: ConsolidationImage: ConsolidationImage: Consolidation <t< td=""><td>Animal Model Study Allocation and Size Duration of Intervention Intervention and Control Memory Test Memory Types of Memory - VEH group, Size Intervention Control Memory - VEH group, N = 9 after Dissolved in NaCl Intervention and Control Memory - VEH group, CBD 10 paring. 0.9% containing 5% Intervention and Control Intervention and Control Intervention and Control - VEH group, Fabric paring. 0.9% containing 5% Intervention and Control Intervention and Control Intervention and Control - CBD 10 paring. of Tween 80. Intervention and Control Intervention and Control</td></t<>	Animal Model Study Allocation and Size Duration of Intervention Intervention and Control Memory Test Memory Types of Memory - VEH group, Size Intervention Control Memory - VEH group, N = 9 after Dissolved in NaCl Intervention and Control Memory - VEH group, CBD 10 paring. 0.9% containing 5% Intervention and Control Intervention and Control Intervention and Control - VEH group, Fabric paring. 0.9% containing 5% Intervention and Control Intervention and Control Intervention and Control - CBD 10 paring. of Tween 80. Intervention and Control Intervention and Control



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 30		Dissolved in NaCl			protein expression when
		group, N = 7		0.9% containing			administered at 1 hour.
		Experiment 4:		5.0% DMSO.			- One-way ANOVA
		intra-DH CBD		- In all cases, the			showed significant main
		effects on		volume			effects of treatment
		consolidation		administered was			groups on Arc protein
		and different		0.5 μ l/hemisphere.			expression. Post-hoc
		types of		- Vehicle group was			analyses showed CBD 30
		receptors.		administered			group had reduced
		- VEH-VEH		similarly using NaCl			expression ($p < 0.05$).
		group, N = 9		0.9% containing 5%			Experiment 3. intra-DH
		- VEH-CBD		of Tween 80			CBD had no effect on
		group, N = 11					
		- AM251-VEH					concellidation at 2 hours
		group, N = 10					consolidation at 5 hours.
							- One-way KM ANOVA

showed no significant



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- AM251-CBD					main effects of
		group, N = 8					treatment, exposure and
		- AM630-VEH					interaction between
		group, N = 9					treatment x re-exposure.
		- AM630-CBD					Thus, suggesting the
		group, N = 9					effect of window period.
		- WAY-VEH					Experiment 1. intro DU
		group, N = 10					CPD offects on
		- WAY-CBD					
		group, N = 10					
		- ZM-VEH					consolidation was
		group, N = 7					dependent to CB1 and
		- ZM-CBD					CB2 receptors.
		group, N = 8					- Two-way ANOVA
		- G\W_\/FH					showed significant effect
		- GW-VEH					of the interaction
		yroup, n = 10					between pretreatment x



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- GW-CBD					treatment on freezing
		group, N = 10					time. Post-hoc analyses
		Experiment 5:					showed AM251-CBD and
		intra-DH CBD					AM630-CBD groups had
		effects					similar freezing time to
		consolidation					control group and higher
		and different					freezing time compared
		types of					to VEH-CBD group (p <
		receptors at					0.05). VEH-CBD and
		1 hour.					GW9662-CBD showed
		- VEH-VEH					less freezing time
		group, N = 8					compared to control (p's
		- VEH-CBD					< 0.05). WAY100635-CBD,
		group, N = 8					ZM241385-CBD, and
		- AM251-VEH					GW9662-CBD groups
		group, N = 8					showed similar freezing



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- AM251-CBD					time to VEH-CBD group.
		group, N = 10					Thus, suggesting that the
		- AM630-VEH					effect of CBD was
		group, N = 7					through the activation of
		- AM630-CBD					CB1 and CB2 receptors.
		group, N = 9					Experiment 5: intra-DH
		- WAY-VEH					CBD effects on
		group, N = 8					contextual fear memory
		- WAY-CBD					consolidation was
		group, N = 9					dependent on activation
		- ZM-VEH					of PPAR $oldsymbol{\gamma}$ receptors.
		group, N = 7					- Two-way ANOVA
		- ZM-CBD					showed significant effects
		group, N = 9					of the interaction
		- GW-VEH					between pretreatment x
		group, N = 10					treatment on freezing



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- GW-CBD					time. GW9662-CBD group
		group, N = 11					showed increased
		Experiment					freezing times (p < 0.05).
		6A: intra-DH					VEH-CBD group showed
		URB597					less freezing time
		effects on					compared to control (p <
		contextual					0.05) and showed similar
		fear memory					freezing time to AM251-
		consolidation					CBD, AM630-CBD,
							WAY100635-CBD, and
		- VEH group,					ZM241385-CBD groups.
		N = 9					Thus, suggesting that the
		- URB597					effect of CBD was
		group, N =10					through PPAR $oldsymbol{\gamma}$ receptor
		Experiment					activation.
		6B: intra-DH					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		URB597					Experiment 6A–1B:
		effects on					immediate administration
		contextual					of intra-DH URB597
		fear memory					impaired contextual fear
		consolidation					memory consolidation.
		at 1 hour.					- Unpaired Student's t
		- VEH group,					test showed significant
		N = 9					effects of treatment
		- URB597					where URB597 group
		group, N =10					showed less freezing
							time than control.
							However, the effect was
							not significant at 1 hour
							after conditioning.
Razavi	- Male	62 mice were	The total	Intracerebroventric	-	- Spatial	- CBD treatment
et al.	albino	randomly	duration	ular injection of:	Spontaneou	memory.	improved spatial



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
(2019) ¹⁰	Wistar	assigned into	of	- CBD: 32 and	S		memory and reversed
⁰ , Iran	rats.	groups.	treatment	160nmol	alternation		long-term METH induced
	- The		was 10	- Vehicle group was	Y-Maze test.		memory deficit where
	rat	- METH group	days	administered		- Object	higher dose (160 nmol)
	modele	- CBD 32	during	similarly with		recognitio	was found to be more
	d	nmol group	abstinence	solvent (DMSO	- NORT.	n memory.	effective.
	METH-	CRD	period.	10%)			- One-way ANOVA
	induce	- CDD 160pmol					followed by Dunnett's
	d	roup					multiple comparison tes
	memor	group					show that CBD could
	У	- Sham group					improve the deficit of
	impair	(free drug					spatial memory, induced
	ment	during					during abstinence period
	by	abstinence					[F(4, 37) = 7.12; p <
	subcuta	period)					0.001] where 160 nmol
	neous						dose was more effective



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	injectio	- Vehicle					than 32 nmol [(F(2, 21) =
	n of	(DMSO)					11.45; p < 0.001].
	Metha	control group					- One-way ANOVA
	mpheta						followed by Dunnett's
	mine (2						multiple comparisons
	mg/kg).						showed that the
							preference index
							increased in both CBD
							group [F(4, 40) = 3.472; p
							< 0.005].
							- One-way ANOVA
							followed by Dunnett's
							multiple comparisons
							showed a significant
							reduction in LTM in
							METH group compared



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							with CBD groups. (F [4,40]
							= 3.907; P = 0.0098).
							While only CBD at 160
							nmol dose could
							improve LTM [F(2, 22) =
							5.36; p < 0.025].
Rossign	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intra-PFC	- Fear	- Aversive	- Bilateral intra-PFC CBD
oli et	Wistar	assigned into	n was	(prefrontal cortex)	Conditioning	memory	treatment impaired
al.	Rats.	different	given	microinfusions of:		(Fear	contextual fear memory
(2017) ¹⁰		treatment	immediate			associated	consolidation at 5 hours
⁶ , Brazil		groups.	ly (0 h) or	- CBD: 2 μ g/ μ l		memory).	post-conditioning but not
			5 h after	(from THC-Pharm;			immediately after. This
		CBD infusion	conditioni	Germany).			effect may be attributed
		at 0 hour on	ng.	Dissolved in grape			to reduced dopamine
		% freezing:	3	seed oil.			levels and decreased



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH group,		- Vehicle group was			expression of c-fos and
		N = 10		administered			zif-268 protein in the
				similarly without			hippocampus, PFC, and
		\sim CDD group,		addition of CBD:			thalamus, indicating
		N – 10		grape seed oil 2			diminished PFC influence
		CBD infusion		μ g/ μ ί.			on cortico-limbic circuits
		at 5 hours on		- In all cases, the			- Intro-DEC CRD
		% freezing:		volume			treatment impaired
		- VFH group		administered was			consolidation at 5 hours
		N = 16		0.2 μ l/hemisphere.			post conditioning by
							showing a 12% reduction
		- CBD group,					
		N = 19					in % freezing [two-way
							RM ANOVA; F(2,66) =
							3.328; p < 0.05;
							treatment x time

interaction; p < 0.001].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		CBD on 5-HT					While CBD treatment at 0
		and 5-HIAA					hour showed no
		level:					significant difference in %
							freezing [two-way RM
		\sim LT group,					ANOVA; F(1,36) = 0.278; p
		N = J					> 0.05]. Thus, suggesting
		- CBD group,					a window period of 3 to
		N = 5					6 hours.
		CBD on					- Intra-PFC CBD
		DOPAC/DA					treatment at 5 hours
		ratio:					post conditioning
							decreased cortical DA
		- ven group,					released. T-test showed
		C = N					significant decreased in
							DOPAC/DA ratio by 38%

(p < 0.05). While 5-HT



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD group,					and 5-HIAA levels were
		N = 6					not affected (p > 0.05).
							- T-tests showed CBD
		CBD ON					treatment had decreased
		immunopositi					the c-fos protein
		ve area for c-					expression at PL of the
		tos:					mPFC, midline thalamic
		- VEH group,					structures and
		N = 7-9					hippocampal regions (p <
							0.05) and zif-268 protein
		- CBD group,					expression at midline
		N = 7-9					thalamus and
		CBD on area					hippocampal structures
		for zif-268:					(p < 0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH group,					
		N = 4-7					
		- CBD group,					
		N = 4-8					
Shallcr	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment had no
oss et	Sprague	assigned into	n was	injection of:	conditioning	memory	effect on freezing time
al.	-Dawley	different	given 20	- CBD: 5 mg/kg	(Contextual	(Fear	but reduced anxiety in
(2019) ¹¹	rats.	treatment	mins	(NIDA controlled	Fear	associated	susceptible rats. It also
³, USA		and	before	substances	Extinction).	memory).	decreased unconditione
		experiment	each	program, RTI,			fear but did not affect
		groups.	session.	Research Triangle;			conditioned fear.
		E		USA). Dissolved in			
		Experiment 1:		100% ethanol,			- CDPBB (mGlub positive
				Cremophor, and			allosteric modulator)



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Sus-Veh		0.9% NaCl to 5			treatment reduced
		group, N = 7		mg/ml.			freezing time but had no
		- Sus-CDPP		Subcutaneous			effect on anxiety in
		group, N = 7		injection of:			susceptible rats. This
		Experiment 2:		- CDPPB (3-Cyano-			indicates that enhancing
		- Sus-Veh		N-(1,3-diphenyl-1H-			mGlu5 signaling in stress-
		group, N = 8		pyrazol-5-yl)-			prone rats may promote
		- Sus-CDPP		benzamide): 30			resistance to fear
		group, N = 8		mg/kg (from Abcam			memory extinction.
		- Sus-CBD		Biochemical; USA).			Experiment 1 –Effects of
		group, N = 8		Suspended in 10%			CDPPB on Extinction and
		- Res-Veh		Tween 80 and			Fos Protein Expression.
		group, N = 8		phosphate-			- Two-way RM ANOVA on
				buffered saline to			freezing behavior showed
				30 mg/ml.			main effect of treatment
							[F(1,11) = 6.803, p =



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							0.024], days [F(2,22) =
							3.905, p = 0.035] and
							interaction between
							Treatment × Day [F(2,22)
							= 5.134, p = 0.015]. Post-
							hoc test showed CDPPB
							treated group had less
							freezing time on day 2 (p
							< 0.05).
							- CDPPB treated group
							showed increased Fos
							expression in the
							prelimbic cortex [t(10) =
							2.80, p = 0.02],
							infralimbic cortex [t(10) =
							3.03, p = 0.01] and trend



Year & Model Allocation and Intervention Control. Memory Country Size in basal lateral amys (p = 0.054). Experiment 2 –Effect CDPPB and CBD on Anxiety and Extinction - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the dat [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible cDPPB treated group country	Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Country Size in basal lateral amys (p = 0.054). Experiment 2 –Effect CDPPB and CBD on Anxiety and Extinction - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the dat [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible COPPB treated group cutterated group	Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
in basal lateral anys ($p = 0.054$). Experiment 2 –Effect CDPPB and CBD on Anxiety and Extinctio - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc tes showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible CDPPB treated group	Country		Size					
(p = 0.054). Experiment 2 -Effect CDPPB and CBD on Anxiety and Extinction - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible CDPPB treated group								in basal lateral amygdala
Experiment 2 – Effect CDPPB and CBD on Anxiety and Extinction - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible CDPPB treated group								(p = 0.054).
CDPPB and CBD on Anxiety and Extinction - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the dat [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible CDPPB treated group								Experiment 2 –Effects of
Anxiety and Extinction - One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible CDPPB treated group rest (a = 0.002). Thus								CDPPB and CBD on
- One-way ANOVA showed differences time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc tes showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptibl CDPPB treated group								Anxiety and Extinction.
showed differences time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc tes showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								- One-way ANOVA
time spent in the da [F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc tess showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptible CDPPB treated group rest (n = 0.002). Thus								showed differences in
[F(3,27) = 4.686, p = 0.0092]. Post-hoc tes showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								time spent in the dark
0.0092]. Post-hoc test showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								[F(3,27) = 4.686, p =
showed susceptible treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								0.0092]. Post-hoc tests
treated group spent time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								showed susceptible CBD
time in the dark box 0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								treated group spent less
0.023) but susceptib CDPPB treated group								time in the dark box (p =
CDPPB treated group								0.023) but susceptible
								CDPPB treated group did
not (p = 0.692). Thus								not (p = 0.692). Thus,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							showing anxiolytic effect
							of CBD.
							- Two-way RM ANOVA
							showed main effect of
							freezing time on
							treatment groups in light-
							dark box test [F(2,20) =
							4.106, p = 0.032] where
							both susceptible groups
							(vehicle and CBD)
							showed increased
							freezing.
Song et	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment reduced
al.	Lister	assigned into	n was	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	contextual fear memory
(2016) ¹²	Hooded	different	given 30	- CBD: 10 mg/kg	FC.	(Fear	expression during
³ , UK	Rats.	treatment	min prior	(from THC pharm,			extinction and retention



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		and	to	Germany).		associated	tests in response to
		experimental	extinction.	Dissolved in DMSO		memory).	strong fear conditioning.
		group.		and diluted in			However, it impaired
		MildAvaak		saline to a final			extinction and increased
		will()/weak		vehicle solution of			freezing expression for
				20% DMSO with			weaker conditioning. DCS
		(N = 0 - 0)		0.1% Tween 80.			treatment enhanced
		8/group):		- MK-801 (NMDA			extinction for strong
		- VEH-No Ext		receptor			conditioning but had no
		group		antagonist): 0.1			effect on weaker
				mg/kg (Sigma,			conditioning. MK-801
				Bristol, UK).			treatment increased
		group		Dissolved in saline			freezing behavior for
		- CBD-No Ext		vehicle.			both strong and weaker
		group		- DCS (D-			conditioning.
				cycloserine; NMDA			



Author	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and		Control	Memory rest	Memory	hesuits
Country	Modet	Size	intervention	Control		memory	
		- CBD-Ext		receptor partial			Mild/weak conditioning:
		group		agonist): 15 mg/kg			- ANOVA showed
		- Saline group		(Sigma, Bristol, UK).			significant main effect of
		Saurie Stoup		Dissolved in saline			ovtinction sossion [E/4
		- MK-801		vehicle.			
		group		- Vehicle group was			23) = 14.1, p = 0.001, η ²
				administered			= 0.38, BF10 = 37.7] but
		- DCS group		similarly without			no effect of CBD [F(1, 23
		Strong		addition of CBD.			= 2.4, p = 0.14, η ² _p =
		conditioning		- In all cases, the			0.09, BF10 = 0.91] and no
		(N = 7–		volume			interaction between CBD
		8/group):		administered was 1			x extinction [F(1, 23) =
		- VEH-No Ext		ml/kg body weight.			1.8, p = 0.19, η ² _p = 0.07,
	group					BF10 = 0.84]. Planned	
							comparison of extinctior

condition showed


Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH-Ext					significant effect of CBD
		group					on elevate freezing [F(1,
		- CBD-No Ext					12) = 7.1, p = 0.02, η ² _p =
		group					0.37, BF10 = 3.2] but no
							on freezing during the
		- CRD-EXt					extinction session [CBD:
		group					F(1, 12) = 0.11, p = 0.74,
		- Saline group					η ² _p = 0.009, BF ₁₀ = 0.43
		- MK-801					CBD x bin (extinction
		groun					sessions): F(3,36) = 0.28,
		2.000					p = 0.84, η ² _p = 0.02,
		- DCS group					BF10 = 0.23] and no
							difference for within-
							session extinction [F(3,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							36) = 1.7, p = 0.19, η ² _p =
							0.12, BF10 = 0.69].
							- MK-801 impaired
							extinction while DCS had
							no effect. ANOVA
							showed significant
							difference between
							groups [F(2, 17) = 14.6, p
							< 0.001, ŋ ² _p = 0.63, BF10
							= 125] with post-hoc
							analyses showing that
							MK-801 group had
							increased freezing time
							(p < 0.05).
							Strong conditioning:



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- ANOVA showed
							significant main effect of
							extinction session [F(1,
							24) = 47.4, p < 0.001, Ŋ ² _p
							= 0.66, BF10 = 27.5 ×
							10 ³] but no effect of CBD
							[F(1, 24) = 1.1, p = 0.30,
							η ² _p = 0.05, BF ₁₀ = 0.52]
							and no interaction
							between CBD x
							extinction [F(1, 24) = 3.0,
							p = 0.10, η ² _p = 0.11,
							BF10 = 1.2]. Planned
							comparison of extinction
							condition showed
							significant effect of CBD



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							on reducing freezing [F(1,
							12) = 7.3, p = 0.02, η ² _p =
							0.38, BF10 = 3.3] and
							acute impairment of
							freezing during extinction
							session [CBD: F(1, 12) =
							5.4, p = 0.04, η ² _p =0.31,
							BF10 = 1.1; CBD x bin:
							F(3,36) =1.9, p = 0.15,
							η ² _p = 0.16, BF10 = 0.90].
							There was also significant
							reduction in freezing
							throughout extinction
							session [F(3, 36) = 5.2, p
							= 0.004, η ² _p = 0.30, BF10



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							= 18.3]. Thus, suggesting
							that CBD enhanced
							extinction with stronger
							conditioning of fear.
							- DCS treatment
							increased extinction
							while MK-801 had no
							effect. ANOVA showed
							significant difference
							between groups [F(2, 21)
							= 5.31, p = 0.014, η ² _p =
							0.34, BF10 = 4.5] with
							post-hoc analyses
							showing that DCS group
							had decreased freezing
							time (p < 0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Stern et	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	CBD treatment at 10
al.	Wistar	randomly	n was	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	mg/kg effectively
(2012) ¹⁰	rats.	assigned into	given	- CBD: 3, 10 and 30	(FC).	(Fear	disrupted memory
⁷ , Brazil		groups per	immediate	mg/kg (from THC-		associated	reconsolidation for
		experiments.	ly and 6	Pharma, Germany).		memory).	memories that were 1
		Experiment 1:	hours after	Dissolved in NaCl			and 7 days old. This
		Immediate	memory	0.9% containing 5%			effect lasted for at least
		CBD and	retrieval.	of polyoxyethylene			1 week. The disruption of
		Midazolam		sorbitan			CBD on reconsolidation
		(MDZ)		monooleate.			was blocked by CB1
		treatment on		- AM251: 1.0 mg/kg			receptor antagonist but
		reconsolidati		(from Tocris, USA).			not by 5-HT _{1A} receptor
		on of 1-day-		Dissolved in NaCl			antagonist. These findings
		old memory		0.9% containing 5%			suggest that older
				of polyoxyethylene			memories are more



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		(N = 7-		sorbitan			susceptible to the effect
		12/group).		monooleate.			of CBD and that the
		- VEH group		- WAY100635 (5-			effect has a window
		- CBD 3 group		HT_{1A} receptor			period of less than 6
		- CBD 10		antagonist): 0.1			hours. Experiment 1: CBD
		group		mg/kg (from Sigma,			and MDZ treatment
		- CBD 30		USA). Dissolved in			disrupted reconsolidation
		group		NaCl 0.9%.			of 1-day-old memory
		- MDZ group		- Midazolam:			dependent to memory
		Experiment 2:		1.5mg/kg (from			reactivation.
		Delayed (6		Tocris, USA).			- RM ANOVA showed
		hours) CBD		Dissolved in NaCl			significant Treatment x
		and MDZ on		0.9%.			Context A re-exposure
		reconsolidati		- In all cases, the			(reactivation) interaction
		on of 1-day-		volume			[F(4,46) = 3.9; p < 0.01]
							with CBD and MDZ



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		old memory		administered was 1			treated groups showing
		(N = 7/group).		ml/kg body weight.			decreased freezing time
		- VEH group					(p's < 0.05), where CBD
		- CBD 10					at 10 mg/kg was most
		group					effective.
		- MDZ group					- However, without prior
		Experiment 3:					reactivation there was no
		CBD on					difference in freezing
		recovery of					behavior.
		memory					Experiment 2: Delayed
		reconsolidati					CBD and MDZ treatment
		on (N = 6-					did not disrupt
		7/group).					reconsolidation of 1-day-
		- VEH group					old memory.
		- CBD 10					- RM ANOVA showed no
		group					main effect of treatment



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment 4:					[F(2, 18) = 0.32; P = 0.73]
		CBD on					and Context A re-
		memory					exposure [F(1, 18) = 1.61;
		reinstatemen					p = 0.22] and no
		t and					significant Treatment x
		extinction (N					Context A re-exposure
		= 9-					(reactivation) interaction
		10/group).					[F(2,18) = 40.72; p > 0.50]
		- VEH group					with CBD and MDZ
		- CBD 10					treated groups at 6 hours
		group					after retrieval showing
		Experiment 5:					similar freezing time.
		Long lasting					Thus, suggesting the
		CBD					window period effect.
		treatment					Experiment 3: CBD
							treatment disrupted



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		effect (N = 8-					reconsolidation did not
		11/group).					show recovery over 22
		- VEH group					days.
		- CBD 10					- RM ANOVA showed
		group					main effect of treatment
		Experiment 6:					when test was
		CBD on older					performed 21 days after
		memory (N =					[F(1,10) = 11.4; p < 0.01]
		8-9/group).					with CBD group showing
		- VEH group					less freezing (p < 0.05).
		- CBD 10					Experiment 4: CBD
		group					treatment disrupted
		Experiment 7:					reconsolidation but does
		CBD on					not show reinstatement.
		reconsolidati					- RM ANOVA showed
		on and CB1					significant Treatment x



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		receptors (N					Context A re-exposure
		= 8-9/group).					(reactivation) interaction
		- VEH-VEH					[F(3,51) = 3.6; p < 0.05].
		group					However, while CBD
		- VEH-CBD					treated group showed
		group					less freezing time during
		- WAY-VEH					test A, the effect was no
		group					presented with fear
		- WAY-CBD					extinction session (p =
		group					0.28). Thus, suggesting
		- AM-VEH					that CBD treatment did
		group					not show reinstatement.
		- AM-CBD					Experiment 5: CBD
		group					treatment disrupted
							memory reconsolidation



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							was long lasting (1 week
							later).
							- RM ANOVA showed
							significant Treatment x
							Context A re-exposure
							(reactivation) interaction
							[F(1, 17) = 24.5; p <
							0.001] with CBD treated
							group showed significant
							less freezing time
							compared to control
							when re-exposed to
							context A 1 week after (p
							< 0.05).
							Experiment 6: CBD
							treatment disrupted



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							older memory
							reconsolidation.
							- RM ANOVA showed
							significant Treatment x
							Context A re-exposure
							(reactivation) interaction
							[F(2, 28) = 10.5; p <
							0.001]. CBD treated group
							showed significant lesser
							freezing time when test
							was performed 1 week
							after (p < 0.05).
							Experiment 7: CBD
							treatment disrupted
							memory reconsolidation



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							was dependent to CB1
							receptors.
							- RM ANOVA showed
							significant Pre-treatment
							x Treatment interaction
							[F(2, 46) = 3.3; p < 0.05].
							VEH-CBD and WAY-CBD
							group showed less
							freezing time (p's < 0.05)
							but AM-CBD group
							showed no reduction.
							CB1 receptor blockade
							counteracted the effects
							of CBD on memory
							reconsolidation, while 5-



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							HT1A receptor blockade
							did not.
Stern et	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- THC treatment
al.	Wistar	randomly	n was	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	disrupted fear memory
(2015) ¹⁰	rats.	assigned into	given	- CBD: 1.0 and 3.0		(Fear	reconsolidation through
⁸ , Brazil		groups per	immediate	mg/kg (THC-		associated	CB1 receptor activation
		experiments.	ly after	Pharma, Germany).		memory).	in the prelimbic cortex,
		Experiment 1:	retrieval.	Dissolved in NaCl			while CBD treatment also
		THC on fear		0.9% containing 5%			effectively disrupted
		memory		of Tween 80.			memory reconsolidation.
		reconsolidati		- AM251: 1.0 mg/kg			Experiment 1– 4: THC
		on (N = 7–		(Tocris, USA).			treatment disrupted fear
		8/group)		Dissolved in NaCl			memory reconsolidation
		- VEH group		0.9% containing 5%			required memory
		- THC 0.1		of Tween 80.			reactivation. The effect
		mg/kg group					was long lasting (22 days)



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- THC 0.3		- THC: 0.1, 0.3, 1.0			and relied on activation
		mg/kg group		and 10.0 mg/kg			CB1 receptors.
		- THC 1.0		(THC-Pharma,			- RM ANOVA of
		mg/kg group		Germany). Dried			Experiment 1 showed
		- THC 10		and suspended			significant Treatment x
		mg/kg group		in5% of DMSO and			Context A re-exposure
		Experiment 2:		dissolved in PBS			(reactivation) interaction
		Memory		solution containing			[F(4,34) = 8.6; p =
		reactivation		0.1% of bovine			0.00007] with THC
		and THC on		serum albumin.			treated group at dose 0.3
		reconsolidati					to 10.0 mg/kg showed
		on (N = 6-		- In all cases, the			significantly less freezing
		7/group)		volume			time (p's < 0.05).
		- VEH group		administered was 1			- One- ANOVA of
		- THC 0.3		ml/kg body weight.			Experiment 2 showed no
		mg/kg group					significant treatment on



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		Experiment 3:		Infused			freezing time in Test A
		Long lasting		intracranially			[F(1,11) = 0.21; p = 0.66]
		effect THC on		bilaterally into the			when memory was not
		reconsolidati		mPFC subregion of			reactivated.
		on (N =		interest:			- RM ANOVA of
		8/group)		- AM251: 50pmol			Experiment 3 showed
		- VEH group		(Tocris, USA).			significant Treatment x
		- THC 0.3		Dissolved in NaCl			Context A re-exposure
		mg/kg group		0.9% containing 5%			(reactivation) interaction
		Experiment 4:		of Tween 80.			at 22 days [F(2,28) = 5.1;
		THC effects					p = 0.013] with THC
		on					treated group showed
		reconsolidati					significantly less freezing
		on and CB1					time (p < 0.05).
		receptors (N					- RM ANOVA of
							Experiment 4 showed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		= 8-					significant Pre-treatment
		10/group)					x Treatment interaction
		- VEH-VEH					[F(3,34) = 3.8; p = 0.01].
		group					VEH-THC group showed
		- VEH-THC					less freezing time (p <
		group					0.05) but AM251-THC
		- AM251-VEH					group showed no
		group					reduction. Thus,
		- AM251-THC					suggesting that CB1
		group					receptors blockade
		Experiment 5:					counteracted effects of
		THC and CBD					THC.
		effect on					Experiment 5: THC and
		reconsolidati					CBD treatment disrupted
		on (N = 8–					reconsolidation.
		9/group)					



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH-VEH					- RM ANOVA showed
		group					significant interaction
		- VEH-THC 0.1					between treatment and
		group					re-exposure for freezing
		- VEH-CBD 1.0					time [F(3,29)=5.1;
		group					P=0.005] where THC 0.1-
		- THC 0.1-					CBD 1.0 group had
		CBD 1.0					significantly less freezing
		group					time (p < 0.05).
		Experiment 6:					- One-way ANOVA
		THC and CBD					followed by Newman–
		on anxiety-					Keuls test, showed THC
		like behavior.					0.3 group, CBD 3 group
		- VEH group					and THC 0.1- CBD 1.0
		- THC 0.3					group had significant
		group					susceptibility for



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- THC 0.1-					reconsolidation
		CBD 1.0					disruption (p's < 0.05).
		group					- THC+CBD did not show
							a statistically significant
							difference compared to
							the individual effects of
							THC and CBD alone,
							indicating an additive
							interaction. Experiment 6:
							THC nor THC + CBD
							showed interference with
							anxiety behavior.
Stern et	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- Immediate CBD
al.	Wistar	randomly	n was	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	treatment disrupted fear
	rats.	assigned into	given			(Fear	memory consolidation,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
(2017) ¹⁰		groups per	immediate	- CBD: 3.0 and 30		associated	both specific and
⁹ , Brazil		experiments.	ly and 6	mg/kg (THC-		memory).	generalized, but not
		Experiment 1:	hours after	Pharma, Germany).			when administered with
		CBD effects	conditioni	Dissolved in NaCl			a 6-hour delay. The
		on fear	ng.	0.9% containing 5%			effect was mediated by
		memory		of Tween 80.			CB1 and CB2 receptor
		consolidation		- AM251: 1.0 mg/kg			activation. However, CB
		(N = 7–		(Tocris, USA).			had no impact on short
		8/group).		Dissolved in NaCl			term fear memory.
		- VEH group		0.9% containing 5%			Experiment 1: CBD
		- CBD 3.0		of Tween 80.			treatment disrupted
		group		- AM630: 0.3 mg/kg			consolidation of specific
		- CBD 10		(Tocris, USA).			contextual fear memory
		group		Dissolved in NaCl			- RM ANOVA showed
		Experiment 2:		0.9% containing 5%			significant freezing time
		CBD effects		of Tween 80.			on main effect of



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		on short-term		- URB597: 0.5 to 1.0			treatment [F(2,20) = 4.8;
		consolidation		mg/kg (Tocris, USA).			p = 0.02], Context A re-
		(N = 7/group).		Dissolved in NaCl			exposure [F(1,20) = 29.6;
		- VEH group		0.9% containing 5%			p = 0.0004] but not
		- CBD 10		of Tween 80.			interaction between
		group		Infused			treatment x Context A
		Experiment 3:		intracranially			re-exposure [F(2,20) =
		Delayed (6		bilaterally into the			0.53; p = 0.60] with CBD
		hours) CBD		DH subregion of			treated group at 10
		effects on		interest:			mg/kg showing less
		fear memory		- AM251: 0.5 nmol			freezing time (p < 0.05).
		consolidation		(Tocris, USA).			Experiment 2: CBD
		(N = 7–		Dissolved in NaCl			treatment had no effect
		9/group).		0.9% containing 5%			on short-term fear
		- VEH group		of Tween 80.			memory.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 10		- AM630: 0.1 nmol			- One-way ANOVA
		group		(Tocris, USA).			showed no significant of
		Experiment 4:		Dissolved in NaCl			treatment on freezing
		CBD effects		0.9% containing 5%			time [F(1,12) = 0.002; p =
		on		of Tween 80.			0.97] with CBD and VEH
		generalized		- URB597: 0.01			group showed similar
		fear memory		nmol (Tocris, USA).			freezing time.
		consolidation		Dissolved in NaCl			Experiment 3: Delayed
		(N = 9 -		0.9% containing 5%			CBD treatment (at 6
		11/group).		of Tween 80.			hours) had no effect on
		- VEH group		- In all cases, the			fear memory
		- CBD 3.0		volume			consolidation.
		group		administered was			- One-way ANOVA
		- CBD 10		0.5 μ l/hemisphere.			showed no significant of
		group					treatment on freezing
							time on Test A [F(1,14) =



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD 30					0.56; p =0.47] and Test B
		group					[F(1,14) = 0.02; p = 0.90]
		Experiment 5:					with CBD and VEH group
		CBD effects					showed similar freezing
		on					time.
		generalized					Experiment 4: CBD
		fear memory					treatment disrupted
		consolidation					consolidation of
		and 22-kHz					generalized contextual
		USVs (N =					fear memory.
		12–13/group).					- RM ANOVA showed
		- VEH group					significant main effect of
		- CBD 10					treatment [F(3,37) = 12.1;
		group					p = 0.00001] and the
		Experiment 6:					Context B re-exposures
		systemic CBD					[F(1,37) = 5.5; p = 0.02]



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		with CB1 or					but not interaction
		CB2 receptor					between treatment x
		antagonist					Context B re-exposure
		effects on					[F(3,37) = 0.01; p = 0.99]
		generalized					with CBD treated group
		fear memory					at 10 and 30 mg/kg
		consolidation					showing less freezing
		(N = 8–					time (p's < 0.05).
		10/group).					- RM ANOVA of fear ratio
		- VEH-VEH					Context B vs. Context A
		group					showed significant main
		- VEH-CBD					effect of treatment
		group					[F(3,37) = 6.1; p = 0.002]
		- AM251-VEH					repetition [F(1,37) = 8.7;
		group					p = 0.005] and
							interaction between



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- AM251-CBD					treatment x repetition
		group					[F(3,37) = 0.42; p = 0.74]
		- AM630-VEH					CBD treated group (10
		group					and 30 mg/kg) showed
		- AM630-CBD					lower fear ratio.
		group					Experiment 5: CBD
		Experiment 7:					interference during
		intra-DH CBD					generalized fear
		with CB1 or					consolidation on 22-kHz
		CB2 receptor					USVs.
		antagonist					- Unpaired student's t
		effects on					tests showed significant
		generalized					effects of treatment for
		fear memory					22-kHz USVs during Test
		consolidation					A1 (t ₂₃ = 2.3; p = 0.02)
							and Test B1 (t ₂₃ = 2.5; p



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		(N = 7–					= 0.02) with CBD treated
		8/group).					groups showed less
		- VEH-VEH					freezing time in Test B1
		group					(t ₂₃ = 4.7; p = 0.0001).
		- VEH-CBD					Experiment 6: CBD
		group					effects on consolidation
		- AM251-VEH					was blocked by systemic
		group					CB1 or CB2 receptor
		- AM251-CBD					antagonists.
		group					- Two-way ANOVA of
		- AM630-VEH					Test B1 showed
		group					significant effects of
		- AM630-CBD					pretreatment x
		group					treatment factors
		Experiment 8:					interaction for freezing
		systemic					time [F(2,46) = 3.6; p =



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		URB597					0.03] with CBD treated
		effects on					groups had less freezing
		generalized					time. However, the effect
		fear memory					was no presented when
		consolidation					the groups were
		(N = 8-					pretreated with AM251
		10/group).					and AM630.
		- VEH group					Experiment 7: CBD
		- URB 0.5					effects on consolidation
		group					was blocked by intra-DH
		- URB 1.0					of CB1 or CB2 receptor
		group					antagonists.
		Experiment 9:					- Two-way ANOVA of
		intra-DH					Test B1 showed
		URB597					significant effects
		effects on					pretreatment and



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		generalized					treatment factors
		fear memory					interaction for freezing
		consolidation					time [F(2,39) = 3.3; p =
		(N = 8–					0.04] with CBD treated
		10/group).					groups had less freezing
		- VEH group					time. However, the effect
		- URB 0.01					was no presented when
		group					the groups were
		Experiment					pretreated with AM251
		10: CBD					and AM630.
		effects on					Experiment 8: systemic
		generalized					URB597 treatment
		fear memory					disrupted the generalized
		consolidation					fear memory
		and					consolidation.



Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
	Size					
	extinction (N					- One-way ANOVA of Test
	= 8/group).					B1 showed significant
	- VEH group					effects of treatment on
	- CBD 10					freezing time [F(2,24) =
	group					9.9; p = 0.001] with
						URB597 treated group at
						1.0 mg/kg had less
						freezing time.
						Experiment 9: intra-DH
						URB597 treatment
						disrupted the generalized
						fear memory
						consolidation.
						- One-way ANOVA of Test
						B1 showed significant
						effects of treatment on
	Animal Model	Animal Study Model Allocation and Size extinction (N = 8/group). - VEH group - CBD 10 group	Animal Study Duration of Model Allocation and Intervention Size extinction (N = 8/group). - VEH group - CBD 10 group	Animal Study Duration of Intervention and Model Allocation and Intervention Control Size extinction (N = 8/group). - VEH group - CBD 10 group	Animal Study Duration of Intervention and Memory Test Model Allocation and Intervention Control Size extinction (N = 8/group). - VEH group - CBD 10 group	Animal Study Duration of Intervention and Memory Test Types of Model Allocation and Intervention Control Memory Size extinction (N = 8/group). - VEH group - CBD 10 group



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							freezing time [F(1,16) =
							5.3; p = 0.04] with
							URB597 treated group at
							1.0 mg/kg had less
							freezing time.
							Experiment 10: CBD
							treatment enhanced
							extinction.
							- RM ANOVA during
							extinction showed
							significant interaction
							between treatment x
							time-bin factors for
							freezing time [F(4,56) =
							5.2; p = 0.001]. CBD
							treated group showed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							significant less freezing
							time with accelerated
							extinction rate during the
							3^{rd} and 4^{th} session (p's <
							0.05). The freezing time
							of CBD group was lesser
							during extinction test (t_{14}
							= 2.5; P 1/4 0.03) and
							Test B1 (t ₁₄ = 2.5; p =
							0.02).
Szkudla	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intra prefrontal	-	- Spatial	- Intra-PFC CBD
rek et	Sprague	assigned into	n was	cortex (PFC)	Spontaneou	memory.	treatment reversed acute
al.	Dawley	treatment	removed	injection of:	S		glutamatergic antagonist
(2019) ¹¹	rats.	groups.	after 1 min	- CBD: 10, 100 and	alternation		induced cognitive
			and	500 ng/500 nl	Y-Maze test.		impairment.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
6,	- The	For	behavioral	(from Tocris 9		- Working	- Intra-PFC CBD impaired
Canada	rat	attentional	testing	BioScience; Bristol,	-	memory	spatial working memory
	modele	set-shifting	began	UK).	Attentional		with no effects on
	d	task:	5min later.	- 5-HT1a receptor	set-shifting.		anxiety or sociability
	induce			antagonist; NAD299			behaviors.
	d	- ven group,		hydrochloride: 100			- Intra-PFC CBD impaired
	cognitiv	N = 9		ng/500 nl from			attentional flexibility in
	е	- CBD10		Tocris 9 BioScience;			rats in a dose-dependent
	flexibilit	group, N = 8		Bristol, UK).			manner, there was a
	y deficit	- CBD100		- CB1 receptor			significant effect of
	by	$\frac{1}{2}$		antagonist; AM251:			treatment on number of
	NMDAR	group, n – J		100 and 200			trials [K–W test: $\mathbf{X}_{(6)}^2$ =
	antagon	- CBD500		ng/500 nl (from			15.468, p = 0.017], where
	ist	group, N = 8		Tocris 9 BioScience;			rats treated with CBD100
	(MK801)	-		Bristol, UK).			(p = 0.004) and CBD 500
		CBD100/THC1					(p = 0.015) required



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		00 group, N =		- NMDA-receptor			more trials but CBD10
		7		antagonism; MK801			did not induce
		_		maleate: 3 and 6			impairment. CBD 100
				μ g/500 nl (from			showed significantly
		200 100		Tocris 9 BioScience;			more errors ($p = 0.019$).
		$\frac{2}{9} \frac{100}{100} = 8$		Bristol, UK).			CBD treatment increased
		group, n – o		- THC: 10, 50, 100			the number of errors
		- NAD299 100		or 500 ng/500			[one-way ANOVA: F(6,55)
		group, N = 7		(from Cayman			= 3.324, p = 0.008] with
		For		Chemical			CBD100 being the
		attentional		Company;			affected dose (p =
		set shifting		Michigan, USA)			0.014).
		task with		- All drugs were			- Intra-PFC CBD was able
				dissolved in			to reverse MK801-
		WINOU1.		dimethyl sulfoxide			induced impairments.
				(DMSO) and diluted			There was significant



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- VEH group,		to final DMSO 5%			effect of treatment on
		N = 9		in saline containing			number of trials [K–W
		- MK801 3		5% cremophor EL.			test: X ² ₍₄₎ =14.796, p =
		$\frac{1}{3}$		- All microinfusions			0.005], total error [one-
		group, 11 – 7		were 500			way ANOVA: F(4,35) =
		- MK801 6		nl/hemisphere.			4.938, p = 0.003] and
		group, N = 7		- Drugs were			perseverance [one-way
		- MK801		injected as co-			ANOVA: F(4,35) = 4.621, p
		6/CBD100		mixture when two			= 0.005]. Post-hoc
		group. N = 6		drugs were tested			analyses revealed that
		5.00,0,00		simultaneously.			MK801 treated rats
		- MK801					required significantly
		6/CBD500					more trials (p = 0.002),
		group, N = 7					had more errors (p =
		For					0.002) and displayed
		Spontaneous					increased perseverance



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		alternation Y-					(p = 0.003). The deficit
		Maze test:					was reversed by CBD100
							and CBD500 (p = 0.035
		- ven group,					and p = 0.004,
		N = Q					respectively).
		- THC100					- Intra-PFC CBD impaired
		group, N = 7					spontaneous alternation
							behavior/spatial memory
							There was a significant
		group, $N = 0$					effect of drug treatment
		-					on spontaneous
		CBD100/THC1					alternation behavior
		00 group, N =					[one-way ANOVA: F(6,52)
		8					= 2.432, p = 0.040] with
							CBD100 rats showed
							reduced alternation (p =
		CRD100/INAD					-1


Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		299 100					0.004). There was also
		group, N = 8					significant returning score
		- NAD200 100					on drug treatment [one-
		- NAD299 100					way ANOVA: F(6,52) =
		group, $N = T$					2.968, p = 0.016] with
		- MK801 6					CBD100 rats displaying
		group, N = 7					significantly higher score
							(p = 0.001). Co-
							administration of CBD100
							with THC100 or NAD299
							100 restored alternation
							behavior showing the
							involvement of 5-HT $_{\rm 1A}$
							transmission suggesting
							that activation of CB1R at



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							PFC can prevent CBD-
							induced deficits.
Szkudla	- Male	Rats were	Interventio	Intra prefrontal	-	- Object	- CBD treatment blocked
rek et	Sprague	assigned into	n was	cortex (PFC)	Spontaneou	recognitio	formation of fear
al.	Dawley	treatment	removed	injection of:	s oddity	n memory.	associated memory with
(2021) ¹¹	rats.	groups.	after 1 min	- CBD: 100 ng/500	discriminati		no effect on panic-like
5,		Forll	and	nl (from Tocris 9	on (SOD)		behaviors.
Canada		FUI LI	behavioral	BioScience; Bristol,	task.		- Intra-PFC CBD
		procedure:	testing	UK).			treatment impaired LI.
		- Non-pre-	began	- 5-HT _{1A} receptor	- Latent		NPE rats froze
		exposed	5min later.	antagonist; NAD299	inhibition	- Aversive	significantly more than
		(NPE) group,		hydrochloride: 100	(LI)	memory	PE rats [NPE = $62.22 \pm$
		N = 8		ng/500 nl from	procedure.	(Fear	3.73%, PE = 30.96 ±
				Tocris 9 BioScience;		associated	4.03%; t-test: t = 5.63, p
				Bristol, UK).		memory).	< 0.001] showing



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Pre-exposed		- THC: 100 ng/500			inhibition effect of
		(PE) group, N		(from Cayman			control. However, there
		= 9		Chemical			was no difference with
				Company;			intra-PFC CBD, suggesting
		- NPE-CDD		Michigan, USA)			impaired LI [NPE-CBD =
		910up, 11 = 9		- All drugs were			37.41 ± 4.35, PE-CBD =
		- PE-CBD		dissolved in			34.71 ± 5.13%; t-test: t =
		group, N = 9		dimethyl sulfoxide			0.40, p = 0.69]. CBD
				(DMSO) and diluted			effect was prevented
		$\frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2}$		to final DMSO 5%			with 5-HT _{1A} R antagonist
		group, 11 – 9		in saline containing			NAD299 [NPE-CBD/NAD =
		- PE-THC		5% cremophor EL.			52.54 ± 7.06%, PE-
		group, N = 8		- All microinfusions			CBD/NAD = 35.10 ±
				were 500 nl/1			5.62%; t-test: t = 1.89, p
				min/side			= 0.03]. NPE-CBD rats
							froze significantly less



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- NPE-		- Drugs were			than NPE-CBD/NAD rats
		CBD/NAD		injected as co-			(p = 0.045).
		group, N = 9		mixture when two			- Intra-PFC CBD
				drugs were tested			treatment impaired SOD.
		$r_{\rm L} = R$		simultaneously.			One-way ANOVA showed
		910up, 11 – 0					significant treatment
		- NPE-NAD					effect on SOD scores
		group, N =8					[F(5,84) = 3.795, p =
		- PE-NAD					0.004] where Gabriel
		group. N = 8					post-hoc comparisons
							showed intra-PFC CBD
		- NPE-					having significant SOD
		CBD/THC					scores [VEH = 0.49 \pm
		group, N = 8					0.03, CBD = 0.31 ± 0.02 ;
							p = 0.003]. One-way
							ANOVA showed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- PE-CBD/THC					significant effect of drug
		group, N = 9					on total exploration time
		For SOD task					[F(5,84) = 4.601, p =
		TOF JOD LASK.					0.001], but only the
		- VEH group,					CBD/THC group showed
		N =17					significantly lowered
		- CBD group					exploration [VEH = 64.46
		N =15					\pm 6.07 s, CBD/THC =
		N =13					37.30 ± 3.52 s, Gabriel
		- THC group,					post-hoc comparison, p
		N = 14					= 0.002].
		- CBD/NAD, N					
		- 15					
		- 15					
		- CBD/THC, N					

= 16



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- NAD group,					
		N = 13					
Ukernik	- Male	Mice were	Interventio	Intraperitoneal	- Fear	- Aversive	- CBD treatment
at al.	C57BL/	assigned in	n was	injection of:	Conditioning	memory	increased freezing
(2018) ⁷⁰	6 mice.	different	given 30	- CBD: 10 mg/kg.		(Fear	behavior during
, USA		conditioning	mins prior	Dissolved in 2%		associated	conditioning, generalized
		group.	fear	ethanol, 2% Tween		memory).	fear, and inhibited cue-
		Paired-	conditioni	80 and 0.9% NaCl.			dependent extinction. It
		conditioned	ng.				also enhanced
		group:		- Vehicle group was			contextual fear memory
		- CON-Pair		administered			and mildly increased
		group (N =		similarly without			freezing behavior during
		12)		CBD.			memory cues. CBD
							treatment also resulted



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CBD-Pair					in synaptic plasticity
		group (N =					alterations, with
		12)					increased density in the
		Unpaired-					amygdala and reversed
		conditioned					density in the
		group:					hippocampus.
		- CON-UP					- CBD treated groups
		group (N =					showed increased
		12)					freezing time. T-test
		- CBD-UP					showed CBD-Pair group
		group (N =					(p = 0.05) and CBD-UP
		12)					group (p = 0.007) had
		Non-					increased freezing during
		conditioned					conditioning. Thus, CBD
		group:					treated group were more
							responsive to



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- CON-NC					unconditional stimuli
		group (N =					(US).
		12)					- During trace-
		- CBD-NC					conditioning, one-way
		group (N =					RM ANOVA showed CBD
		12)					treated group froze more
							[F(1, 11) = 11.5, p =
							0.006]. Thus, suggesting
							CBD treatment increased
							expression of generalized
							fear.
							- Freezing time increased
							during auditory fear cue
							after conditioning with
							CBD treated group froze
							more 49 \pm 8% than



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							vehicle group but the
							difference was not
							significant. CBD group
							showed a trend in
							increasing freezing time
							during the first half of
							the 3 rd inter-trial interval
							[F(1, 11) = 11.5, p =
							0.058] but it was not
							significant.
							- CBD treated group
							showed more resistant to
							extinction ($p = 0.1$)
							toward reduced freezing
							time compared to
							vehicle group (p = 0.009).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							- CBD treated group froze
							more than vehicle
							groups during contextual
							(conditioned chamber)
							cues exposure. One-way
							RM ANOVA showed
							significant difference
							between CBD and
							vehicle group [F(1, 11) =
							5.1, p = 0.044]. Thus,
							suggesting the CBD
							enhanced contextual
							memory.
							- CBD treatment showed
							synaptic plasticity effect
							in amygdala and



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							hippocampus. Spine
							density was increased in
							lateral amygdala (p =
							0.004) but not in the
							hippocampus (p = 0.194)
							where the density was
							reduced. However, these
							effects were
							independent of fear
							conditioning.
Watt et	- Mice	Mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- SPT.	- Social	- CBD treatment showed
al.	carrying	assigned to	duration	injection of:		recognitio	no effect on cognitive
(2020) ⁹³	double	vehicle or	of	- CBD: 50 mg/kg		n memory.	changes in TAU58/2 mice
,	transge	CBD groups.	treatment	(from CAS: 13956-			where all mice showed
	nes	Treatments		29-1 THC Pharma			intact fear memory,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Australi	expressi	were quasi-	was 5	GmbH;	- Fear	- Aversive	sociability and social
а	ng	randomized.	weeks.	Frankfurt/Main,	conditioning	memory	recognition.
	chimeri	- Vehicle-WT		Germany).		(Fear	- All mice including
	С	group, N = 14		Dissolved in equal		associated	TAU58/2 mice showed
	mouse/	- Vehicle-		amounts of Tween		memory).	intact sociability and
	human	TAU58/2, N =		80 and 100%			social recognition in SPT
	mutatio	12		ethanol, diluted			with no significant
	ns of	- CBD-WT, N		with 0.9% NaCl.			interactions between
	0N4R	= 14		Ethanol and Tween			chamber x genotype x
	tau	- CBD-		80 comprised 10 %			CBD (p > 0.05).
	isoform	TAU58/2, N =		of the total			- In FC, while there was a
	and	14		volume.			significant interaction of
	P301S=			- Vehicle group was			freezing time x genotype
	TAU58/			administered			with TAU58/2 mice
	2.			similarly without			freezing more [F(6,300) =
				addition of CBD.			3.5, p = 0.003]. Two-way



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	- The			- In all cases, the			ANOVA for total freezing
	mice			volume			time showed a
	modele			administered was			'genotype' effect [F(1,50)
	d AD's			10 ml/kg body			= 6.9, p = 0.012] with
	disease			weight.			increased freezing time
	(AD)'s.						in TAU58/2 transgenic
							mice. CBD had no effect
							on freezing time to the
							context or the genotype
							(all p's > 0.05).
Watt et	- Mice	Mice were	The total	Intraperitoneal	- SPT.	- Social	- CBD treatment restored
al.	carrying	assigned to	duration	injection of:		recognitio	social recognition
(2020) ⁹⁴	double	vehicle or	of	- CBD: 50 mg/kg		n memory.	memory and reversed
,	transge	CBD groups.	treatment	(from GW	- NORT.		spatial learning deficit in
	nes			Pharmaceuticals			AD modeled mice. No



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
Australi	expressi	- WT-VEH	was 7	Ltd.; Cambridge,		- Object	significant effect was
а	ng	group, N = 10	weeks.	UK). Dissolved in		recognitio	found for fear associated
	chimeri	- A eta PPxPS1-		equal amounts (5%	- CB.	n memory.	memory.
	С	VEH, N = 10		of the volume) of			- Single sample t-tests
	mouse/	- WT-CBD, N		Tween 80 and			showed all group has a
	human	= 11		100% ethanol,	- Fear	- Spatial	preference for novel
	mutatio	- A eta PPxPS1-		diluted with 0.9%	conditioning	memory.	mouse except
	ns of	CBD, N = 18		NaCl. The ratio by			A eta PPxPS1-VEH group
	amyloid			volume of 1:1:18 of			which was restored in
	precurs			ethanol:Tween		- Aversive	A eta PPxPS1-CBD mice
	or			80:saline was used.		memory	[WT-VEH t(8) = 5.2, p =
	protein			- Vehicle group was		(Fear	0.001; A eta PPxPS1-VEH t(
	(A eta PP)			administered		associated	= 0.7, p = 0.5; WT-CBD
	and			similarly without		memory).	t(9) = 3.8, p = 0.004;
	presenil			addition of CBD.			A eta PPxPS1 - CBD t(6) =
	in						3.5, p = 0.013].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	1(PS1/			- In all cases, the			- In reversal spatial
	Δ E9) =			volume			learning, there was a
	(A eta PPx			administered was			significant interaction
	PS1).			10 ml/kg body			between days x
	- The			weight.			genotype x treatment
	mice						[F(3,105) = 2.8, p = 0.044]
	modele						where A eta PPxPS1-VEH
	d AD's						group took longer in
	disease.						learning the location of
							food reward while this
							deficit was not found in
							CBD group.
							Two way $\Delta NOVA$ for
							- TWO-Way ANOVA TO
							time spent in the target
							zone in CB task showed

main effect of CBD,



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							where CBD group spend
							more time in the target
							zone [F(1,35) = 5.522, p =
							0.025].
							- Three-way RM ANOVA
							of NORT showed
							significant object x
							genotype interaction with
							only WT mice showing
							preference for the novel
							object [F(1,33) = 5.190, p
							= 0.029].
							- Three-way RM ANOVA
							for freezing time showed
							no main effects of



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
							genotype, treatment or
							interactions with time (al
							p's > 0.05).
Withey	- Male	- Animals	The total	Intramuscular	-	- Object	- CBD treatment had no
et al.	squirrel	were	duration	injection of:	Touchscree	recognitio	effect on THC's
(2021) ¹¹	monkey	randomly	of	- CBD: 3 mg/kg	n - Based	n memory.	impairment of cognitive
⁹ , USA	S.	assigned into	treatment	(from National	Cognitive		performance, activity or
		different	was 4	Institute on Drug	Tests for		tolerance.
		treatment	months.	Abuse Drug Supply	novel		- The rate of acquisition
		groups.		Program; Rockville,	discriminati		- The face of acquisition
		- Vehicle		USA). Mixed in	on		
		group, N = 4		20:20:60 mixture of			times of task was not
		- High THC		95% ethanol.			statistically different
		group N = 4		polysorbate-80			between groups (p >
		2.200, 11 -					0.05).



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- THC + CBD		0.9% saline			
		group, N = 4		solution.			
				- THC: 1 mg/kg			
				(from National			
				Institute on Drug			
				Abuse Drug Supply			
				Program; Rockville,			
				USA). Mixed in			
				20:20:60 mixture of			
				95% ethanol,			
				polysorbate-80			
				(Tween-80), and			
				0.9% saline			
				solution.			
				- In all cases, the			
				volume			



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
				administered was			
				0.3 ml/kg body			
				weight.			
Wright	- Male	Animals were	- CBD was	Intramuscular	-	- Spatial	- CBD improved the
et al.	rhesus	assigned to	administer	injection of:	Visuospatial	memory.	effects of THC on vsPAL
(2012) ¹²	monkey	treatment	ed either	- CBD: 0.5 mg/kg	Paired		without affecting SOSS
⁰ , USA	S.	groups where	30 min	(from Cayman	Associates		task of working memory.
		treatment	prior to	Chemical	Learning		- In vsPAL task, THC
		order was	THC or at	Company;	(vsPAL).		impaired overall
		pseudo-	the same	Michigan, USA).	- Self-		performance. Three-way
		randomized.	time in	Mixed in a vehicle	Ordered		ANOVA showed
		For vsPAL, N	two	of 95% ethanol,	Spatial		interaction between trial
		= 8:	separate	Cremophor EL and	Search		difficulty x THC condition
		- Veh-Veh	injections.	saline in a 1:1:18	(SOSS)		x pretreatment of CBD
		group		ratio	tasks.		[F6,42 = 2.72; p < 0.05].



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- 0.5 CBD-Veh		- THC: 0.2 and 0.5			Post hoc test confirmed
		group		mg/kg (from			protective effect of CBD
		- Veh-0.2 THC		National Institute			(0.5 mg/kg) where
		group		on Drug Abuse;			accuracy was significantly
		- 0.5 CBD-0.2		USA). Mixed in a			higher in 0.5 CBD-0.5 THC
		THC group		vehicle of 95%			group compared (p <
		- Veh-0.5 THC		ethanol,			0.05).
		group		Cremophor EL and			- In SOSS task, ANOVA
		- 0.5 CBD-0.5		saline in a 1:1:18			showed that overall
		THC group		ratio			completion accuracy is
		For SOSS					dependent on THC
		tasks, N = 6:					treatment condition
		- Veh-Veh					[F5,25 = 3.87; p < 0.01]
		group					and trial difficulty [F2,10
		- 0.5 CBD-Veh					= 25.52; p < 0.0005].
		group					Post-hoc test confirmed



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
		- Veh-0.2 THC					lower performance with
		group					THC regardless of CBD.
		- Veh-0.5 THC					
		group					
		- 0.5 CBD-0.5					
		THC group					
Zieba	- Mice	Animals	- CBD was	Intraperitoneal	-	- Spatial	- CBD treatment did not
et al.	with	were	given 30	injection of:	Continuous	memory.	affect cognitive
(2019) ¹²	Fmr1	assigned to	min prior	- CBD: 5 and 20	Spontaneou		performance of Fragile X
2,	knocko	treatment	test.	mg/kg (from	S		modeled mice but CBD
Australi	ut (KO)	groups.		National	alternation		showed reduction in
а	gene.			Measurement	Y-Maze test		anxiety behavior.
	- The	$\frac{12}{3}$		Institute, NSW,	(SA).		- In SA test, there was no
	mice	$\operatorname{group}, \operatorname{in} = 12$		Australia).			difference in % correct
	modele			Dissolved in equal			entries between groups



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
	d	- Fmr1-VEH		amounts (10% of	- Passive	- Aversive	[(F(1,66) = 2.7, p > 0.05]
	Fragile	group, N = 12		the total volume)	avoidance.	memory	nor CBD's effect [(F(2,66
	Х			of Tween 80 and		(Fear	= 0.1, p > 0.05].
	Syndro	$\frac{12}{3}$		100% ethanol,		associated	- In PA task, there were
me.		group, n – 12		diluted with 0.9%		memory).	no differences betweer
		- Fmr1-CBD 5		NaCl. The ratio by			genotype groups [F(1,6
		group, N = 12		volume of 1:1:18 of	- SPT.		= 0.8, p > .05] nor
		- WT-CBD 20		ethanol:Tween		- Social	between CBD treatmen
		group $N = 12$		80:saline was used.		recognitio	groups [F(2,66) = 1.6, p
		5.000, 12		- Vehicle group was		n memory.	.05]. Three-way RM
		- Fmr1-CBD		administered			ANOVA showed no
		20 group, N =		similarly without			interaction of latency x
		12		addition of CPD			genotype x CBD (both p
							> 0.05). Thus, all mice
				- in all cases, the			learned equally in PA
				volume			task.



Author,	Animal	Study	Duration of	Intervention and	Memory Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Model	Allocation and	Intervention	Control		Memory	
Country		Size					
				10 ml/kg body			- In SPT, there was no
				weight.			significant effect of
							chamber [F(1,66) = 6.2, p
							< 0.05], no interaction
							between chamber x
							genotype (p > 0.05) nor
							chamber x CBD
							interaction $p > 0.05$).



Table 4.2 Summary Table of the Characteristics of Randomized Controlled Trial Studies.

Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
Bhattac	Parallel	-	CBD Group:	-	Oral form	- Verbal	- Episodic	- CBD treatment
haryya	-group,	Medication-	l ifo timo	Intervention	of:	Paired	memory.	showed
et al.	double-	naive	- Life tille	was given 3		Associate		intermediate
(2018) ¹²	blind,	participants	usei – 15	hours	- CDD. 000	(VPA)		brain activity
⁶ ; UK	placeb	at clinical	- Current	before	тыс	learning		compared to
	O-	high risk	user = 7	scanning	Dharm.	tasks.		placebo and
	controll	(CHR) of	[> once a	and	Cormony)	- Brain		control group in
	ed	psychosis	week - 11	cognitive	Germany).	activation		areas involved in
	random	randomized	once/twice	task.	- Placebo	indexed		memory (para-
	ized	into 3	monthly =		capsule.	using fMRI		hippocampal
	clinical	groups:	1 few times		- Control	signal.		gyrus / midbrain:
	trial.		$a_{\text{VPP}} = 2$		group			CBD: median, -
		- CD group:	Δ year – 2,		sioup			0.013; IQR, - 0.027
		N = 10, Age	Onty					to 0.002; placebo:



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		22.43±4.95	once/twice		given any			median, - 0.007;
		years, F:M =	lifetime = 1]		drug.			IQR, - 0.019 to
		6:10	Placebo					0.008; control:
			racebo					median, 0.034;
		- Placebo: N	Group:					IOR. 0.005 to
		= 17, Age =	- Life time					0 059)
		25.35±5.24	user = 17					- Total recall
		vears, F:M =						
		, , 1∩·7	- Current					score was directly
		10.7	user = 7					correlated with
		- Control						the level of left
		group: N =	[> once a					para-hippocampal
		19	week = 12,					activation (r =
		participants,	Once/twice					0.28; p = 0.046).
		Age = 23.89	monthly =					But no significant
		50 -0.07	3, Few					group differences
			times a year					- •



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		\pm 4.14 years,	= 0, Only					in task
		F:M = 8:11	once/twice					performance was
			lifetime = 2]					found.
			Control					There were no
			Control					- There were no
			Group:					significant group
			- Life time					differences in
								demographic and
			user = NA					clinical variables.
			- Current					
			user = NA					- No adverse or
								serious adverse
								events were
								observed.



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
Bloomfi	Within-	- Healthy	Cannabis	Intervention	Oral form	- Rivermead	- Episodic	- CBD treatment
eld et	subject	participants:	and CBD	was given 3	of:	Behavioural	memory.	showed significant
al.	S,	N = 15; Age	naïve	hours		Memory		increase in CBF in
(2020) ¹²	random	= 24.1±4.95	participants.	before	-CD:000	test		the hippocampus.
⁷ ; UK	ized,	years, F:M =		scanning	nig (99.9%)		- Spatial	There was no
	double-	9:6		and	fram STI	- N-back	working	difference in
	blind,			cognitive		task	memory.	memory task
	placeb			task.	Pharmace		- Working	performance.
	O-			- Two	ulicals;	- The digit	memory.	- Decreased
	controll			sessions	UK).	span task		reaction time was
	ed			separated	Dlacaba			found in N-back
	design.			by ≥ one		- Regional		task which
				week.	capsule.	cerebral		suggested that
						blood flow.		CBD may have an
								effect in working



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								memory
								performance.
								- CBD increased
								CBF in the
								hippocampus
								(mean (95% CI) =
								15.00 (5.78–24.21)
								mL/100g/min, t ₁₄
								= 3.489, Cohen's
								d = 0.75, p =
								0.004).
								Prose recall task:
								- There was no
								main effect of
								drug (F _{1,14} = 3.701,



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								η ² = 0.184, p =
								0.075, mean
								difference -0.517,
								95% CI -1.126-
								0.092), task (F _{1,14} =
								3.311 η ² = 0.014,
								p = 0.090) and no
								significant
								interaction
								between drug x
								task ($F_{1,14} = 0.037$,
								η ² = 0.000, p =
								0.850).
								Digit Span Task:



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								- There was no
								main effect of
								drug (F _{1,14} = 0.312,
								η ² = 0.007, p =
								0.585), but
								significant effect
								on task (F _{1,14} =
								9.333, η ² = 0.182.
								p = 0.009). But
								the interaction
								between drug x
								task was not
								significant (F _{1,14} =
								0.497, η ² = 0.007,
								p = 0.492).



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								N-back task's
								accuracy:
								- There was no
								main effect of
								drug (F _{1,12} = 0.026,
								η ² = 0.000, p =
								0.875), but
								significant effect
								on task (F _{2,24} =
								10.180, η ² =
								0.305, p = 0.001).
								However, the
								interaction
								between drug x
								task was not



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								significant (F _{2,24} =
								0.693, η ² = 0.016,
								p = 0.510).
								N-back task's
								reaction time:
								- There was no
								main effect of
								drug (F _{1,12} = 0.168,
								η ² = 0.000, p =
								0.689), but
								significant effect
								on task (F _{1,12} =
								25.642, η ² =
								0.619, p < 0.001).



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								But the
								interaction
								between drug x
								task was not
								significant (F _{2,24} =
								1.420, η ² = 0.006,
								p = 0.261).
								- Correlational
								analysis of OFC
								CBF: CBF was
								associated with
								decreased
								reaction time
								which suggested
								better working



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								memory
								performance (r_{11}
								= -0.73, p =
								0.005).
Boggs	Rando	- 36 stable	Not	Intervention	Oral form	- MATRICS	- Working	- CBD treatment
et al.	mized,	antipsychoti	mentioned.	was given	of:	Consensus	memory.	showed no
(2018) ¹³	placeb	c-treated		daily for 6		Cognitive		improvement in
³ ; USA	O-	patients		weeks.	- CBD: 300	Battery		the MCCB sores.
	controll	diagnosed			mg BID =	(MCCB)		- There was no
	ed,	with chronic			600 ma a (alay i			main effect of
	double-	schizophren			mg/day			Drug and Time on
	blind,	ia.			(Trom STI			MCCB score (p's >
	parallel	- CBD group:			Pharmace			0.05) and the
	group.	N = 18, Age						group with



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		= 48.4 <u>+</u> 9.3,			uticals;			improved score
		F:M = 6:12			UK).			was placebo
		- Placebo			- Placeho			treated group
		group: N =			capsule.			[F(1, 32) = 4.84; p
		18, Age =			capsater			= 0.03].
		46.4±9.5,						- For MCCB
		F:M = 5:13						subscale on
								working memory
								composite, there
								was no main
								effect of Drug
								[F(1,34) = 2.25, p
								= 0.62], Time
								[F(1,33) = 1.47, p
								= 0.23] and drug x



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Type	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country	21	cs and Size	frequency		Control		,	
)								
								time interaction
								[F(1,33) = 1.37, p
								= 0.25].
								- Side effects
								wore similar
								were similar
								between CBD and
								placebo group.
Das et	Double-	- 48 Healthy	Numbers of	The drugs	Vaporized	- Fear	- Fear	- CBD treatment
al.	blind,	participants:	Cannabis	were	form of:	Conditioning	associated	after extinction
(2013) ¹²	placeb	18-35 years	users per	inhaled	CDD: 22		memory.	improved the
⁸ ; UK	O-	old.	group:	every 10	- CBD: 52			process of
	controll	CPD pro		seconds	nig (itom			extinction, leading
	ed	- CDU pie-		either	Dharmanse			to reduced fear
	betwee	exunction		before	FIRE			expression during


Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
	n-	group: N =	- CBD pre-	extinction	uticals;			recall and
	subject	16, F:M =	extinction	or after	UK).			reinstatement.
	S	8:8	group: 4	extinction	Vaporized			CBD traatmont
	design.	CPD post	CRD post	session.	at 210 °C			- CDD treatment
		- CDD post-	- CDD post-		with 0.08			for onbancing the
		extinction	extinction		mg			
		group: N =	group: 6		ethanol			consolidation of
		16, ⊢:M =	- Placebo		vehicle			extinction
		6:10	group: 4		and via a			memory, as
		- Placebo			Volcano			indicated by a
		group: N =			Medic			trend towards
		16 F·M =	Cannabis		vanoriser			decreased
		Δ·12	davs per		vaponser.			reinstatement of
		7.12	month		- Placebo:			contextual
			monui.		0.08 mg			responding when
								CBD was given



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
			- CBD pre-		ethanol			before and after
			extinction		vehicle.			extinction.
			group: 3.17					
			+ 3.82					- There was a
			_ 5102					trend indicating a
			- CBD post-					group difference
			extinction					in the response
			group: 1.75					to conditioned
			± 2.22					stimuli (p =
			Dianaka					0.062), with the
			- Placebo					CBD post-
			group: 0.75					avtinction group
			± 0.5					extinction group
								showing lower
			Cannabis					ratings compared
			time to					to the placebo
			smoke					group (p = 0.047).



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
			eighth					However, there
			(3.5g):					was no significant
								difference
			- CBD pre-					between the
								placebo and CBD
			group: 4.5 ±					pre-extinction
			3.54					group.
			- CBD post-					
			extinction					- In terms of skin
			group: 12.33					conduction
			± 6.81					responses during
								reinstatement,
			- Placebo					there was a
			group: 5.75					significant
			± 1.5					interaction
								between the



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								context x group
								[F(2,35) = 2.545, p
								= 0.097, η _p ² =
								0.132]. CBD post-
								extinction group
								showed lower
								response to the
								extinction context
								compared to the
								placebo group.
								But post-hoc test
								was not
								significant.
								- There was a
								significant main
								significant main



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								effect of group on
								conditioned
								stimuli during
								reinstatement
								[F(1,40) = 4.76, p
								= 0.014, η _p ² =
								0.192], with the
								CBD post-
								extinction group
								rating the stimuli
								lower than both
								the placebo
								group (p = 0.036)
								and the CBD pre-



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								extinction group
								(p = 0.005).
								- In terms of
								prose recall, the
								placebo group
								had better recall
								than the CBD pre-
								extinction group
								[t(30) = 2.456, p =
								0.02; t(30) =
								2.2946, p =
								0.029].



			<u> </u>					
Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	lypes of	Kesults
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
Englun	2×3	- 48 Healthy	- Previous	- Oral	Oral form	- The	- Episodic	- Pre-treatment
d et al.	mixed,	participants	cannabis	intervention	of:	Hopkins	Memory.	with CBD had a
(2013) ⁶⁷	random	completed	episodes:	was given		Verbal		protective effect
; UK	ized,	the	- CBD group	210 mins	mg (from	Learning		against THC on
	double-	protocol.	= 137±234	prior	sti	Task-		episodic memory
	blind,	- CBD group:	- Placebo	intravenous	Dharmaco	Revised.		but not on
	placeb	N = 22, Age	group =	administrati	uticals	- Digit-snan	- Working	working memory.
	O-	= 25±3, F:M	118±218	on of THC.		forward and	Memory.	Whereas, THC
	controll	= 9:13			017).			impaired both
	ed	- Placebo			- Placebo			memories.
	design.	group: N =			capsule.			The Hopkins
		26, Age			Intravenou			Verbal Learning
		26±4, F:M =			c			Task:
		12:14			administra			- For immediate
					auministra			recall there was
					tion of:			



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
					- THC: 1.5			main effect of
					mg (from			condition (F =
					THC-			22.64, p < 0.000)
					Pharm			but not group (F
					GmbH;			= 0.079, p = 0.78)
					Germany).			and no significant
					Diluted in			interaction
					normal			between
					saline and			condition x group
					contained			(F = 0.92, p =
					1.5% (v/v)			0.88). Post-hoc
					ethanol			analysis showed
					absolute.			post THC
								treatment had
								poorer immediate



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								recall (p < 0.005)
								and trend toward
								the CBD group (p
								= 0.06).
								- Further analysis
								showed poorer
								recall post THC
								by 10.6% in the
								placebo group
								and only 0.4% in
								the CBD pre-
								treated group (t =
								2.39, p < 0.05).
								Digit-span
								forward:



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								- There was main
								effect of
								condition (F =
								7.38, p < 0.005)
								but not group (F
								= 0.44, p = 0.51)
								and no significant
								interaction
								between
								condition x group
								(F = 1.24, p =
								0.30). Post-hoc
								analysis showed
								poorer
								performance post



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								THC in the
								placebo group (p
								< 0.05) but no
								significant
								difference in the
								CBD group (p >
								0.05).
								Digit-span reverse:
								- There was main
								effect of
								condition (F =
								9.46, p < 0.000)
								but not group (F
								= 0.000, p = 0.99)
								and no significant



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								interaction
								between
								condition x group
								(F = 1.53, p =
								0.86). Post-hoc
								analysis showed
								no significance
								different for both
								placebo (p =
								0.08) and CBD
								group (p = 0.5).
								- Pre-treatment
								with CBD reduced
								the occurrence of



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								acute THC
								psychosis.
Hotz et	Double-	- Healthy 34	- Frequency	Drugs were	Vaporized	- Verbal	- Episodic	- CBD treatment
al.	blind,	participants	of annual	administere	form of:	Learning	memory.	enhanced verbal
(2021) ¹³	placeb	completed	cannabis	d for 15	- CBD: 125	Task (VLT)		episodic memory
4;	O-	final	consumptio	mins after	- CDD. 12.5			but not on
Switzerl	controll	analyses:	n =	word	liquid of			working memory.
and	ed,	Age =	2.24±3.2	learning and	0.25 m	- N-Back	- Spatial	VLT:
	random	22.26±3.04,	- Cannabis	immediate	0.20 mil	Performanc	Working	- There was a
	ized,	F:M =	consumptio	recall.	CRD from	e Test.	memory.	significant main
	crossov	17/17.	n per					effect of
	er trial.	- CBD group:	year/numbe		mo			medication
		N = 17	r of		nip;			[F(1,33) = 11.12, p
			participants:		Slovenia).			= 0.048, <i>R</i> ₂ β =



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		- Placebo	0/15, 1/6,		- Placebo			.028] with CBD
		group: N =	2/1, 3/4,		e-liquid:			treated group
		17	4/2, 5/2,		0.25 ml.			showing better
			6/1, 10/2,					performance in
			12/1					recall compared
								to placebo
								[adjusted group
								difference 0.68,
								95% CI 0.01 to
								1.35; $R_2 \beta = 0.028$,
								p = 0.048].
								N-Back
								Performance Test:
								- For A-back
								performance,



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								there was no
								significant effect
								of medication
								[accuracy: F(1,33)
								= 1.3, p = 0.26].
								- For 2-back
								performance,
								there was no
								significant effect
								of medication
								[accuracy:
								accuracy: F(1,33)
								= 0.05, p = 0.83].
								- There was no
								serious adverse



Author, Year & Country	Study Type	Population, Characteristi cs and Size	Cannabis use and frequency	Duration of Intervention	Interventio n and Control	Clinical Test	Types of Memory	Results
								with two cases of headache for CBD and abdominal pain for placebo
Leweke et al. (2021) ¹³ ¹ ; German y	Parallel -group, active- controll ed, mono- therape utic, double-	- 29 acute paranoid schizophren ic patients completed the protocol and two cognitive	Not mentioned.	Intervention was given for the duration of 4 weeks.	Oral form of: - CBD: 200 mg TID = total of 600 mg/day.	- The Letter Number Sequencing - Subject Ordered Pointing Task	- Working memory. - Working memory. - Spatial Working memory.	 - CBD treatment showed improvement in visual episodic memory. - t-tests showed improvements in visual memory (ROFT: t₍₁₃₎ = -



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
	blind,	assessments			- AMI	- Delayed	- Episodic	2.80, p = 0.015
	random				(Amisulpri	Response	memory.	$[p_{corr} = 1]$ [-6.27, -
	ized	- CBD group:			de;	Task		0.80]).
	clinical	N = 15, Age			antipsycho	- The	- Visual	- However there
	trial.	28.8±7.7,			tic): 200	Auditory	Episodic	was no difference
		F:M = 3:12			mg TID =	Verbal	memory.	in working
		- AMI group:			total of	Learning		memony (Letter
		N = 14, Age			600	Test (AVLT)		Number
		= 30.3±9.7,			mg/day.	- The Rey-		
		F:M = 1:13				Osterrieth		sequencing rest.
						Complex		t ₍₁₂₎ = 0.32, p =
						Figure Test		0.755 [p _{corr} = 1] [-
								1.80, 2.41] and
						(ROFT)		Subject Ordered
								Point Task: t ₍₁₁₎ =
								0.09, p = 0.932



Year & Type Characteristi use and Intervention n and Memory	
Country cs and Size frequency Control	
[p _{corr} = 7	1] [-2.02,
2.19]), s	patial
working	memory
(DRT: t ₍₁	₄₎ = 0.60,
p = 0.56	53 [p _{corr} =
1] [-8.49	, 14.98])
and ver	bal
memory	/ recall
(AVLT: t	₍₁₄₎ = 0.15,
p = 0.88	31 [p _{corr} =
1] [-1.75	, 2.02]).

McGuire	Multice	-	Positive	Intervention	Oral form	- Brief	- Episodic	- CBD treatment
et al.	nter,	Participants	baseline	was given	of:	Assessment	memory	showed no
(2017) ¹³	double-	with		for the		of Cognition		improvement in



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
⁶ ; U.K.,	blind,	schizophren	urine THC	duration of	- CBD:	in	- Working	episodic and
Romani	random	ia or a	test:	6 weeks.	1,000	Schizophren	memory.	working memory.
a, and	ized,	related			mg/day as	ia (BACS):		- Although there
Poland.	placeb	psychotic	\sim CDD group,		10 mL of a	composite		was an
	O-	disorder	N – 1		100	score.		improvement in
	controll	(DSM-IV).	- Placebo		mg/mL			the overall
	ed,	- CBD group:	group, N = 2		solution.			composite score
	parallel	N = 43, Age			- Placebo:			of BACS, the
	-group	=			excipients			difference
	trial.	40.9±12.49,			alone.			between the
		F:M = 15:28						treatment groups
		- Placebo						was not significant
		group: N =						(treatment
		45, Age =						difference = 1.31,



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		40.8±11.00,						95% CI = -0.10 to
		F:M = 22:23						2.72, p = 0.068).
								- There was no
								improvement in
								episodic memory
								(treatment
								difference = 0.0,
								95% CI = -2.9 to
								2.9, p = 0.993)
								and working
								memory
								(treatment
								difference = 1.0,
								95% CI = -0.3 to
								2.3, p = 0.141).



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								- The groups had
								a similar rate of
								adverse events
								with. Most events
								were mild and
								resolved without
								any intervention.
								Diarrhea and
								nausea were the
								most commonly
								reported. One
								serious event was
								exacerbation of
								schizophrenia in



Author.	Study	Population.	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Type	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country	.)	cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								the placebo
								group.
Morgan	Rando	- 48	- Cannabis	The drugs	Vaporized	- Delayed	- Episodic	- CBD treatment
et al.	mized,	cannabis	users were	were	form via	Prose	memory.	had no effect on
(2018) ¹²	double-	users	categorized	inhaled	Volcano	Recall.	- Spatial	THC induced
⁹ ; UK	blind	categorized	into light	every 10	Medic	- Spatial N-	working	memory
	crossov	into (1)	and heavy	seconds	vaporiser:	back	memory.	impairment.
	er	schizotypal	user.	before tests		memory		Prose recall Task
	design.	personality	Lightugor	on four	- CBD: 10	task.		- There was
		(low, high)	- Light user	occasions,	mg.			significant main
		and (2)	= 1-24 days	with a one-	Dissolved			effect of drug
		frequency	per month	week was-	in ethanol.			[F(3,132)= 4.458,
		of cannabis			- 1HC: 8			$p = 0.005, \mathbf{n}_{p}^{2} =$
					mg.			, , Jb



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		use (light,	- Heavy user	out period	Dissolved			0.092] with THC
		heavy).	= 25+ days	break.	in ethanol.			(p = 0.031) and
		- Light and	per month		- THC 8mg			THC + CBD ($p =$
		Low group:			+ CBD 16			0.024) group
		N = 12, Age			mg.			showing poorer
		= 21±2.13,			Dissolved			recall.
		F:M = 3:9			in ethanol.			- CBD showed no
		Light and			- Placebo:			effect on recall
		- Light and			ethanol.			performance.
		High group:						Spatial N-back
		N = 12, Age						Tack
		=						I dSK.
		22.90±2.02,						- There was
		F:M = 5:7						significant main
								effect of drug



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		- Heavy and						p = 0.019, Ŋ _p ² =
		low group:						0.074] with THC
		N - 12 Age						(p = 0.012) and
		_						THC + CBD ($p =$
		- 21 12+1 62						0.020) group
		$F \cdot M = 1 \cdot 11$						showing poorer
		1.101 - 1.11						performance
		- Heavy and						CBD showed no
		high group:						effect on recall
		N = 12. Age						performance.
		=						- CBD treatment
		21.50±1.38.						did not exhibit
		F:M = 5:7						any distinct
								occurrence rate in

the drug effects

299



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
								to symptoms
								such as
								anhedonia,
								delusory thinking,
								mania, and
								paranoia when
								compared to the
								placebo.
O'neil	Double-	Participants	- 15 in PSY	- Oral	Oral form	- Verbal	- Episodic	- CBD treatment
et al.	blind,	with	group were	intervention	of:	Paired	memory.	showed no effect
(2019) ¹³	placeb	psychosis	lifetime	was given		Associate		on episodic
⁰ ; UK	0	(DSM-IV).	users and 9	180 mins	-CDD.000	(VPA)		memory.
	controll	- Psychosis	were	prior task.	111y (99.9%	learning		CPD treatment
	ed,	ed, (PSY) group: repeate N = 15, Age	(PSY) group: current N = 15, Age		pure from THC-	tasks. - fMRI.		
	repeate							reduced
								aysfunction in the



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
	d-	=	regular		Pharm;			prefrontal
	measur	27.73±4.61,	users.		Germany).			activation during
	es,	Male =	E uro eu 1010 eu 1		Dianaka			encoding and
	within-	66.7% (13	- Frequency		- Placebo			mediotemporal
	subject,	participants	of cannadis		capsule.			and prefrontal
	crossov	completed	use					activation, as well
	er	the study	(past/prese					as
	design.	where 2	nt) of PSY					mediotemporal-
		participants	group:					striatal functional
		requested	- Daily, N =					connectivity
		to end the	6					during recall in
		study)						PSY participants.
		- PSY-PLB: N	- More than					CBD also resulted
		= 7	once a					in a decrease in
		•	week, N = 4					hippocampal-
	es, within- subject, crossov er design.	Male = 66.7% (13 participants completed the study where 2 participants requested to end the study) - PSY-PLB: N = 7	 Frequency of cannabis use (past/prese nt) of PSY group: Daily, N = More than once a week, N = 4 		- Placebo capsule.			encoding and mediotemporal and prefrontal activation, as w as mediotemporal striatal function connectivity during recall in PSY participants CBD also resulta in a decrease in hippocampal-



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		- PSY-CBD:	-					striatal functional
		N = 8	Once/twice					connectivity in
		- Healthy	monthly, N					PSY participants.
		control	= 0					
		group (HC).						During encoding
			- Few times					task:
		N = 19, Age	a year, N =					
		=	1					- There was no
		23.89±4.15,	I					significant
		Male =	- Only					difference
		57.9%	once/twice					between PSY-PLB
		PSY-PLB,	lifetime, N =					and PSY-CBD
		psychosis	4					group (p = 0.42).
		participants						
		undor	- No current					- HC group
			regular user					performed better
		placebo	in HC group.					at semantic

302



Author,	Study							
		Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		condition;						relatedness than
		PSY-CBD,						PSY-PLB group (p
		psychosis						= 0.042).
		participants						During recall task
		under						Duning recall task.
		cannabidiol						- There was no
		condition.						significant
								difference
								between PSY-PLB
								and PSY-CBD
								group (p = 0.71).
								- There was no
								significant
								difference
								between PSY-PLB



Author, Year & Country	Study Type	Population, Characteristi cs and Size	Cannabis use and frequency	Duration of Intervention	Interventio n and Control	Clinical Test	Types of Memory	Results
								and HC group (p = 0.15).
Rizkalla	Rando	- 78	- 10/78	Intervention	Oral form	Cambridge	- Working	- CBD treatment
h et al.	mized,	Participants	(12.8%) of	was given	of:	Neuropsych	memory.	showed no
(2022) ¹³	double-	with	participants	for the		ological		improvement in
5,	blind,	cocaine use	had a	duration of	-CDD.000	Test		working memory.
Canada	placeb	disorder	cannabis	92 days.	Dlacaba	Automated		- CBD and
	0-	(CUD).	use		- Placebo	Battery		placebo groups
	controll	-	disorder.		capsule.	(CANTAB).		performed
	ed.	Participants						similarly (Wald χ 2
		were						= 3.070; 95% CI =
		matched in						– 4.81 to 5.21: p
		age, sex and						= 0.080).
		CUD						
		severity,						



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		ethnicity,						
		education						
		level, and						
		other						
		substance						
		use						
		disorders.						
		- Age was						
		not						
		mentioned						
		but F:M =						
		14:64.						
		- CBD group,						
		N = 40						



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		- Placebo						
		group, N =						
		38						
Woelfl	Double-	- 60 healthy	Cannabis	- Oral	Oral form	- Letter	- Working	- Pre-treatment
et al.	blind,	volunteers	lifetime	intervention	of:	Number	memory	with CBD did not
(2020) ¹³	random	completed	uses:	was given		Sequencing		reduce THC
2;	ized,	the	- PLA/PLA =	205 mins	- CDD. 000	Test.		induced memory
German	parallel	protocol.	3 (1, 2, 4, 5)	prior test.	(> 00 904			impairment.
У	-group,	- PLA/PLA	- CBD/PLA =		(>99.0%			- CBD/THC group
	placeb	(Placebo/Pl	6 (2, 4, 8,		pure, from			showed poorer
	O-	acebo) N =	10)		Dharmana			performance
	controll	15, Age =	- PLA/THC =		Pharmace			compared to
	ed	26 (21, 25,	6 (6, 6, 6, 7)		uticals;			CBD/PLA (p =
	experi				UK).			0.005).



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
	mental	28, 29),	- CBD/THC		- THC: 20			- CBD showed no
	trial.	F:M= 0:15	= 5 (4, 4, 5,		mg (98.8%			detrimental
		- CBD/PLA N	6)		pure from			effects on
		= 15, Age =	Data are		THC-			emotion,
		25 (20, 24,	presented		Pharm;			cognition, and
		26, 37),	as median		Germany).			attention.
		F:M= 0:15	(0, 25, 75,		Placabo			
		- PLA/THC N	100					
		= 15, Age =	percentiles).		capsule.			
		24 (20, 22,						
		26, 27),						
		F:M= 0:15						
		- CBD/THC						
		N = 15, Age						
		= 27 (21, 23,						



Author,	Study	Population,	Cannabis	Duration of	Interventio	Clinical Test	Types of	Results
Year &	Туре	Characteristi	use and	Intervention	n and		Memory	
Country		cs and Size	frequency		Control			
		29, 23),						
		F:M= 0:15						
		Data were						
		median (0,						
		25, 75, 100						
		percentiles).						



Chapter 5 Discussion

This current review provides a systematic overview and interpretative analysis of studies that investigated the effects of CBD on memory. It is the first systematic review that attempts to examine different types and aspects of memory processing as well as combining both animal and human studies together.

5.1 Episodic Memory

In animal studies, episodic memory was tested under recognition memory paradigm. Recognition memory is an explicit or declarative memory that falls under the subcategory of episodic memory as it is an ability to recognize previous information of events, objects or people/animals⁵⁴. Animals has the innate preference for novelty and thus would spend more time with novel objects/animals than familiar ones.

Overall, preclinical animal studies revealed a promising result where CBD treatment were shown to improve and reversed deficits in episodic memory in cognitive impaired mice modeled for dementia^{8,86,87,90,91,94,95,121}. It was also suggested that higher dosage of CBD was more effective in reversing the deficits. However, the cognitive impaired model of FAAD and Fragile X syndromes ^{96,122} showed no improvement which suggest the difference in the underlying pathological mechanism. FAAD and Fragile X syndromes were both responsible for various congenital abnormalities, whereas the impairment above were more chronic degenerative diseases/disorders.

One of the possible mechanisms to explain this is the anti-inflammatory effect of CBD²⁷ where inflammation, in response to amyloid β plaques and neurofibrillary tangles, is one of the central mechanisms of dementia like Alzheimer's disease¹³⁸. It is also possible that the improvement in episodic memory deficit in schizophrenia-like animal models might be due to the antipsychotic effect of CBD^{15,46} that causes an alleviate in the overall cognitive function that is reflected in memory. Furthermore, the pathological mechanisms for Schizophrenia were theorized to be due to dopamine's hyperactivity, disruption of brain

DPU <u>อหบรลหมู คบพอเร บพเพระระกา</u> มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

connectivity, reduction of dendritic spines on cortical pyramidal neurons and NMDA receptor hypofunction which results in an imbalance of excitation and inhibition signaling¹³⁹.

Thus, CBD's role in restoring homeostasis of neurotransmitter^{43,69,71} as "circuitbreaker"²⁹ and synaptic plasticity^{18,21} would offer an explanation to why there was an improvement in cognitive functions of animals modeled with schizophrenia-like symptoms. While there was one animal study that examined the effect of CBD alone in non-disease model, it is worth to note that CBD alone did not have significant effect on memory in a non-disease animal model. Thus, the improvement in episodic memory in mice modeled for dementia and schizophrenia-like symptoms has further support the potential therapeutic use of CBD to improve the cognitive performance in Alzheimer's^{3,10} and psychological disorder^{3,15} in humans.

Even though the preclinical animal studies provided strong positive evidence on the effects of CBD on episodic memory, the results from human RCT studies were not as promising. Two^{131,134} out of six studies^{126,127,130,136} showed enhancement in episodic memory recall in which only the study done by Hotz and colleagues¹³⁴ was of low risk in bias. While the studies that found no effect of CBD on task performance, their results in the neuroimaging part were significant. The three studies^{126,127,130} that collaborated neuroimaging investigation found correlations between CBD treatment and brain activities, where there was intermediate level of activation in the brain area of healthy participants involved in memory such as parahippocampal gyrus/midbrain in comparison to placebo and control¹²⁶. CBD treatment were also found to increase CBF in the hippocampus¹²⁷ and attenuation of dysfunctionality in prefrontal activation and hippocampal-striatal functional connectivity¹³⁰ of participants with psychosis or related disorder. This is in lined with the preclinical evidence provided from mice modeled for schizophrenia-like symptoms mentioned above as a possible explanation of the mechanism why there was an improvement in episodic memory performance. The results from the neuroimaging assays were further supported by previous systematic review on neuroimaging studies¹⁹.

The effects of both enhancement and diminishment of memories are supported by previous evidence⁶² where it is dependent to the types of neurons and synaptic location, as well as the retrograde nature of the endocannabinoid system's signaling that attenuate the presynaptic release of both excitatory and inhibitory neurotransmitter¹⁹. These



contradicting results could be further explained through the emotional state of the participants. It is possible that additional stress was induced during task performance due to experimental setting which could enhanced memory consolidation but impair recall^{58–61,140} which might be why there were activations of various memory brain regions but did not reflect in the memory performance.

5.2 Spatial and Working Memory

Spatial memory is a type of memory that operates in both short-term (working memory) and long-term memory (episodic memory), whereas, working memory is information stored in the STM capacity that is used to execute daily cognitive function⁵⁴. Similar to episodic memory, preclinical animal studies showed overall improvement in spatial working memory in regards to preventive and restorative effects of CBD treatment in mice modeled for dementia^{88,91,94,95}, and other disorders such as FASD⁹⁶, Schizophrenia-like¹¹⁷, TGCl⁹², SRS⁹⁹ and Meth addiction¹⁰⁰. Additionally, CBD treatment was shown to increase the rate of spatial learning in non-disease animal model⁹⁷. The dose dependent relationship was also found for spatial working memory. The possible mechanisms of action were consistent with the explanation in episodic memory of anti-inflammatory¹³⁸, antipsychotic^{15,46}, circuit breaking^{29,139}, restoring the homeostasis of neurotransmitters^{43,69,71} and synaptic plasticity ^{18,21}. The findings reinforced the potential use of CBD to improve the cognitive performance in disorders such as neurodegenerative disorder¹⁰, psychological disorder^{3,15} and epilepsy^{7,141}.

There was only one¹²⁷ out of five^{131,133–136} studies that showed improvement of working memory. However, the improvement was reported as reaction time in working memory task not the accuracy of memory. Similar to the neuroimaging reports in episodic memory, Bloomfield et al.¹²⁷ found that there was an increased CBD in ORF which is in lined with previous evidence¹⁹. Another similarity to the results from the episodic memory part was that the studies done in human shown no effect of CBD treatment on working memory which again could be explained through the similar mechanism in episodic memory^{58–62,140}.
DPU <u>มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์</u>

5.3 Fear Associated Memory

Traditionally, fear associate memory is classified as implicit or nondeclarative memory due to its classical conditioning nature, however, explicit or declarative memory can also be formed during intense emotional experience^{54,142,143}. Therefore, fear associated memory represent both crossing over of implicit and explicit memory domains.

The different phrases of fear memory can be compartmentalized into memory consolidation, reconsolidation, extinction and reinstatement. Memory consolidation refers to stabilization of newly acquired labile memory that was vulnerable to disruption from interference and distraction¹⁴⁴, while memory reconsolidation is a process where stabilized memory is reactivated and retrieved in response to a memory trace⁵⁵. Fear extinction is defined as a decreased in conditioned fear response following exposure to a nonreinforced feared conditioned stimulus¹⁴⁵ and reinstatement refers to the triggering of fear response after extinction¹⁴⁶.

Overall, fear memory's expression was decreased and CBD treatment was shown to block the formation of fear memory in eighteen^{78,80–82,84,91,101,103–109,111,112,115,123} out of twenty-five preclinical animal studies. Memory consolidation and reconsolidation were impaired, while memory extinction was enhanced and reinstatement was blocked. There was an effect of window period, although the duration was different between each study^{105– ¹⁰⁷. Dose dependent mechanism was also found with higher dosage are more effective^{81,82,103,112} and that CBD effect on memory was dependent to the activation of CB1 receptors^{103,105,109}. This is in accordance to previous studies that demonstrated the dependency of CBD on CB1 receptors on memory performance^{50,51,63,64,147}. Additionally, protein expression was decreased in memory related brain area and a reduction in dopamine released in the cortico-limbic system^{105,106}. The increased in the dopamine aligned with the stress induced upregulation of dopaminergic and noradrenergic activity through the sympathetic-adrenal-medullary (SAM) axis^{59,60,140} where it should enhance memory consolidation and perhaps reinstatement, however the anxiolytic effect^{3,15,46} of CBD and modulation of neurotransmitter^{43,71} were suggested to counteract this enhancement}

DPU มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

resulting in the blocking of fear memory formation. The blocking of fear memory formation would sequentially enhance memory extinction.

There was only one human's RCT study¹²⁸ that examined fear associated memory where CBD treatments were shown to impair recall and reinstatement of fear memory, while extinction of fear memory was enhanced. This is in accordance with the results from the preclinical animal studies. The mechanisms behind the similarity in findings were proposed to be the same as for the animal studies. Thus, CBD treatment could be a potential therapeutic agent in treating patients with PTSD as referred to previous evidence¹². However, it is vital to note that the study by Das and colleagues¹²⁸ had a high risk of bias.

5.4 Drug Associated Memory

Drug associated memory was tested using Conditioned place preference (CPP) which demonstrated Pavlovian learning, memory, and reinforcing effects of drugs where classical conditioning and context associations intertwined with one another in a complex relationship¹⁴⁸. Classical conditioning is a form of implicit or nondeclarative memory while contextual (context-dependent) memory is a form of episodic memory which is a subset of explicit or declarative memory. CPP includes phrases of acquisition, expression, extinction, and reinstatement of memory¹⁴⁸. Acquisition referred to the pairing of conditioned stimulus to an unconditioned stimulus that resulted in conditioned response, whereas the expression phrase is referred to how the conditioning was expressed and stabilized¹⁴⁹. The extinction phrase is when there was a decreased in the conditioned response when the conditioned stimulus was repeatedly present without the unconditioned response in the presence of unconditioned stimuli¹⁴⁹. The acquisition of memory can be expressed as consolidation and reconsolidation of memory

Regarding drug associated memory, this systematic review only includes animal studies, as no human RCT studies were available. Different phrases of memory provided diverse results but overall, CBD treatment improved drug associated memory in regards to context preference, prevention of reinstatement and impair consolidation as well as reconsolidation^{79,83,102}. Thus, demonstration diversity of effects in relations to the different



phrases of memory⁶². These findings provide a potential therapeutic use of CBD treatment in drug associated memory and addiction in human depending on the timing of when CBD was given during different phrases of memory.

5.5 CBD and THC

For both animal and human studies, detrimental effect of THC was found in all studies^{67,85,110,119,120,129,132}. This is in accordance to evidence provided by previous studies^{17,28,46,51,66,147}. However, it cannot be concluded that CBD treatment can counteracted THC induced memory impairment as stated by preceding studies^{18,19,47,68,125} as there were similar numbers of studies that counterbalance both sides of the arguments. Although, the studies used different cognitive tasks and tested different types of memories which could therefore cause a disarray of results⁶².

5.6 Adverse events

Overall, CBD was well tolerated in all studies that provided information on side effects and adverse events^{67,126,129,132–134,136}. The adverse events were mild such as sedation, mild headache, abdominal pain, diarrhea and nauseas which resolved without intervention. Thus, suggesting that CBD is generally safe to use in participants that has no severe physical illness.

5.7 Strengths

This is the first systematic review that has attempted to critically analyze a combination of animal and human studies specifically to memory paradigm and CBD treatment. While animals and humans are qualitatively different in relations to brain functions, the "quantitative" similarities offered additional insight where limitations and restrictions in human studies were evident. This systematic review includes newer and more current studies, therefore providing a more up-to-date evidence and analysis in CBD studies.

5.8 Limitations

Due to a broad eligible criterion where the search was not limited to conditions of population (underlying disease and cannabis status), intervention (CBD's dosage, types and routes of administration) and cognitive tasks, there was a lack of homogeneity amongst the

DPU <u>มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์</u>

included studies. The original plan for this systematic review was to incorporate a metaanalysis as part of the analysis but due to the heterogeneity among the included studies, this approach was not deemed feasible or appropriate. However, it can be arguable that the research question focused on different types of memories and there were limiting numbers of cannabis or CBD related studies due to ethical and legality issues so broader eligible criteria were needed to get a sense of overall picture and included as many relevant studies as much as possible. The nature of the included studies was experimental study where there was a lack ecological validity and generalization to everyday cognitive performance task. Another generalizability drawback is from the difference in the populations of each study (healthy vs. diseased models) in which results from participants with underlying diseases may not be applicable to general healthy population. The overall risk of bias assessment of included studies had some concerns and high risk in bias (60% low risk, 25% some concerns and 15% high risk) which could affect the internal validity of the results.

In regards to the limitations of the review process, only five databases were chosen for this systematic review which consisted of English language studies. Thus, other valuable studies might be overlooked from the review process. There were two reviewers for the selection process and a third reviewer included in case of any discrepancy. The lesser number of reviewers can give raise to subjectivity and bias which could affect the integrity of the review processes. Thus, this systematic review must be read with consideration of these limitations.

5.9 Implications and future directions

In accordance to previous evidence^{19,62}, this systematic review does answer the research question and provided evidence that CBD treatment does affect memory where CBD can both have positive and negative impact on memory performance through the modulation of neurotransmitters and activation of cannabinoid receptors which effects physical and emotional status of the users. The results from animal studies were more conclusive in determining that CBD improve episodic (declarative/explicit) memory, spatial memory, working memory, fear and drug associated memory in diseased animal models which provides evidence in the potential therapeutic use of CBD treatment for memory impairment in dementia, schizophrenia-like disorder and PTSD. Additionally, in terms of

315

DPU <u>มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์</u>

memory processing, CBD treatment affects consolidation, reconsolidation, extinction and reinstatement of memory. CBD is also considered generally safe with self-resolving adverse effects suggesting that CBD can be use therapeutically and recreationally.

Although the human studies provided limiting support and were not as conclusive as the results from animal studies, the neurological data offered physiological evidence of CBD's impact on memory related brain regions. The notion of how memory performance was not in concordance with the brain's activity in response to CBD offered a better understanding of memory paradigms and processes. Memory must be viewed as a dynamic phenomenon where present cognitive tasks may not be the true measurement of memory. Different cognitive tasks represent different types of memories and also provoke different elements of memories in relation to recruitment of brain areas, synaptic plasticity, strength of memory tracing and even emotional status. Thus, it can be arguably said that cognitive tasks are a reductionist method in measuring and capturing memory. Future human studies involving a multidisciplinary test such as combining memory task, neuroimaging apparatus, neurotransmitter activity and biological markers at different stages of memory processing might provide a better insight and conclusion in how CBD dynamically effects memory.

Additionally, this systematic review highlights the difference in the dosage and how CBD was administered in each study. It was also suggested a dose dependent mechanism where higher dosage was more effective, however the effective dosage was not consistent among studies. Animal studies mostly used intraperitoneal injection as preferred route of administration which bypass first-pass metabolism and have better drug distribution while human studies used oral administration. Therefore, more studies are needed to determine the therapeutic index (pharmacodynamic) and route of administration (pharmacokinetics) to establish standardized protocol of CBD usage.

Another factor to consider when evaluating the cognitive and brain effects of CBD is that these effects may vary based on the diversity of animal and participants which include the underlying condition, cannabis status and whether they are taking other medications or drugs. Further research for profiling, involving larger and diverse populations and their biological markers is necessary to comprehend the individual variations and to identify those whose memory performance could potentially benefit from CBD.

316



One other aspect to address the contradicting effects of CBD is to take into account of how CBD interacts with other compounds in the cannabis plant to produce an entourage effect which may enhance its therapeutic potential. Perhaps, a different approach in using cannabinoids should be considered where synergy of compounds is used instead of isolated single compound and RCT studies on strain specific cannabis may shed light into these controversial results. However, this approach for future studies may be challenging due to legal restriction of using the whole cannabis in many countries.

5.10 Conclusion

Overall, the results of this systematic review suggest that CBD may play a potential role in modulating different types of memories. Based on available evidence from both animal and human studies, CBD appears to have a beneficial effect on fear-associated memory. Furthermore, animal studies suggest that CBD may also positively affect episodic, spatial working memory and drug associated memory. However, additional research involving human participants is necessary to provide more conclusive evidence in this regard.

The effects of CBD on THC-induced memory impairment are, however, less clear and require further investigation. The results also suggest that the effects of CBD on memory function may depend on physiobiological status, cognitive tasks, dosage, and route of administration. The studies included in this review indicate that CBD may have potential as a therapeutic agent for memory-related disorders, although further multidisciplinary research is needed to determine the profile, optimal dosage, route of administration, and long-term effects of CBD on memory function. In conclusion, these findings support the potential of CBD as a promising therapeutic option for improving memory function in various clinical and non-clinical populations.



318

REFERENCES



REFERENCES

- 1. Cannabis users worldwide number by region 2011-2019 Statista. 2021. Available from https://www.statista.com/statistics/264734/number-of-cannabis-users-worldwide-by-region/
- ElSohly MA, Radwan MM, Gul W, Chandra S, Galal A. *Phytochemistry of Cannabis sativa L*. Progress in the chemistry of organic natural products. 2017. p. 1–36. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-45541-9_1.
- 3. Fraguas-Sánchez AI, Torres-Suárez AI. *Medical Use of Cannabinoids*. Drugs. 2018. p. 1665–1703. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40265-018-0996-1.
- Markovà J, Essner U, Akmaz B, Marinelli M, Trompke C, Lentschat A, et al. Sativex ® as add-on therapy vs. further optimized first-line ANTispastics (SAVANT) in resistant multiple sclerosis spasticity: a double-blind, placebo-controlled randomised clinical trial. *International Journal of Neuroscience*. 2019;129(2): 119–128. https://doi.org/10.1080/ 00207454.2018.1481066.
- Meuth SG, Henze T, Essner U, Trompke C, Vila Silván C. Tetrahydrocannabinol and cannabidiol oromucosal spray in resistant multiple sclerosis spasticity: consistency of response across subgroups from the SAVANT randomized clinical trial. *International Journal of Neuroscience*. 2020;130(12): 1199–1205. https://doi.org/10.1080/00207454. 2020.1730832.
- Zajicek JP, Hobart JC, Slade A, Barnes D, Mattison PG. MUltiple sclerosis and extract of cannabis: Results of the MUSEC trial. *Journal of Neurology, Neurosurgery and Psychiatry*. 2012;83(11): 1125–1132. https://doi.org/10.1136/jnnp-2012-302468.
- Devinsky O, Nabbout R, Miller I, Laux L, Zolnowska M, Wright S, et al. Long-term cannabidiol treatment in patients with Dravet syndrome: An open-label extension trial. *Epilepsia*. 2019;60(2): 294–302. https://doi.org/10.1111/epi.14628.
- de Paula Faria D, Estessi de Souza L, Duran FL de S, Buchpiguel CA, Britto LR, Crippa JA de S, et al. Cannabidiol Treatment Improves Glucose Metabolism and Memory in Streptozotocin-Induced Alzheimer's Disease Rat Model: A Proof-of-Concept Study. *International Journal of Molecular Sciences*. 2022;23(3). https://doi.org/10.3390 /ijms23031076.



- Peball M, Krismer F, Knaus HG, Djamshidian A, Werkmann M, Carbone F, et al. Non-Motor Symptoms in Parkinson's Disease are Reduced by Nabilone. *Annals of Neurology*. 2020;88(4): 712–722. https://doi.org/10.1002/ana.25864.
- Watt G, Karl T. In vivo evidence for therapeutic properties of cannabidiol (CBD) for alzheimer's disease. Frontiers in Pharmacology. 2017. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2017.00020.
- Mücke M, Phillips T, Radbruch L, Petzke F, Häuser W. Cannabis-based medicines for chronic neuropathic pain in adults. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. 2018. https://doi.org/10.1002/14651858.CD012182.pub2.
- Orsolini L, Chiappini S, Volpe U, De Berardis D, Latini R, Papanti GD, et al. Use of medicinal cannabis and synthetic cannabinoids in post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD): A systematic review. Medicina (Lithuania). 2019. https://doi.org/10.3390/medicina55090525.
- Skelley JW, Deas CM, Curren Z, Ennis J. Use of cannabidiol in anxiety and anxietyrelated disorders. Journal of the American Pharmacists Association. 2020. p. 253–261. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.japh.2019.11.008.
- Walsh JH, Maddison KJ, Rankin T, Murray K, McArdle N, Ree MJ, et al. Treating insomnia symptoms with medicinal cannabis: A randomized, crossover trial of the efficacy of a cannabinoid medicine compared with placebo. *Sleep*. 2021;44(11). https://doi.org/10.1093/sleep/zsab149.
- Campos AC, Fogaça M V., Sonego AB, Guimarães FS. Cannabidiol, neuroprotection and neuropsychiatric disorders. Pharmacological Research. 2016. p. 119–127. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.phrs.2016.01.033.
- Whiting PF, Wolff RF, Deshpande S, Di Nisio M, Duffy S, Hernandez A V., et al. *Cannabinoids for medical use: A systematic review and meta-analysis*. JAMA - Journal of the American Medical Association. 2015. p. 2456–2473. https://doi.org/10.1001/jama.2015.6358.



- Sexton M, Cuttler C, Mischley LK. A Survey of Cannabis Acute Effects and Withdrawal Symptoms: Differential Responses Across User Types and Age. Journal of Alternative and Complementary Medicine. 2019. p. 326–335. https://doi.org/10.1089/acm.2018.0319.
- Broyd SJ, Van Hell HH, Beale C, Yücel M, Solowij N. Acute and chronic effects of cannabinoids on human cognition - A systematic review. Biological Psychiatry. 2016. p. 557–567. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biopsych.2015.12.002.
- Batalla A, Bos J, Postma A, Bossong MG. The Impact of Cannabidiol on Human Brain Function: A Systematic Review. Frontiers in Pharmacology. 2021. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2020.618184.
- Kandel ER, Dudai Y, Mayford MR. *The molecular and systems biology of memory*. Cell.
 2014. p. 163–186. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cell.2014.03.001.
- 21. Bhattacharyya S, Falkenberg I, Martin-Santos R, Atakan Z, Crippa JA, Giampietro V, et al. Cannabinoid Modulation of Functional Connectivity within Regions Processing Attentional Salience. *Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2015;40(6): 1343–1352. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2014.258.
- 22. Higgins JP, Green S. Cochrane Handbook for Systematic Reviews of Interventions THE COCHRANE COLLABORATION **®**. 2008.
- 23. De Petrocellis L, Cascio MG, Di Marzo V. *The endocannabinoid system: A general view and latest additions*. British Journal of Pharmacology. 2004. p. 765–774. https://doi.org/10.1038/sj.bjp.0705666.
- Di Marzo V, Piscitelli F. The Endocannabinoid System and its Modulation by Phytocannabinoids. Neurotherapeutics. 2015. p. 692–698. https://doi.org/10.1007/s13311-015-0374-6.
- 25. Huestis MA. *Human cannabinoid pharmacokinetics*. Chemistry and Biodiversity. 2007. p. 1770–1804. https://doi.org/10.1002/cbdv.200790152.
- de Melo Reis RA, Isaac AR, Freitas HR, de Almeida MM, Schuck PF, Ferreira GC, et al. *Quality of Life and a Surveillant Endocannabinoid System*. Frontiers in Neuroscience. 2021. https://doi.org/10.3389/fnins.2021.747229.



- Donvito G, Nass SR, Wilkerson JL, Curry ZA, Schurman LD, Kinsey SG, et al. The Endogenous Cannabinoid System: A Budding Source of Targets for Treating Inflammatory and Neuropathic Pain. Neuropsychopharmacology. 2018. p. 52–79. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2017.204.
- Schurman LD, Lu D, Kendall DA, Howlett AC, Lichtman AH. Molecular mechanism and cannabinoid pharmacology. In: *Handbook of Experimental Pharmacology*. Springer; 2020. p. 323–353. https://doi.org/10.1007/164_2019_298.
- 29. Lutz B. Neurobiology of cannabinoid receptor signaling. *Dialogues in Clinical Neuroscience*. 2020;22(3): 207–222. https://doi.org/10.31887/DCNS.2020.22.3/BLUTZ.
- Hillard CJ. Biochemistry and pharmacology of the endocannabinoids arachidonylethanolamide and 2-arachidonylglycerol. *Prostaglandins & Other Lipid Mediators*. 2000;61(1): 3–18. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/S0090-6980(00)00051-4.
- Scherma M, Masia P, Satta V, Fratta W, Fadda P, Tanda G. Brain activity of anandamide: a rewarding bliss?. Acta Pharmacologica Sinica. 2019. p. 309–323. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41401-018-0075-x.
- Leung D, Saghatelian A, Simon GM, Cravatt BF. Inactivation of N-Acyl Phosphatidylethanolamine Phospholipase D Reveals Multiple Mechanisms for the Biosynthesis of Endocannabinoids † NIH Public Access. Biochemistry. 2006. http://pubs.acs.org.
- Lu HC, MacKie K. An introduction to the endogenous cannabinoid system. Biological Psychiatry. 2016. p. 516–525. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biopsych.2015.07.028.
- Ahn K, McKinney MK, Cravatt BF. Enzymatic pathways that regulate endocannabinoid signaling in the nervous system. Chemical Reviews. 2008. p. 1687–1707. https://doi.org/10.1021/cr0782067.



- Maurelli S, Bisogno T, De Petrocellis L, Di Luccia A, Marino G, Di Marzo V. Two novel classes of neuroactive fatty acid amides are substrates for mouse neuroblastoma 'anandamide amidohydrolase'. *FEBS Letters*. 1995;377(1): 82–86. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/0014-5793(95)01311-3.
- 36. Bisogno T, Howell F, Williams G, Minassi A, Cascio MG, Ligresti A, et al. Cloning of the first sn1-DAG lipases points to the spatial and temporal regulation of endocannabinoid signaling in the brain. *Journal of Cell Biology*. 2003;163(3): 463–468. https://doi.org/10.1083/jcb.200305129.
- Blankman JL, Simon GM, Cravatt BF. A Comprehensive Profile of Brain Enzymes that Hydrolyze the Endocannabinoid 2-Arachidonoylglycerol. *Chemistry & Biology*.
 2007;14(12): 1347–1356. https://doi.org/https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chembiol.2007.11.006.
- Baggelaar MP, Maccarrone M, van der Stelt M. 2-Arachidonoylglycerol: A signaling lipid with manifold actions in the brain. Progress in Lipid Research. 2018. p. 1–17. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.plipres.2018.05.002.
- Howlett AC, Abood ME. CB1 and CB2 Receptor Pharmacology. In: Advances in Pharmacology. Academic Press Inc.; 2017. p. 169–206. https://doi.org/10.1016/bs.apha.2017.03.007.
- 40. Howlett AC, Barth F, Bonner TI, Cabral G, Casellas P, Devane WA, et al. *International Union of Pharmacology. XXVII. Classification of Cannabinoid Receptors.* 2002. http://pharmrev.aspetjournals.org
- Ye L, Cao Z, Wang W, Zhou N. New Insights in Cannabinoid Receptor Structure and Signaling. *Current Molecular Pharmacology*. 2019;12(3): 239–248. https://doi.org/10.2174/1874467212666190215112036.
- 42. Magham SV, Thaggikuppe krishnamurthy P, Shaji N, Mani L, Balasubramanian S. Cannabinoid receptor 2 selective agonists and Alzheimer's disease: An insight into the therapeutic potentials. Journal of Neuroscience Research. 2021. p. 2888–2905. https://doi.org/10.1002/jnr.24933.



- 43. Katona I, Rancz EA, szló Acsá dy L, Ledent C, Mackie K, Há jos N, et al. *Distribution of CB1 Cannabinoid Receptors in the Amygdala and their Role in the Control of GABAergic Transmission*. 2001.
- Higginbotham JA, Wang R, Richardson BD, Shiina H, Tan SM, Presker MA, et al. CB1 receptor signaling modulates amygdalar plasticity during context-cocaine memory reconsolidation to promote subsequent cocaine seeking. *Journal of Neuroscience*. 2021;41(4): 613–629. https://doi.org/10.1523/JNEUROSCI.1390-20.2020.
- Li X, Hua T, Vemuri K, Ho JH, Wu Y, Wu L, et al. Crystal Structure of the Human Cannabinoid Receptor CB2. *Cell*. 2019;176(3): 459-467.e13. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cell.2018.12.011.
- 46. Gülck T, Møller BL. *Phytocannabinoids: Origins and Biosynthesis*. Trends in Plant Science. 2020. p. 985–1004. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tplants.2020.05.005.
- Amin MR, Ali DW. Pharmacology of Medical Cannabis. In: Advances in Experimental Medicine and Biology. Springer New York LLC; 2019. p. 151–165. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-21737-2_8.
- Turner SE, Williams CM, Iversen L, Whalley BJ. *Molecular Pharmacology of Phytocannabinoids*. Progress in the chemistry of organic natural products. 2017. p. 61–101. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-45541-9_3.
- Pertwee RG. The diverse CB 1 and CB 2 receptor pharmacology of three plant cannabinoids: 9-tetrahydrocannabinol, cannabidiol and 9-tetrahydrocannabivarin. British Journal of Pharmacology. 2008. p. 199–215. https://doi.org/10.1038/sj.bjp.0707442.
- Ligresti A, De Petrocellis L, Marzo V Di. Pleiotropic Physiological and Pathological Roles Through Complex Pharmacology. *Physiol Rev.* 2016;96: 1593–1659. https://doi.org/10.1152/physrev.00002.2016.-Apart.
- 51. Mechoulam R, Parker LA. *The endocannabinoid system and the brain*. Annual Review of Psychology. 2013. p. 21–47. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev-psych-113011-143739.



- 52. Zlotnik G, Vansintjan A. Memory: An Extended Definition. *Frontiers in Psychology*. 2019;10. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2019.02523.
- 53. Robertson LT. Memory and the Brain. *Journal of Dental Education*. 2002;66(1): 30–42. https://doi.org/10.1002/j.0022-0337.2002.66.1.tb03506.x.
- 54. Squire LR, Dede AJO. Conscious and unconscious memory systems. *Cold Spring Harbor Perspectives in Medicine*. 2015;5(1). https://doi.org/10.1101/cshperspect.a021667.
- 55. Lee JLC, Nader K, Schiller D. *An Update on Memory Reconsolidation Updating*. Trends in Cognitive Sciences. 2017. p. 531–545. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tics.2017.04.006.
- Jonides J, Lewis RL, Nee DE, Lustig CA, Berman MG, Moore KS. The mind and brain of short-term memory. *Annual Review of Psychology*. 2008;59: 193–224. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.psych.59.103006.093615.
- Roozendaal B, McGaugh JL. *Memory Modulation*. Behavioral Neuroscience. 2011. p. 797– 824. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0026187.
- De Quervain D, Schwabe L, Roozendaal B. Stress, glucocorticoids and memory: Implications for treating fear-related disorders. Nature Reviews Neuroscience. 2016. p. 7–19. https://doi.org/10.1038/nrn.2016.155.
- Arnsten AFT. Stress signalling pathways that impair prefrontal cortex structure and function. Nature Reviews Neuroscience. 2009. p. 410–422. https://doi.org/10.1038/nrn2648.
- Joëls M, Fernandez G, Roozendaal B. Stress and emotional memory: a matter of timing. *Trends in Cognitive Sciences*. 2011;15(6): 280–288. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tics.2011.04.004.
- Shields GS, Sazma MA, McCullough AM, Yonelinas AP. The effects of acute stress on episodic memory: A meta-analysis and integrative review. *Psychological Bulletin*. 2017;143(6): 636–675. https://doi.org/10.1037/bul0000100.



- 62. Drumond A, Madeira N, Fonseca R. Endocannabinoid signaling and memory dynamics: A synaptic perspective. *Neurobiology of Learning and Memory*. 2017;138: 62–77. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nlm.2016.07.031.
- Lunardi P, de Souza LW, dos Santos B, Popik B, de Oliveira Alvares L. Effect of the Endocannabinoid System in Memory Updating and Forgetting. *Neuroscience*. 2020;444: 33–42. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuroscience.2020.07.045.
- Kruk-Slomka M, Dzik A, Budzynska B, Biala G. Endocannabinoid System: the Direct and Indirect Involvement in the Memory and Learning Processes—a Short Review. Molecular Neurobiology. 2017. p. 8332–8347. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12035-016-0313-5.
- Stempel AV, Stumpf A, Zhang HY, Özdoğan T, Pannasch U, Theis AK, et al. Cannabinoid Type 2 Receptors Mediate a Cell Type-Specific Plasticity in the Hippocampus. *Neuron*. 2016;90(4): 795–809. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuron.2016.03.034.
- Curran T, Devillez H, YorkWilliams SL, Bidwell LC. Acute effects of naturalistic THC vs.
 CBD use on recognition memory: a preliminary study. *Journal of Cannabis Research*.
 2020;2(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s42238-020-00034-0.
- Englund A, Morrison PD, Nottage J, Hague D, Kane F, Bonaccorso S, et al. Cannabidiol inhibits THC-elicited paranoid symptoms and hippocampal-dependent memory impairment. *Journal of Psychopharmacology*. 2013;27(1): 19–27. https://doi.org/10.1177/0269881112460109.
- Morgan CJA, Schafer G, Freeman TP, Curran HV. Impact of cannabidiol on the acute memory and psychotomimetic effects of smoked cannabis: Naturalistic study. *British Journal of Psychiatry*. 2010;197(4): 285–290. https://doi.org/10.1192/bjp.bp.110.077503.
- 69. Maroon J, Bost J. *Review of the neurological benefits of phytocannabinoids*. Surgical Neurology International. 2018. https://doi.org/10.4103/SNI.SNI_45_18.



- 70. Uhernik AL, Montoya ZT, Balkissoon CD, Smith JP. Learning and memory is modulated by cannabidiol when administered during trace fear-conditioning. *Neurobiology of Learning and Memory*. 2018;149: 68–76. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nlm.2018.02.009.
- Patel S, Hill MN, Cheer JF, Wotjak CT, Holmes A. *The endocannabinoid system as a target for novel anxiolytic drugs*. Neuroscience and Biobehavioral Reviews. 2017. p. 56–66. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neubiorev.2016.12.033.
- 72. Page MJ, McKenzie JE, Bossuyt PM, Boutron I, Hoffmann TC, Mulrow CD, et al. The PRISMA 2020 statement: an updated guideline for reporting systematic reviews. *BMJ*. 2021;372: n71. https://doi.org/10.1136/bmj.n71.
- 73. da Silva VK, de Freitas BS, Garcia RCL, Monteiro RT, Hallak JE, Zuardi AW, et al. Antiapoptotic effects of cannabidiol in an experimental model of cognitive decline induced by brain iron overload. *Translational Psychiatry*. 2018;8(1). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41398-018-0232-5.
- Hughes B, Herron CE. Cannabidiol Reverses Deficits in Hippocampal LTP in a Model of Alzheimer's Disease. *Neurochemical Research*. 2019;44(3): 703–713. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11064-018-2513-z.
- Setlow B, Bizon JL. Adolescent Cannabinoid Use and Cognition; Unexpected Results from a Rat Model of Cannabinoid Self-Administration. Neuropsychopharmacology. 2017. p. 983–984. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2016.212.
- Hudson R, Rushlow W, Laviolette SR. Phytocannabinoids modulate emotional memory processing through interactions with the ventral hippocampus and mesolimbic dopamine system: implications for neuropsychiatric pathology. Psychopharmacology. 2018. p. 447–458. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-017-4766-7.



- 77. Farr SA, Goodland MN, Niehoff ML, Banerjee S, Young BJ. Cannabidiol (CBD) improves cognition and decreases anxiety in the SAMP8 mouse model of Alzheimer's. *Alzheimer's & dementia : the journal of the Alzheimer's Association*. 2021;17: e054428. https://doi.org/10.1002/alz.054428.
- Assareh N, Gururajan A, Zhou C, Luo JL, Kevin RC, Arnold JC. Cannabidiol disrupts conditioned fear expression and cannabidiolic acid reduces trauma-induced anxietyrelated behaviour in mice. *Behavioural Pharmacology*. 2020;31(6): 591–596. https://doi.org/10.1097/FBP.000000000000565.
- Chesworth R, Karl T. Cannabidiol (CBD) reduces cocaine-environment memory in mice. *Pharmacology Biochemistry and Behavior*. 2020;199. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pbb.2020.173065.
- 80. Gasparyan A, Navarrete F, Manzanares J. Cannabidiol and Sertraline Regulate Behavioral and Brain Gene Expression Alterations in an Animal Model of PTSD. *Frontiers in Pharmacology*. 2021;12. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2021.694510.
- Han X, Song X, Song D, Xie G, Guo H, Wu N, et al. Comparison between cannabidiol and sertraline for the modulation of post-traumatic stress disorder-like behaviors and fear memory in mice. *Psychopharmacology*. 2022;239(5): 1605–1620. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-022-06132-6.
- Kruk-Slomka M, Biala G. Cannabidiol attenuates mk-801-induced cognitive symptoms of schizophrenia in the passive avoidance test in mice. *Molecules*. 2021;26(19). https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules26195977.
- 83. Ledesma JC, Manzanedo C, Aguilar MA. Cannabidiol prevents several of the behavioral alterations related to cocaine addiction in mice. *Progress in Neuro-Psychopharmacology and Biological Psychiatry*. 2021;111. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pnpbp.2021.110390.
- Montoya ZT, Uhernik AL, Smith JP. Comparison of cannabidiol to citalopram in targeting fear memory in female mice. *Journal of Cannabis Research*. 2020;2(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s42238-020-00055-9.



- 85. Aso E, Fernández-Dueñas V, López-Cano M, Taura J, Watanabe M, Ferrer I, et al. Adenosine A2A-Cannabinoid CB1 Receptor Heteromers in the Hippocampus: Cannabidiol Blunts Δ 9-Tetrahydrocannabinol-Induced Cognitive Impairment. *Molecular Neurobiology*. 2019;56(8): 5382–5391. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12035-018-1456-3.
- Cheng D, Low JK, Logge W, Garner B, Karl T. Chronic cannabidiol treatment improves social and object recognition in double transgenic APPswe/PS1∆E9 mice. *Psychopharmacology*. 2014;231(15): 3009–3017. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-014-3478-5.
- 87. Cheng D, Spiro AS, Jenner AM, Garner B, Karl T. Long-term cannabidiol treatment prevents the development of social recognition memory deficits in alzheimer's disease transgenic mice. *Journal of Alzheimer's Disease*. 2014;42(4): 1383–1396. https://doi.org/10.3233/JAD-140921.
- Chesworth R, Cheng D, Staub C, Karl T. Effect of long-term cannabidiol on learning and anxiety in a female Alzheimer's disease mouse model. *Frontiers in Pharmacology*. 2022;13. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2022.931384.
- Corrê M da S, de Freitas BS, Machado GDB, Pires VN, Bromberg E, Hallak JEC, et al. Cannabidiol reverses memory impairments and activates components of the Akt/GSK3β pathway in an experimental model of estrogen depletion. *Behavioural Brain Research*. 2022;417. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bbr.2021.113555.
- Khodadadi H, Salles ÉL, Jarrahi A, Costigliola V, Khan MB, Yu JC, et al. Cannabidiol ameliorates cognitive function via regulation of IL-33 and TREM2 upregulation in a murine model of Alzheimer's Disease. *Journal of Alzheimer's Disease*. 2021;80(3): 973– 977. https://doi.org/10.3233/JAD-210026.
- Kreilaus F, Przybyla M, Ittner L, Karl T. Cannabidiol (CBD) treatment improves spatial memory in 14-month-old female TAU58/2 transgenic mice. *Behavioural Brain Research*. 2022;425. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bbr.2022.113812.



- Long LE, Chesworth R, Huang XF, McGregor IS, Arnold JC, Karl T. A behavioural comparison of acute and chronic 9- tetrahydrocannabinol and cannabidiol in C57BL/6JArc mice. *International Journal of Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2010;13(7): 861– 876. https://doi.org/10.1017/S1461145709990605.
- 93. Watt G, Shang K, Zieba J, Olaya J, Li H, Garner B, et al. Chronic Treatment with 50 mg/kg Cannabidiol Improves Cognition and Moderately Reduces Aβ40 Levels in 12-Month-Old Male AβPPswe/PS1ΔE9 Transgenic Mice. *Journal of Alzheimer's Disease*. 2020;74(3): 937–950. https://doi.org/10.3233/JAD-191242.
- 94. Watt G, Chesworth R, Przybyla M, Ittner A, Garner B, Ittner LM, et al. Chronic cannabidiol (CBD) treatment did not exhibit beneficial effects in 4-month-old male TAU58/2 transgenic mice. *Pharmacology Biochemistry and Behavior*. 2020;196. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pbb.2020.172970.
- 95. Coles M, Watt G, Kreilaus F, Karl T. Medium-Dose Chronic Cannabidiol Treatment Reverses Object Recognition Memory Deficits of APP Swe /PS1ΔE9 Transgenic Female Mice. *Frontiers in Pharmacology*. 2020;11. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2020.587604.
- 96. García-Baos A, Puig-Reyne X, García-Algar Ó, Valverde O. Cannabidiol attenuates cognitive deficits and neuroinflammation induced by early alcohol exposure in a mice model. *Biomedicine and Pharmacotherapy*. 2021;141. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.biopha.2021.111813.
- 97. Kaplan JS, Wagner JK, Reid K, McGuinness F, Arvila S, Brooks M, et al. Cannabidiol Exposure During the Mouse Adolescent Period Is Without Harmful Behavioral Effects on Locomotor Activity, Anxiety, and Spatial Memory. *Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience*. 2021;15. https://doi.org/10.3389/fnbeh.2021.711639.
- Meyer E, Bonato JM, Mori MA, Mattos BA, Guimarães FS, Milani H, et al. Cannabidiol Confers Neuroprotection in Rats in a Model of Transient Global Cerebral Ischemia: Impact of Hippocampal Synaptic Neuroplasticity. *Molecular Neurobiology*. 2021;58(10): 5338–5355. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12035-021-02479-7.



- 99. Patra PH, Barker-Haliski M, White HS, Whalley BJ, Glyn S, Sandhu H, et al. Cannabidiol reduces seizures and associated behavioral comorbidities in a range of animal seizure and epilepsy models. *Epilepsia*. 2019;60(2): 303–314. https://doi.org/10.1111/epi.14629.
- 100. Razavi Y, Shabani R, Mehdizadeh M, Haghparast A. Neuroprotective effect of chronic administration of cannabidiol during the abstinence period on methamphetamineinduced impairment of recognition memory in the rats. *Behavioural Pharmacology*. 2020;31(4): 385–396. https://doi.org/10.1097/FBP.000000000000544.
- 101. Bayer H, Stern CAJ, Troyner F, Gazarini L, Guimarães FS, Bertoglio LJ. Medial prefrontal cortex mechanisms of cannabidiol-induced aversive memory reconsolidation impairments. *Neuropharmacology*. 2022;205. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuropharm. 2021.108913.
- 102. de Carvalho CR, Takahashi RN. Cannabidiol disrupts the reconsolidation of contextual drug-associated memories in Wistar rats. *Addiction Biology*. 2017;22(3): 742–751. https://doi.org/10.1111/adb.12366.
- 103. Franzen JM, Vanz F, Werle I, Guimarães FS, Bertoglio LJ. Cannabidiol impairs fear memory reconsolidation in female rats through dorsal hippocampus CB1 but not CB2 receptor interaction. *European Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2022;64: 7–18. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.euroneuro.2022.08.002.
- 104. Franzen JM, Werle I, Vanz F, de Oliveira BB, Martins Nascimento LM, Guimarães FS, et al. Cannabidiol attenuates fear memory expression in female rats via hippocampal 5-HT1A but not CB1 or CB2 receptors. *Neuropharmacology*. 2023;223. https://doi.org/10.1016/j .neuropharm.2022.109316.
- 105. Raymundi AM, da Silva TR, Zampronio AR, Guimarães FS, Bertoglio LJ, Stern CAJ. A timedependent contribution of hippocampal CB1, CB2 and PPARγ receptors to cannabidiolinduced disruption of fear memory consolidation. *British Journal of Pharmacology*. 2020;177(4): 945–957. https://doi.org/10.1111/bph.14895.



- 106.Rossignoli MT, Lopes-Aguiar C, Ruggiero RN, Do Val da Silva RA, Bueno-Junior LS, Kandratavicius L, et al. Selective post-training time window for memory consolidation interference of cannabidiol into the prefrontal cortex: Reduced dopaminergic modulation and immediate gene expression in limbic circuits. *Neuroscience*. 2017;350: 85–93. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuroscience.2017.03.019.
- 107.Stern CAJ, Gazarini L, Takahashi RN, Guimarães FS, Bertoglio LJ. On disruption of fear memory by reconsolidation blockade: Evidence from cannabidiol treatment. *Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2012;37(9): 2132–2142. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2012.63.
- 108. Stern CAJ, Gazarini L, Vanvossen AC, Zuardi AW, Galve-Roperh I, Guimaraes FS, et al. δ9-Tetrahydrocannabinol alone and combined with cannabidiol mitigate fear memory through reconsolidation disruption. *European Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2015;25(6): 958–965. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.euroneuro.2015.02.001.
- 109. Stern CAJ, da Silva TR, Raymundi AM, de Souza CP, Hiroaki-Sato VA, Kato L, et al. Cannabidiol disrupts the consolidation of specific and generalized fear memories via dorsal hippocampus CB1 and CB2 receptors. *Neuropharmacology*. 2017;125: 220–230. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuropharm.2017.07.024.
- 110. Hudson R, Renard J, Norris C, Rushlow WJ, Laviolette SR. Cannabidiol counteracts the psychotropic side-effects of Δ-9-tetrahydrocannabinol in the ventral hippocampus through bidirectional control of erk1-2 phosphorylation. *Journal of Neuroscience*. 2019;39(44): 8762–8777. https://doi.org/10.1523/JNEUROSCI.0708-19.2019.
- 111. Murkar A, Kent P, Cayer C, James J, Durst T, Merali Z. Cannabidiol and the remainder of the plant extract modulate the effects of Δ9-tetrahydrocannabinol on fear memory reconsolidation. *Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience*. 2019;13. https://doi.org/10.3389/fnbeh.2019.00174.



- 112. Norris C, Loureiro M, Kramar C, Zunder J, Renard J, Rushlow W, et al. Cannabidiol modulates fear memory formation through interactions with serotonergic transmission in the mesolimbic system. *Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2016;41(12): 2839–2850. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2016.93.
- 113. Shallcross J, Hámor P, Bechard AR, Romano M, Knackstedt L, Schwendt M. The divergent effects of cdppb and cannabidiol on fear extinction and anxiety in a predator scent stress model of ptsd in rats. *Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience*. 2019;13. https://doi.org/10.3389/fnbeh.2019.00091.
- 114. Kozela E, Krawczyk M, Kos T, Juknat A, Vogel Z, Popik P. Cannabidiol Improves Cognitive Impairment and Reverses Cortical Transcriptional Changes Induced by Ketamine, in Schizophrenia-Like Model in Rats. *Molecular Neurobiology*. 2020;57(3): 1733–1747. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12035-019-01831-2.
- 115. Szkudlarek HJ, Rodríguez-Ruiz M, Hudson R, De Felice M, Jung T, Rushlow WJ, et al. THC and CBD produce divergent effects on perception and panic behaviours via distinct cortical molecular pathways. *Progress in Neuro-Psychopharmacology and Biological Psychiatry*. 2021;104. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pnpbp.2020.110029.
- 116. Szkudlarek HJ, Desai SJ, Renard J, Pereira B, Norris C, Jobson CEL, et al. Δ-9Tetrahydrocannabinol and Cannabidiol produce dissociable effects on prefrontal cortical executive function and regulation of affective behaviors. *Neuropsychopharmacology*.
 2019;44(4): 817–825. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41386-018-0282-7.
- 117. Osborne AL, Solowij N, Babic I, Huang XF, Weston-Green K. Improved Social Interaction, Recognition and Working Memory with Cannabidiol Treatment in a Prenatal Infection (poly I:C) Rat Model. *Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2017;42(7): 1447–1457. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2017.40.



- 118. Osborne AL, Solowij N, Babic I, Lum JS, Huang XF, Newell KA, et al. Cannabidiol improves behavioural and neurochemical deficits in adult female offspring of the maternal immune activation (poly I:C) model of neurodevelopmental disorders. *Brain, Behavior, and Immunity.* 2019;81: 574–587. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bbi.2019.07.018.
- 119. Withey SL, Kangas BD, Charles S, Gumbert AB, Eisold JE, George SR, et al. Effects of daily 9-Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) alone or combined with cannabidiol (CBD) on cognitionbased behavior and activity in adolescent nonhuman primates. *Drug and Alcohol Dependence*. 2021;221. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2021.108629.
- 120. Wright MJ, Vandewater AS, Taffe AM. *Cannabidiol attenuates deficits of visuospatial associative memory induced by D9 tetrahydrocannabinol*. British Journal of Pharmacology. 2013. p. 1363–1364. https://doi.org/10.1111/bph.12400.
- 121. Fagherazzi E V., Garcia VA, Maurmann N, Bervanger T, Halmenschlager LH, Busato SB, et al. Memory-rescuing effects of cannabidiol in an animal model of cognitive impairment relevant to neurodegenerative disorders. *Psychopharmacology*. 2012;219(4): 1133–1140. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-011-2449-3.
- 122. Zieba J, Sinclair D, Sebree T, Bonn-Miller M, Gutterman D, Siegel S, et al. Cannabidiol (CBD) reduces anxiety-related behavior in mice via an FMRP-independent mechanism. *Pharmacology Biochemistry and Behavior*. 2019;181: 93–100. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pbb.2019.05.002.
- 123. Song C, Stevenson CW, Guimaraes FS, Lee JLC. Bidirectional effects of cannabidiol on contextual fear memory extinction. *Frontiers in Pharmacology*. 2016;7(DEC). https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2016.00493.
- 124. Bolsoni LM, Crippa JAS, Hallak JEC, Guimarães FS, Zuardi AW. Effects of cannabidiol on symptoms induced by the recall of traumatic events in patients with posttraumatic stress disorder. *Psychopharmacology*. 2022;239(5): 1499–1507. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-021-06043-y.



REFERENCES (Continued)

- 125. Bhattacharyya S, Morrison PD, Fusar-Poli P, Martin-Santos R, Borgwardt S, Winton-Brown T, et al. Opposite effects of δ-9-tetrahydrocannabinol and cannabidiol on human brain function and psychopathology. *Neuropsychopharmacology*. 2010;35(3): 764–774. https://doi.org/10.1038/npp.2009.184.
- 126. Bhattacharyya S, Wilson R, Appiah-Kusi E, O'Neill A, Brammer M, Perez J, et al. Effect of Cannabidiol on Medial Temporal, Midbrain, and Striatal Dysfunction in People at Clinical High Risk of Psychosis: A Randomized Clinical Trial. *JAMA Psychiatry*. 2018;75(11): 1107– 1117. https://doi.org/10.1001/jamapsychiatry.2018.2309.
- 127. Bloomfield MAP, Green SF, Hindocha C, Yamamori Y, Yim JLL, Jones APM, et al. The effects of acute cannabidiol on cerebral blood flow and its relationship to memory: An arterial spin labelling magnetic resonance imaging study. *Journal of Psychopharmacology*. 2020;34(9): 981–989. https://doi.org/10.1177/0269881120936419.
- 128. Das RK, Kamboj SK, Ramadas M, Yogan K, Gupta V, Redman E, et al. Cannabidiol enhances consolidation of explicit fear extinction in humans. *Psychopharmacology*. 2013;226(4): 781–792. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-012-2955-y.
- 129. Morgan CJA, Freeman TP, Hindocha C, Schafer G, Gardner C, Curran HV. Individual and combined effects of acute delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol and cannabidiol on psychotomimetic symptoms and memory function. *Translational Psychiatry*. 2018;8(1). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41398-018-0191-x.
- 130. O'Neill A, Wilson R, Blest-Hopley G, Annibale L, Colizzi M, Brammer M, et al. Normalization of mediotemporal and prefrontal activity, and mediotemporal-striatal connectivity, may underlie antipsychotic effects of cannabidiol in psychosis. *Psychological Medicine*. 2021;51(4): 596–606. https://doi.org/10.1017/ S0033291719003519.



- 131. Leweke FM, Rohleder C, Gerth CW, Hellmich M, Pukrop R, Koethe D. Cannabidiol and Amisulpride Improve Cognition in Acute Schizophrenia in an Explorative, Double-Blind, Active-Controlled, Randomized Clinical Trial. *Frontiers in Pharmacology*. 2021;12. https://doi.org/10.3389/fphar.2021.614811.
- 132. Woelfl T, Rohleder C, Mueller JK, Lange B, Reuter A, Schmidt AM, et al. Effects of Cannabidiol and Delta-9-Tetrahydrocannabinol on Emotion, Cognition, and Attention: A Double-Blind, Placebo-Controlled, Randomized Experimental Trial in Healthy Volunteers. *Frontiers in Psychiatry*. 2020;11. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyt.2020.576877.
- 133. Boggs DL, Surti T, Gupta A, Gupta S, Niciu M, Pittman B, et al. The effects of cannabidiol (CBD) on cognition and symptoms in outpatients with chronic schizophrenia a randomized placebo controlled trial. *Psychopharmacology*. 2018;235(7): 1923–1932. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00213-018-4885-9.
- 134. Hotz J, Fehlmann B, Papassotiropoulos A, de Quervain DJ, Schicktanz NS. Cannabidiol enhances verbal episodic memory in healthy young participants: A randomized clinical trial. *Journal of Psychiatric Research*. 2021;143: 327–333. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jpsychires.2021.09.007.
- 135. Rizkallah E, Mongeau-Pérusse V, Lamanuzzi L, Castenada-Ouellet SA, Stip E, Juteau LC, et al. Cannabidiol effects on cognition in individuals with cocaine use disorder: Exploratory results from a randomized controlled trial. *Pharmacology Biochemistry and Behavior*. 2022;216. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pbb.2022.173376.
- 136. McGuire P, Robson P, Cubala WJ, Vasile D, Morrison PD, Barron R, et al. Cannabidiol (CBD) as an adjunctive therapy in schizophrenia: A multicenter randomized controlled trial. *American Journal of Psychiatry*. 2018;175(3): 225–231. https://doi.org/10.1176/ appi.ajp.2017.17030325.
- 137. Sterne JAC, Savović J, Page MJ, Elbers RG, Blencowe NS, Boutron I, et al. RoB 2: a revised tool for assessing risk of bias in randomised trials. *BMJ*. 2019; l4898. https://doi.org/10.1136/bmj.l4898.



- 138. Kinney JW, Bemiller SM, Murtishaw AS, Leisgang AM, Salazar AM, Lamb BT. Inflammation as a central mechanism in Alzheimer's disease. Alzheimer's and Dementia: Translational Research and Clinical Interventions. 2018. p. 575–590. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.trci.2018.06.014.
- 139. Cannon TD. How Schizophrenia Develops: Cognitive and Brain Mechanisms Underlying Onset of Psychosis. Trends in Cognitive Sciences. 2015. p. 744–756. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tics.2015.09.009.
- 140. Roozendaal B, McEwen BS, Chattarji S. *Stress, memory and the amygdala*. Nature Reviews Neuroscience. 2009. p. 423–433. https://doi.org/10.1038/nrn2651.
- 141. Privitera M, Bhathal H, Wong M, Cross JH, Wirrell E, Marsh ED, et al. Time to onset of cannabidiol (CBD) treatment effect in Lennox–Gastaut syndrome: Analysis from two randomized controlled trials. *Epilepsia*. 2021;62(5): 1130–1140. https://doi.org/10.1111/epi.16878.
- 142. LeDoux JE. Emotion Circuits in the Brain. *Annual Review of Neuroscience*. 2000;23(1): 155–184. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev.neuro.23.1.155.
- 143. Squire LR. Memory systems of the brain: A brief history and current perspective. Neurobiology of Learning and Memory. 2004;82(3): 171–177. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nlm.2004.06.005.
- 144. McKenzie S, Eichenbaum H. *Consolidation and Reconsolidation: Two Lives of Memories?*. Neuron. 2011. p. 224–233. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.neuron.2011.06.037.
- 145. Myers KM, Davis M. Mechanisms of fear extinction. *Molecular Psychiatry*. 2007;12(2): 120–150. https://doi.org/10.1038/sj.mp.4001939.
- 146. Halladay LR, Zelikowsky M, Blair HT, Fanselow MS. Reinstatement of extinguished fear by an unextinguished conditional stimulus. *Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience*. 2012;6. https://doi.org/10.3389/fnbeh.2012.00018.
- 147. Mechoulam R, Parker L. *Towards a better cannabis drug*. British Journal of Pharmacology. 2013. p. 1363–1364. https://doi.org/10.1111/bph.12400.



- 148. Wu CF, Yang JY, Wang F. The Effect of Oxytocin on Methamphetamine Addiction. In: Neuropathology of Drug Addictions and Substance Misuse Volume 2: Stimulants, Club and Dissociative Drugs, Hallucinogens, Steroids, Inhalants and International Aspects. Elsevier; 2016. p. 300–308. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-800212-4.00029-7.
- 149. Dirikx T, Beckers T, Muyls C, Eelen P, Vansteenwegen D, Hermans D, et al. Differential acquisition, extinction, and reinstatement of conditioned suppression in mice. *Quarterly Journal of Experimental Psychology*. 2007;60(10): 1313–1320. https://doi.org/ 10.1080/17470210701515785.



339

Appendix



340

Appendix A

Ethics Approval





บันทึก

Memorandum

ที่ DPUHREC 0202/2566 วันที่ 2 กุมภาพันธ์ 2566

จาก สำนักงานคณะกรรมการจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์ มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์

เรียน แพทย์หญิงศิวพร ปราณีนิจ

เรื่อง แจ้งผลการประเมินตนเองเกี่ยวกับจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์

ตามที่ วิทยาลัยการแพทย์และบูรณาการ มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์ ได้ขอความอนุเคราะห์ให้ทาง สำนักงานคณะกรรมการจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์ฯ พิจารณาผลการประเมินตนเองเกี่ยวกับจริยธรรมการวิจัยใน มนุษย์ ของ **แพทย์หญิงศิวพร ปราณีนิจ วิทยาลัยการแพทย์และบูรณาการ มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์** โครงการวิจัยเรื่อง การทบทวนอย่างเป็นระบบและการวิเคราะห์อภิมาณเกี่ยวกับผลของสารแคนนาบิไดออล (Cannabidiol) ต่อความจำประเภทต่างๆ

จากการตรวจสอบเบื้องต้นโดยพิจารณาจาก แบบตรวจสอบ IRB Checklist DPUHRECs และโครงร่างการ วิจัย ทางคณะกรรมการจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์ฯ ได้พิจารณาแล้วเห็นว่า การดำเนินงานวิจัยของโครงการวิจัย ดังกล่าว **ไม่เข้าข่ายจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์**

ทั้งนี้ผลการพิจารณาเอกสารดังกล่าวข้างต้น ไม่ถือเป็นการรับรองจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์

จึงเรียนมาเพื่อโปรดทราบ

Non DNINU -

(รองศาสตราจารย์ ดร.พยงค์ วณิเกียรติ) ประธานคณะกรรมการจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์



โทร. 128, 632 สำนักงานคณะกรรมการจริยธรรมการวิจัยในมนุษย์ มหาวิทยาลัยธุรกิจบัณฑิตย์ (DPUHREC)



BIOGRAPHY

Name	Siwaporn Praneenij, M.D.
Educational Background	
2016 - 2017 -	Master of Science in Psychology with Merit, University of Westminster
2010 - 2016 -	Doctor of Medicine with Second Class Honor, Rangsit University
Work Experiences	
2019 -	General Practitioner, Vibharam Hospital (Phatthanakan)
2018 - 2019 -	Fulltime doctor and Chief Operating Officer,
	Phloenchit Medical Center

342